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PARK CITY

) 15544

Finance

February 10, 2023
To the Honorable Mayor, Honorable City Council, and Citizens of Park City, Utah:

Utah State law requires that every general purpose local government publish, within six months
of the close of each fiscal year, a complete set of audited financial statements. This report is
published to fulfill that requirement for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022.

Management assumes full responsibility for the completeness and reliability of the information
contained in this report, based upon a comprehensive framework of internal control that it has
established for this purpose. Because the cost of internal control should not exceed anticipated
benefits, the objective is to provide reasonable, rather than absolute, assurance that the financial
statements are free of any material misstatements.

BDO USA, LLP, a firm of licensed certified public accountants, issued an unmodified (“clean”)
opinion on Park City Municipal Corporation’s financial statements for the year ended June 30,
2022. The independent auditor’s report is located at the front of the financial section of this
report.

Management’s discussion and analysis (MD&A) immediately follows the independent auditor’s
report and provides a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis of the basic financial
statements. The MD&A complements this letter of transmittal and should be read in conjunction
with it.

Profile of Park City Municipal Corporation, Utah

Park City Municipal Corporation (City) was chartered March 15, 1884, under the provisions of
the Utah Territorial Government and is in Summit County in the northeast part of Utah, which is
considered to be one of the top growth areas in the state. Park City currently occupies 20 square
miles and serves an estimated full-time resident population of 8,684. The City is empowered to
levy a property tax on real property located within its boundaries and empowered by state statute
to extend its corporate limits by annexation, which it has done this past year.

Park City Municipal Corporation
445 Marsac Avenue ® P.O.Box 1480 e Park City, UT 84060-1480
Phone (435) 615-5221 e Fax (435) 615-4917
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We acknowledge that Park City Municipal Corporation is on the traditional land and seized
territory of the Eastern Shoshone and Ute people, who have stewarded this land throughout the
generations.

The City is governed by a mayor-council form of government. Policy-making and legislative
authority are vested in the Governing Council (Council) consisting of the mayor and a five-
member council, all of whom are elected at large. Council members serve four-year staggered
terms. Elections are held every odd numbered year. The governing council is responsible, among
other things, for passing ordinances, adopting the budget, appointing committees, and hiring both
the City’s manager and attorney. The Mayor is the administrative authority by statute; however,
the City’s manager has been delegated the responsibility for carrying out the policies and
ordinances of the governing council, for overseeing the day-to-day operations of the City, and for
appointing the heads of the various departments.

The City provides a full range of services, including police, parks, recreation, library, water,
stormwater, public improvements, streets, planning and zoning, golf course, transportation and
parking, licensing and permits, building inspections, affordable housing, and administrative
services. This report includes the financial statements of the funds required to report on those
activities, organizations and functions which are related to the City and are controlled by or
financially accountable to the City Council. The Park City Municipal Building Authority, the
Park City Redevelopment Agency, the Park City Housing Authority and the Park City Water
Service District are chartered under Utah law as separate governmental entities. However, this
report includes the financial statements of these entities, since the City Council is the appointed
board for all four agencies, they are financially accountable to the City, and management (below
the level of the elected officials) of the City have operational responsibility for the activities of
these entities.

The State of Utah, Summit County, Wasatch County, Park City School District, Park City Fire
Protection District, Snyderville Basin Special Recreation District and Snyderville Basin Water
Reclamation District are overlapping governments that provide services to City residents;
however, they are separately controlled, and they are not financially accountable to the City;
therefore, they are not included in this report.

Budgetary Control

The Council is required to adopt a final budget by no later than June 30 of the fiscal year. This
annual budget serves as the foundation for the City’s financial planning and control. The budget
is prepared by fund, function (e.g., public safety), and department (e.g., police). The City
Council approves all City budgets at the department level (general government, public safety,
public works, recreation and library). Budgetary control is maintained at the department level
where expenditures may not legally exceed appropriations. Department heads may make
transfers within a department. The City Council may amend the budget by ordinance during the
budget year but must hold a public hearing to increase a governmental fund’s budget before it
can pass the ordinance.
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Local Economy and Economic Trends

Park City is located in Summit County, Utah, in the heart of the Wasatch Mountains, 30 miles
east of Salt Lake City and 40 minutes by freeway from the Salt Lake International Airport. In
1869, silver bearing quartz was discovered in the area, of what is now Park City, and a silver
mining boom began. From the 1930's through the 1950's, the mining boom subsided due to the
decline of silver prices, and Park City came very close to becoming a historic ghost town. During
that time, the residents began to consider an alternative to mining, and began developing Park
City into a resort town. Today Park City is one of the western United States premier multi-season
resort communities.

Because of its location in a State with a diverse economic base, recent unemployment rates have
been historically low. Additionally, Park City became a hot-spot for people looking for safe,
outdoor recreation. The unemployment rate in Summit County dropped from last year’s decade
low of 2.4 percent to 1.7 percent in June 2022.

Tourism is the major industry in Park City, with skiing, lodging facilities and restaurants
contributing significantly to the local economy. Park City is the home of two major ski resorts,
Deer Valley Resort and Park City Mountain Resort. A portion of the latter, formerly known as
Canyons Resort, operates outside of municipal boundaries. Vail Resorts acquired the Canyons
Resort in 2013 and the Park City Mountain Resort in September of 2014. In July 2015, Vail
linked the two resorts creating the largest skiing resort in the United States with over 7,300 acres
of skiable terrain. Alterra Mountain Company acquired Deer Valley Resort in 2018.

Deer Valley Resort and Park City Mountain Resort host several major international and world
ski competitions such as, IHC Freestyle International Ski World Cup and FIS Freestyle
International Ski World Cup. Deer Valley was voted 2™ and Park City Mountain 30" in Ski
Magazine’s Reader’s Top-Ranked Ski Resorts in the West 2022.

During the 2021-2022 season, Utah resorts reported 5.8 million skier days, surpassing the
previous record set last year in the 2020-2021 season by approximately 500,000 visits.
Additionally, visits to resorts were 26.0 percent above the 10-year average.

Park City’s service population is significant due to the number of secondary homeowners and
visitors within Park City. The City has approximately 129 restaurants, 139 shops, 25 private art
centers and a community-sponsored art center. Many of Park City’s restaurants are award
winning and among the finest in the intermountain west. The Chamber of Commerce estimates
that the City has a nightly rental capacity for 32,669 guests (please see Schedule 24 of the
Statistical Section of this report).

The Sundance Film Festival held its 40th annual festival in January 2022. The festival took place
online. The 2023 festival is returning to Park City and will be in-person and online. Sundance
and Park City Municipal Corporation have formally agreed that Park City will remain festival
headquarters through the 2026 film festival.
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Closely connected to the tourism and ski industries in Park City is the real estate industry.
During the past ten years, building activity within the City has fluctuated from a low of $74.0
million in 2013, because of the 2008 recession, to a high of $177.0 million in 2021. Building
activity over the last decade has averaged $126.6 million per year. In the first six months of
calendar year 2022, 89.0 percent of the $42.0 million in building activity has been in residential
construction. The remaining 11.0 percent consists of commercial construction. The residential
construction total valuation of approximately $37.3 million consisted of both single and multi-
family homes. Easy access to Salt Lake City has intensified the role for Park City as a bedroom
community. The current economy has continued to show emphasis of new construction of single-
family homes and remodeling and expanding of commercial buildings.

Building Activity
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* The 2022 number is from January 2022 through June 2022 only. For activity by fiscal year, please see Schedule
26 of the Statistical Section.

As reported by Park City Realtors, the real estate market in Park City saw a cooling off after an
overheated two years of sales. Land sales decreased 43.0 percent and sales volume decreased
17.0 percent. The median price of land rose 65.0 percent to $1.9 million. Single-family home
sales decrease 55.0 percent and sales volume decreased 40.0 percent. The median price of single-
family homes across the city rose 35.0 percent to 3.7 million. Condominium sales decreased 32.0
percent and sales volume decreased 23.0 percent. The median price of condominiums increased
15.0 percent to $1.4 million.

Median household incomes within the City are significantly higher than for the state as a whole.
According to the US Census Bureau 2021 estimates, the City’s median family income was
$114,798, the County’s was $106,973, the State’s was $74,197 and the National median income
was $64,994.



Due to our diverse and healthy local economy, Park City maintained a strong credit rating of at
least Aa2 from Moody’s Investor Service since 2011, including a recently adjusted Aaa rating
for general obligation bonds.

Long-term Financial Planning

Insurance — The City maintains a health and dental insurance plan through Regence Blue Cross
Blue Shield of Utah for its employees. Each year, Regence examines the City’s use and total
costs to determine the price for the following year. In fiscal year 2022, the City experienced a
manageable premium increase of 2.62 percent. The City absorbed the cost without increasing
employee premiums. The City’s internal benefits committee reviews annual increases and makes
recommendations on premium increases or policy changes to the Governing Council annually.
The City also offers a high-deductible medical plan in addition to a traditional plan. The City
offers a discount on premiums to employees if they participate in wellness programs, which
require annual physicals, regular dental visits, and other activities to promote a healthy lifestyle.

Sales Tax — The City depends on sales tax revenue to fund City services and fund infrastructure
to support the tourism economy. Of the 9.05 percent sales tax on general purchases in Park City,
the City levies a 1.0 percent local sales and use tax, a 0.25 county option sales tax, a combined
1.25 percent transit tax, 0.1 county cultural tax, and a 1.6 percent resort community tax.

Transient Room Tax — The City levies a 1.0 percent transient room tax and uses the revenue to
fund cultural services and capital projects. Since inception, the City has collected the following
revenue:

Year Revenue

2022 4.5 million
2021 2.7 million
2020 2.7 million
2019 2.7 million
2018 1.6 million

Property Tax — A property tax comparison that normalized tax rates across 50 states, including
the District of Columbia, ranked states by property tax rate. Utah was consistently amongst the
lower in the nation, ranking between 40 and 50. The Property Tax Act provides that all taxable
property must be assessed and taxed at a uniform and equal rate on the basis of its fair market
value by January 1 each year. Summit County levies, collects, and distributes property taxes for
Park City and all other taxing jurisdictions within the County. Primary residences are taxed at 55
percent of the assessed value while secondary residences are taxed at 100 percent of assessed
value. The budget for fiscal year 2022 was adopted with no property tax increase.
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Relevant Financial Policies

Fund Balance — Unrestricted fund balance (the total of the committed, assigned, and unassigned
components of fund balance) in the general fund at year end was 34.56 percent of total general
fund revenues. This amount was slightly below the policy guidelines set by the Council for
budgetary and planning purposes (i.e., maintain the general fund balance at approximately the
legal maximum of 35.0 percent). For budget purposes, any balance that is greater than 5.0
percent of the total revenues of the General Fund may be used. The General Fund balance
reserve is an important factor in the City’s ability to respond to emergencies and unavoidable
revenue shortfalls.

Budgeting for Outcomes — The City employs a Budgeting for Outcomes (BFO) process that
focuses on Council priorities and objectives as the driving factor for determining the annual
budget. BFO provides a comprehensive review of the entire organization, identifying every
program offered and associated cost, evaluating the relevance of every program based upon the
community's priorities and, ultimately, guiding elected and appointed officials to the policy
questions they can answer with the information gained from the process. The City is confident
that the BFO process provides the tools needed to build a budget that reflects the City’s values
and needs.

The BFO process is just part of the process the City employs in the development of the budget in
Park City. The other distinctive part of the process is the utilization of cross-departmental staff
teams for the development of the budget recommendations. The Results Team develops the
operating budget recommendation and the Capital Improvement Plan Committee creates the
capital budget recommendation. These two budgets are then presented to the City Manager.
Next, the Finance Manager; Human Resources Manager; Capital Budgets, Debts & Grants
Manager; Operating Budget Manager and the City Manager hold a Budget Summit to
collectively take a comprehensive review of the budget and discuss any outstanding issues. The
result of this collaborative process and the participation of more than 50 members of the
organization is the City Manager’s Recommended Budget.

Major Initiatives

Net Zero Energy Goal by 2030 — Park City became one of the latest in a series of mountain
communities to commit to 100.0 percent renewable electricity. Park City has pledged that the
City’s electricity would come entirely from renewable sources by 2030. This announcement
comes on the heels of a similar pledge from Salt Lake City, Utah showing that communities are
taking control of their energy future. Park City is a founding partner of Mountain Towns 2030, a
coalition of mountain towns committed to achieving ambitious carbon reduction goals by 2030.
Park City hosted the first MT2030 Net Zero Summit in October 2019. In October 2021, the City
participated in the groundbreaking of an 80 megawatt facility that will offset the power used by
Summit County, Park City Municipal, Park City Mountain Resort and Deer Valley Resort. This
is an important step in helping the City achieve its renewal energy goals. The facility is
scheduled to come online in 2023.
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Long Range Transportation Planning — In Fall of 2022, City Council adopted a long-range
transportation plan coined, Park City Forward. This defined a vision and goals for the future of
transportation in Park City. As Park City remains home to long-standing residents who take pride
in the city’s historic, small-town character, new growth is occurring across the region and Park
City only becomes more popular as a year-round recreation destination. New technologies,
changing demographics, and evolving travel preferences also continue to disrupt how people get
around. Park City's transportation system embraces bold innovation to provide safe, year-round
transportation options that promote a connected, inclusive, and multimodal mountain community
and culture. Park City Forward six guiding principles: i) develop a park once community; i1)
collaborate with regional partners on long-range transportation solutions; iii) identify, manage,
and mitigate traffic during peak conditions; iv) expand our world class biking and walking
infrastructure; v) proactively review and analyze disruptive transportation and transit ideas and
innovation; and vi) continue to develop and improve the internal Park City transit system.

Parking Program - Park City’s parking program continues to support the long-range
transportation goals for Park City and focuses on balancing Transportation Demand Management
with various, progressive parking tools. A dynamic parking program provides incentive to walk,
bike, carpool, and ride public transit, all of which reduce traffic congestion. Enhanced and
consistent neighborhood patrol and enforcement along with relevant permit programs protect
resident areas from overflow parking associated with the many events that draw visitors to Park
City. Drivers cruising for parking and idling is reduced when parking is priced, permitted, and
managed properly, and the result is a vibrant and healthy downtown that residents and guests
may enjoy for generations to come.

Affordable Housing — City Council is committed to making Park City a thriving mountain
community through accessible and diverse housing opportunities with the goal of adding 800
housing units to the City’s affordable/attainable housing inventory by 2026. Future projects
include Woodside Avenue Phase II multi-family development and a public-private partnership to
develop the Homestake lot. The Woodside Park Phase II project is in the design phase but is
expected to deliver affordable housing opportunities to the senior population as well as the
general community. The Homestake project is mixed-income development with an anticipated
99 affordable rental units in sizes ranging from studio to three bedrooms. Construction is
expected to begin in 2023.

Social Equity — In 2017, Park City Council identified Social Equity as a Critical Community
Priority. In 2018, the City partnered with the Park City Community Foundation (PCCF) to
elevate the social equity concept and conversation through a community convening process.
PCCF brought a coalition together to perform a social equity self-diagnosis, identified social
equity resources and gaps, prioritized short and long-term social equity issues, and developed a
multi-year strategic plan. The partnership identified three priorities: Housing, Education, and
Inclusion. In addition, PCCF collaborated with the City to ensure additional funding was
available to the most vulnerable populations amid the COVID-19 pandemic. Our work on
advancing equity initiatives has continued with the launch of Park City’s LGBTQ Task Force, a
partnership with the Park City Seniors, collaborations with Mountainlands Community Housing
Trust, the Park City Early Childhood Alliance, and hosting City Hall tours and visits with
community groups such as the Park City High School Latinos in Action students.
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Update on Major Projects

Water Projects — Water quality and delivery continue to be a top priority for Park City. With the
continuing increase of development, future water needs have been identified and the cost of these
improvements are being fairly distributed between users and new development. Capital spending
in the Water Fund is reflective of the City’s commitment to secure Park City’s water needs
through improvements to the City’s water infrastructure. The Water Fund Financial Model is
reviewed and updated annually to assess the long-range operating and capital needs of the system
and to determine future water rate increases and bonding needs. Additionally, the City continues
to improve the culinary water system with funds from the five-year Capital Improvement Plan,
an account with an approximate value of $109.0 million. In 2019, to comply with State
regulations that allows the City to discharge water draining from the Judge and Spiro mine
tunnels into Mcleod and Silver Creeks, the City began construction of the Three Kings Water
Treatment Plant to replace the existing Spiro plant, which was built in the 1990’s. The new plant
will also increase overall water supply resiliency, peak day capacity, water quality and reliability
into the future. The City issued Water Revenue and Refunding Bonds for $75,515,000 in June
2020 and $66,135,000 in October 2021. The bonds, in large part, will fund the construction of
the water treatment plant. The expected completion date of the plant is June 2023.

Arts & Culture District — Park City purchased a 5.25-acre parcel in Bonanza Park to bring a
centrally located lot into public ownership with the hopes of developing a sustainable, walkable
livable area through public-private partnerships. Funds for the purchase, development, and
maintenance will be generated, in part, by overnight visitors via a 1.0 percent municipal transient
room tax. No additional taxes will be assessed on Park City residents. Until the development
plans for the district are finalized, the City will use the space, also known as the Bonanza Art
Park for summer and fall programming.

Awards and Acknowledgements

Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded a
Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to Park City Municipal
Corporation for its comprehensive annual financial report for the fiscal year ended June 30,
2021. In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a government must publish an easily
readable and efficiently organized comprehensive annual financial report. This report must
satisfy both generally accepted accounting principles and applicable legal requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe that our current
comprehensive annual financial report continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement
Program’s requirements and we are submitting it to GFOA to determine its eligibility for another
certificate.

Park City Municipal Corporation also received the Distinguished Budget Presentation Award
from the GFOA for the City’s adopted budget for the period beginning July 1, 2022. The City
has won this award for fiscal years 1992 and 1993 and the biennium periods beginning 1993,
1997, 1999, 2001, 2003, 2005, 2007, 2009, 2011, 2013, 2014, 2016, 2018, 2020, 2022 and 2023.
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1999, 2001, 2003, 2005, 2007, 2009, 2011, 2013, 2014, 2016, 2018, 2020, 2022 and 2023. In
order to qualify for the award program, the City’s budget document was judged proficient in
several categories, including policy documentation, financial planning. and organization.

The preparation of this report on a timely basis could not have been accomplished without the
efficient and dedicated services of the Finance and Accounting Department. We would like to
express our appreciation to BDO, LLP, certified public accountants, for their professional service
and assistance. We would also like to thank the Mayor and City Council for their interest and
support in planning and conducting the financial operation of the City in a responsible manner.

Respectfully submitted.

1as, City Manage Mindy ;inginson, Finance Manager
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Agency, the Park City Municipal Building Authority, the Park City Housing Authority and
the Park City Water Service District structure.

xii




P

Government Finance Officers Association

Certificate of
Achievement
for Excellence
1n Financial
Reporting

Presented to

Park City Municipal Corporation
Utah

For its Annual Comprehensive
Financial Report
For the Fiscal Year Ended

June 30, 2021

Cheiloppho. P- Moniet

Executive Director/CEO

xiii



THIS PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY



FINANCIAL SECTION

-
1



Tel: 801-269-1818 299 South Main Street
Fax: 801-266-3481 10™ Floor
; www.bdo.com Salt Lake City, UT 84111

Independent Auditor’s Report

Members of the City Council
Park City Municipal Corporation, Utah

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinions

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Park City Municipal Corporation (the
“City”), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2022 and the related notes to the financial statements, which
collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Park City Municipal Corporation, as of June
30, 2022, and the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof and
the respective budgetary comparison for the general fund for the year then ended in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinions

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America (“GAAS”) and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
section of our report. We are required to be independent of the City and to meet our other ethical
responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.

Emphasis of Matter

As discussed in Note 7 to the basic financial statements, in fiscal year 2022, the City adopted the provisions
of Governmental Accounting Standards Board (“GASB”) Statement Number 87, Leases. Our opinions are not
modified with respect to this matter.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or
events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the City’s ability to continue as a
going concern for twelve months beyond the financial statement date, including any currently known
information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter.

BDO USA, LLP, a Delaware limited liability partnership, is the U.S. member of BDO International Limited, a UK company limited by guarantee, and forms part of the
international BDO network of independent member firms.

BDO is the brand name for the BDO network and for each of the BDO Member Firms.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinions. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and
therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing
Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are
considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would
influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards, we:

e Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

¢ |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures
include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the City’s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

o Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate,
that raise substantial doubt about the City’s ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable
period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related
matters that we identified during the audit.

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s
discussion and analysis and the schedule of proportionate share of net pension liability and the schedule of
proportionate share of net pension liability and the schedule of contributions be presented to supplement
the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and, although not a
part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who
considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an
appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to
the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the
information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries,
the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial
statements.

We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures
do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.
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Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the City’s basic financial statements. The combining and individual nonmajor fund statements and
schedules are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial
statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly
to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. The
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or
to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with GAAS. In
our opinion, the combining and individual nonmajor fund statements and schedules are fairly stated, in all
material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information included in the annual comprehensive financial report.
The other information comprises the introductory and statistical sections but does not include the basic
financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. Our opinions on the basic financial statements do not
cover the other information, and we do not express an opinion or any form of assurance thereon.

In connection with our audit of the basic financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and consider whether a material inconsistency exists between the other information and the
basic financial statements, or the other information otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work performed, we conclude that an uncorrected material misstatement of the other information
exists, we are required to describe it in our report.

The introductory section and statistical section have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied
in the audit of the basic financial statements, and accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any
assurance on it.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated February 10, 2023
on our consideration of the City’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance
with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The
purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness
of the City’s internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of
an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the City’s internal
control over financial reporting and compliance.

BDO VU3A, LLF

February 10, 2023
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The following narrative is presented to facilitate a better understanding of the City’s financial
position and results of operations for the year ended June 30, 2022. When read in conjunction with
the letter of transmittal and the notes to the basic financial statements, the financial highlights,
overview and analysis should assist the reader to gain a more complete knowledge of the City’s
financial performance.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

e The City’s government-wide net position (the amount by which assets and deferred
outflows exceed liabilities and deferred inflows) as of June 30, 2022, was $484,804,113.
Of this amount, $150,951,732 (unrestricted net position) is available to meet ongoing
financial obligations.

e The City’s government-wide net position increased by $43,352,230. Of this amount,
governmental activities increased by $31,190,773, and business-type activities increased
by $12,161,457, a rise of 10.3 percent, and a rise of 8.8 percent, respectively, when
compared to last fiscal year.

e The City’s governmental funds reported a combined ending fund balance of $137,766,409,
an increase of $18.2 million (15.2 percent) compared to the beginning of this year’s fund
balance amount. While total governmental funds revenue had a significant increase of $8.7
million (12.4 percent increase) compared to prior year, total governmental expenditures
only increased $3.3 million or 5.5 percent. Taxes were the most significant contributor to
the current year increase in revenues. Of the combined total fund balance, $14,145,271 is
available for spending at the discretion of the City (unassigned fund balance).

e The General Fund is the primary operating fund of the City. The unassigned fund balance
of the General Fund at June 30, 2022, totaled $14,145,271 and is 33.1 percent of the
General Fund total revenues for the year and 10.3 percent of total governmental fund
balance.

e The City’s enterprise funds reported a combined ending net position of $150,072,040, an
increase of $11.7 million (8.4 percent) compared to the beginning of this year’s fund
balance amount. While proprietary funds revenue had a slight increase of $2.0 million (6.8
percent increase) compared to the prior year, total proprietary funds expenses decreased
$6.2 million or 15.1 percent. Additionally, taxes and special assessments increased $6.4
million compared to the prior year, a 76.2 percent increase.

e The City’s total bond debt had a net increase of $45,370,000 during fiscal year 2022. This
represents a 20.3 percent increase over the prior fiscal year, which is attributable to the
2021 Water Revenue Bond issued in October 2021 in the amount of $66,135,000 offset by
normal reduction in principal balances from required debt service payments.
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OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial section of this report includes four parts: 1) the independent auditors’ report on
financial statements and supplementary information; 2) this segment, management’s discussion
and analysis; 3) the basic financial statements; and 4) supplementary information. Within the basic
financial statements are two distinct types of financial statements, 1) the government-wide
financial statements, and 2) the fund financial statements. The notes to the basic financial
statements are also an integral part of the basic financial statements. The City’s basic financial
statements are presented in accordance with Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement
No. 34 (GASB 34), Basic Financial Statements and Management’s Discussion and Analysis for
State and Local Governments, as amended.

Immediately following the required supplementary information, the supplementary information
includes balance sheets and income statements for nonmajor governmental funds, internal service
funds, as well as other budgetary information.

Government-wide Financial Statements: The government-wide financial statements provide a
view of City finances as a whole, similar to a private-sector business. These statements include the
Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities.

The Statement of Net Position includes all of the City’s assets, liabilities, and deferred inflows
and outflows of resources, with the difference reported as net position. Net position (and the related
change in net position from year to year) is one of the most important financial measurements to
enable understanding of the financial position of the City, and whether financial position improves
or deteriorates each year. To assess the overall health of the City, additional non-financial factors
such as changes in the property tax base, the condition of the City’s infrastructure, etc. should be
considered.

The Statement of Activities shows how the City’s net position changed as a result of its operations
during the most recent fiscal year. To understand the basis of how these numbers are determined,
it is important to note that changes in net position are reported whenever an event occurs that
requires a revenue or expense to be recognized, regardless of when the related cash is received or
disbursed (the accrual basis of accounting). For example, most revenues are reported when the
revenues are legally due, even though they may not be collected for some time after that date; and
an obligation to pay a supplier is reported as an expense when the goods or services are received,
even though the bill may not be paid until sometime later.

There are two distinct types of activities reflected in the government-wide statements: 1)
governmental activities; and 2) business-type activities. Governmental activities are those
supported primarily by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, while business-type activities are
those in which all costs (or at least a significant portion of costs) are intended to be recovered
through user fees and charges. The governmental activities for the City include General
Government (Council, Mayor, City Attorney, Human Resources, Technical Services, Budget,
Debt and Grants, Building, Economy, Community, Environment, Planning, Engineering, Finance,
Quinns Recreation Complex and Non-departmental); Public Safety (Police and Communications
Center); Public Works (Streets, Snow Removal, Parks, Building Maintenance); Library and
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Recreation. The business-type activities include Water, Stormwater, Transportation and Parking,
and Golf Course. The Park City Municipal Building Authority, the Park City Redevelopment
Agency, the Park City Housing Authority and the Park City Water Service District are chartered
under Utah law as separate governmental entities. However, the government-wide financial
statements include the financial statements of these entities, since the City Council is the appointed
board for all four agencies, and these entities are financially accountable to the City. The
government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 26-27 of this report.

Fund Financial Statements: The accounts of the City are organized on the basis of funds, each
of which is considered a separate accounting entity. The operations of each fund are accounted for
with a separate set of self-balancing accounts that comprise its assets, deferred outflows of
resources, liabilities, deferred inflows of resources, fund equity, revenues and expenditures, or
expenses, as appropriate. Government resources are allocated to and accounted for in individual
funds based on the purposes for which the funds are to be spent as well as by how the activities
are to be controlled. The three broad categories of funds are: governmental funds, proprietary funds
and fiduciary funds.

Governmental Funds — At the fund level, the focus is on changes in short-term spendable
resources and the balance available to spend, rather than the long-term focus used for determining
government-wide numbers. Because the focus is so different between fund statements and
government-wide statements, reconciliation between the two types of statements is necessary to
understand how the numbers differ. Such reconciliations are provided for the reader on pages 30
and 32. The City has four governmental type funds. These are the general fund, special revenue
funds, the debt service funds and the capital projects funds. Four of these are considered major
funds: General Fund, Sales Tax Revenue and Refunding Debt Service Fund, Park City General
Obligation Debt Service Fund and Capital Projects Improvement Fund. The basic governmental
fund financial statements can be found on pages 29-33. A summary of other funds (nonmajor
funds) is combined into one “Nonmajor Governmental Funds” column. The composition of the
nonmajor funds is shown in the combining statements later in the report in the supplementary
information section on pages 90-100.

e The General Fund is used to account for all financial resources of the City that are not
accounted for by a separate specialized fund. More specifically, the general fund is used to
account for ordinary operations such as collection of tax revenues and general government
expenditures. The City adopts an annual appropriated budget for the general fund. On page
33, a budgetary comparison statement has been provided for the general fund to
demonstrate budgetary compliance.

e Special Revenue Funds are used to account for specific revenue sources that are restricted
to expenditures for specific purposes.

o Debt Service Funds are used to account for the accumulation of resources for the payment
of general obligation bonds, special assessment bonds and sales tax revenue and refunding
bonds. Therefore, this fund is set up to accumulate the resources used to pay both the
interest and principal on bond debt.
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Capital Projects Funds are used to account for financial resources to be used for the
acquisition or construction of major capital improvements. These funds do not account for
capital improvements financed by the proprietary funds.

Proprietary Funds — These funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide
financial statements, only in more detail. The City uses both enterprise funds and internal service
funds. The basic proprietary fund financial statements can be found on pages 35-39 of this report.

Enterprise Funds are used to account for operations (a) that are financed and operated in
a manner similar to private business enterprises where the intent of the governing body is
that the costs (expenses, including depreciation) of providing goods or services to the
general public on a continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily through user
charges; or (b) where the governing body has decided that periodic determination of
revenues earned, expenses incurred and/or net income is appropriate for capital
maintenance, public policy, management control, accountability or other purposes. The
City currently operates enterprise funds for the City-owned water system, storm water
system, public transportation system (bus and trolley system) and paid parking system, and
golf course.

Internal Service Funds are used to account for the central financing of goods or services
provided to various departments of the City or other governments on a cost-reimbursement
basis. The City currently has two internal service funds. The Fleet Services Fund provides
vehicle storage, repair and maintenance. The Self-Insurance Fund was established to allow
the City to supplement its regular insurance coverage. Because both of these services
predominantly benefit governmental rather than business-type functions, they have been
included within governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. The
combining statements for internal service funds can be found on pages 102-104 of this
report.

Fiduciary Funds — These funds are used for assets the City receives wherein the City has
temporary custody. Custodial funds are used to account for assets held by the City as an agent for
individuals, private organizations, other governments and/or other funds and do not involve
measurement of results of operations (assets equal liabilities). The basic fiduciary fund financial
statements can be found on pages 41-42 of this report.

Notes to the basic Financial Statements contain additional information important to a complete
understanding of the information contained in the government-wide and fund financial statements.
Notes to the basic financial statements are located after the basic financial statements as listed in
the table of contents.
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FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CITY AS A WHOLE

Park City Municipal Corporation
Net Position

June 30, 2022 and 2021

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
Current and other assets $ 188,700,001 § 151,875,537 § 95511,669 $ 51,238,900 § 284,211,670 § 203,114,437
Capital assets(net) 337,795,780 339,137,342 229,658,645 198,880,789 567,454,425 538,018,131
Total assets 526,495,781 491,012,879 325,170,314 250,119,689 851,666,095 741,132,568

Deferred outflows

of resources 3,008,825 2,201,112 1,305,236 999,227 4,314,061 3,200,339
Total assets and deferred

outflows of resources 529,504,606 493,213,991 326,475,550 251,118,916 855,980,156 744,332,907
Current and other liabilities 21,513,363 17,443,700 15,895,665 13,272,975 37,409,028 30,716,675
Long-term liabilities 127,693,440 141,842,535 156,356,015 97,426,579 284,049,455 239,269,114

Total liabilities 149,206,303 159,286,235 172,251,680 110,699,554 321,458,483 269,985,789

Deferred inflows

of resources 46,054,988 30,875,714 3,662,572 2,019,521 49,717,560 32,895,235
Total Liability and deferred

inflows of resources 195,261,791 190,161,949 175,914,252 112,719,075 371,176,043 302,881,024
NET POSITION
Net investment in 237,974,910 228,182,259 88,280,161 15,263,564 326,255,071 243,445,823

capital assets
Restricted 7,597,310 7,629,799 - - 7,597,310 7,629,799
Unrestricted 88,670,595 67,239,984 62,281,137 123,136,277 150,951,732 190,376,261

Total net position

$ 334,242,815

$ 303,052,042

$ 150,561,298

$ 138,399,841

$ 484,804,113

$ 441,451,883

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial
position. At June 30, 2022, the City’s assets and deferred outflows exceeded liabilities and deferred
inflows by $484,804,113, an increase of $43.4 million from prior fiscal year. This would indicate
an improved financial position in comparison to last fiscal year. At June 30, 2022, approximately
67.3 percent of these amounts are represented by the investment in capital assets, less debt still
outstanding relating to acquisition of those assets (see subsections explaining capital assets and
debt below). Due to the nature of these assets (long-term assets which are not readily convertible
to liquid assets) they are not considered to be available for spending or appropriation. Although
the City’s investment in capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be understood that
the repayment of this debt does not come from the capital assets themselves but comes from other
resources. The increase in the City’s net investment in capital assets of $82.8 million was primarily
due to ongoing construction of Three Kings water treatment plant, Quinn’s Junction water



PARK CITY MUNICIPAL CORPORATION, UTAH
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED), Continued
June 30, 2022

treatment plant, and routine acquisitions of capital assets combined with repayments of the related
debt and depreciation expense.

Restricted net position of $7,597,310 at June 30, 2022 represents resources that are subject to
external restrictions on how they may be used. The balance in restricted net position is consistent
with the prior fiscal year.

The other sub-classification of net position is unrestricted. The unrestricted balance of
$150,951,732 at June 30, 2022 denotes that this amount may be used to meet general, on-going
financial obligations without constraints established by debt covenants or other legal requirements.
Unrestricted net position decreased $39.4 million from last fiscal year. The reasons for this overall
decrease are discussed in the following sections for governmental activities and business-type
activities.

The following graph depicts the percentage of restricted and unrestricted net position as discussed
above.

Net Position Percentage

June 30,2022 and 2021
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capital assets
OFY 2022 67.3% 1.6% 31.1%
BFY 2021 55.2% 1.7% 43.1%
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Park City Municipal Corporation
Changes in Net Position
June 30, 2022 and 2021

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
REVENUES
Program revenues:
Charges for services $ 8789270 $ 6,794,007 $ 30,996,557 $ 28961423 $§ 39,785827 $ 35,755430
Operating grants and
contributions 711,048 3,315,938 5,661,227 10,654,184 6,372,275 13,970,122
Capital grants and
contributions 2,265,605 2,547,350 2,431,291 5,835,341 4,696,896 8,382,691
General revenues:
Property tax, levied for
general purposes 18,496,739 17,977,155 - - 18,496,739 17,977,155
Property tax, levied for
debt service 9,509,688 9,506,281 - - 9,509,688 9,506,281
General sales and use tax 9,234210 7,161,106 10,644,790 5,280,075 19,879,000 12,441,181
Franchise tax 3,526,042 3,253,431 - - 3,526,042 3,253,431
Resort tax 24,934,554 18,004,460 4243253 3,168,369 29,177,807 21,172,829
Investment earnings 651,862 739,741 374,145 358,905 1,026,007 1,098,646
Miscellaneous 3,622,380 4,170,268 120470 171,514 3,742,850 4,341,782
Gain/(loss) on sale of
capital assets 64,291 (786,184) (1,052,809) 32,379 (988,518) (753.,805)
Total revenues 81,805,689 72,683,553 53,418,924 54,462,190 135,224,613 127,145,743
EXPENSES
Governmental activities:
General government 26,040,817 25,563,919 - - 26,040,817 25,563,919
Public safety 7,919,533 7,114,475 - - 7,919,533 7,114 475
Public works 7,208,853 6,615,287 - - 7,208,853 6,615,287
Library and recreation 6,195,430 5,527,008 - - 6,195,430 5,527,008
Interest on long-term debt 3,965,283 4,685,097 - - 3,965,283 4,685,097
Business-type activities:
Water Fund - - 21,214,590 24,406,117 21,214,590 24,406,117
Stormwater Fund - - 1,198,846 1,054,170 1,198,846 1,054,170
Golf Course Fund - - 1,645,691 1,641,690 1,645,691 1,641,690
Transportation
Parking Fund - - 16,483,340 18,208,111 16,483,340 18,208,111
Total expenses 51,329,916 49,505,786 40,542,467 45,310,088 91,872,383 94,815,874
Change in net position
before transfers 30,475,773 23,177,767 12,876,457 9,152,102 43352230 32,329,869
Transfers 715,000 715,000 (715,000) (715,000) - -
Change in net position 31,190,773 23,892,767 12,161,457 8,437,102 43352230 32,329,869
Total net position - beginning 303,052,042 279,159,275 138,399,841 129,962,739 441,451,883 409,122,014
Total net position - ending $ 334242815 §$ 303,052,042 $ 150,561,298 $ 138,399,841 § 484,804,113 $ 441,451,883
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The City’s overall net position increased $43,352,230 from the prior fiscal year. The reasons for
this overall increase are discussed in the following sections for governmental activities and
business-type activities.

Net position from governmental activities increased $31,190,773 in fiscal year 2022, an increase
of $7.3 million compared to prior year’s change in net position, for an ending balance of
$334,242,815. The current year increase is due, in part, to a $9.0 million increase in general sales
and use and resort taxes which is in line with the City’s rebound in tourism. Expenses for
governmental activities increased $1.8 million. The reasons for this increase are discussed in the
following section for governmental activities.

Net position from business-type activities increased $12,161,457 in fiscal year 2022, an increase
of $3.7 million compared to prior year’s change in net position, for an ending balance of
$150,561,298. The current year increase is due, in part, to a $6.4 million increase in general sales
and use and resort taxes. Additionally, total expenses for business-type activities decreased $4.8
million. Further details of changes in revenues and expenses are discussed in the following section
for business-type activities.

Revenues — For the year ended June 30, 2022, the City’s government-wide total revenues are
$135,224,613, an increase of $8.1 million from prior fiscal year’s revenue of $127,145,743.

Key elements of this change were as follows:

e  Ofthe City’s total revenues, approximately 59.6 percent resulted from taxes, of which the
majority was from property and resort taxes as shown in the following table:

Government-wide Tax Revenues

2022 2021
Property tax, levied for general purposes $ 18,496,739 $ 17,977,155
Property tax, levied for debt service 9,509,688 9,506,281
General sales and use tax 19,879,000 12,441,181
Franchise tax 3,526,042 3,253431
Resort tax 29,177,807 21,172,829
Total $ 80,589,276 $ 64,350,877

e  Charges for services had an increase of $4.0 million from prior fiscal year and represented
29.4 percent of total revenues. The $4.0 million increase was due, in part, to a $2.7 million
increase in transit and parking revenues. Due to decreased ridership related to COVID-19
restrictions, the City received significantly less in regional transit revenue in the prior
fiscal year. During the current fiscal year, many of the restrictions were released and
ridership rebounded. Additionally, parking revenues increased due to the discontinuation
of the parking fee moratorium that was in effect for part of the previous fiscal year. Water
revenues slightly decreased by $0.9 million due in large part to conservation efforts that
the City implemented to combat the historic drought occurring in the west.

12
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e  Operating and capital contributions and grants decreased $11.3 million from prior fiscal
year and represented 8.2 percent of total revenues. The $11.3 million decrease was due, in
part, to decreased intergovernmental contributions and decreased CARES Act funding
from the federal government as compared to the prior fiscal year.

e Investment and other income, which is a combination of interest earnings and changes in
the fair value of investments, and other miscellaneous income sources decreased slightly
by $0.9 million from the prior fiscal year and represented 2.8 percent of total revenues.
The decrease is primarily due to a decrease in the City’s portion of the flagstaff transfer
fee.

Government-Wide Revenues by Source

June 30, 2022 and 2021
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Expenses — The City’s government-wide total expenses cover a range of services. For the year
ended June 30, 2022, the City’s total expenses were $91,872,383 compared to the prior fiscal year
of $94,815,874. Of the $2.9 million decrease, business-type activities decreased $4.8 million,
primarily due to a $3.2 million decrease in water fund expenses related to non-capitalizable
expenses in the prior fiscal year not realized in the current fiscal year. Additionally, the
transportation and parking fund decreased by $1.7 million due to a decrease in transit services as
described below. Total expenses for Golf Course Fund and Stormwater Fund remained relatively
unchanged from prior fiscal year. These decreases were offset by an increase in governmental
activities expenses of $1.8 million. The $1.8 million increase was attributable to an $0.8 million
increase in public safety, $0.6 million increase in public works and a $0.7 million increase in
library and recreation primarily due to increased salaries and benefits. General government
remained relatively unchanged from prior fiscal year.
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Governmental Activities: As shown in the chart and table below, revenues generated by the
City’s programs are not sufficient to cover the costs. The City relies on property taxes, sales taxes,
investment income and other general revenues to cover the costs associated with the various

programs.
Governmental-Type Activities Program Revenue and Expenses
30
25 +—
E 20— O Expenses
= 15 1| B Program Revenue
= 10 +—
s || T
| Al
General Public safety ~ Public works Library & Interest on Long
government Recreation Term Debt
Park City Municipal Corporation Costs of Government Activities
Total Cost of Services Net Cost of Services
2022 2021 2022 2021
General government $ 26040817 § 25563919 $ (18250,848) § (15,801,390)
Public safety 7,919,533 7,114,475 (7,804,334) (7,008,101)
Public works 7,208,853 6,615,287 (6,460,660) (6,240,568)
Library and recreation 6,195,430 5,527,008 (3,082,362) (3,113,335)
Interest on long term debt 3,965,283 4,685,097 (3,965,283) (4,685,097
Total $ 51,329916 $ 49,505,786 $ (39563993) § (36,848,491

The City’s governmental activities increased net position by $31.2 million. Key elements of this
increase were as follows:

Revenue Highlights:

Taxes comprise the largest source of revenue for the City’s governmental activities:
$65,701,233 or 80.3 percent in fiscal year 2022 of total governmental activities revenues, an
increase of $9.8 million from prior fiscal year. This increase is primarily related to an increase
in general sales and use tax and resort tax revenues. Park City saw a dramatic increase in
tourism due to people looking for outdoor recreation opportunities due to the pandemic. Of
total taxes, real property taxes are $28,006,427 or 42.6 percent in fiscal year 2022.
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e Charges for services were $8,789,270 and represented 10.7 percent of total governmental
activities revenues in fiscal year 2022, and an increase of $2.0 million from prior fiscal year.
Approximately $1.0 million of the current year increase is attributable to an overall increase in
building activity. Building permit fees, plan check fees, and planning applications all increased
as compared to the previous fiscal year.

e Total governmental operating and capital grant and contribution revenues were $2,976,653,
representing 3.6 percent of total governmental activities revenue in fiscal year 2022, and a net
decrease of $2.9 million from prior fiscal year. The net decrease was the result of the receipt
of CARES Act funds of $3.2 million in fiscal year 2021 which was not received again in fiscal
year 2022.

Expense Highlights:

e General government expenses were $26,040,817 in fiscal year 2022, representing 50.7 percent
of total governmental expense. General government expenses were consistent from the prior
fiscal year.

e Public Safety expenses were $7,919,533 in fiscal year 2022, representing 15.4 percent of total
governmental expense and an increase of $0.8 million from the prior fiscal year. The increase
is due to an increase in salaries and benefits. In an effort to combat the competitive job market
and employee shortages, the City increased several department’s budgets to retain and attract
talent.

e Public Works expenses were $7,208,853 in fiscal year 2022, representing 14.0 percent of total
governmental expense and an increase of $0.6 million from the prior fiscal year. The increase
1s due to an increase in salaries and benefits. In an effort to combat the competitive job market
and employee shortages, the City increased several department’s budgets to retain and attract
talent.

e Library and Recreation expenses were $6,195,430 in fiscal year 2022, representing 12.1
percent of total governmental expenses and an increase of $0.7 million from the prior fiscal
year. The increase is due to an increase in salaries and benefits. In an effort to combat the
competitive job market and employee shortages, the City increased several department’s
budgets to retain and attract talent.
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Business-type Activities: As show in the chart and table below, program revenues generated by
the Water, Stormwater and Golf Course funds are sufficient to cover the costs of service. The
Transportation and Parking fund relies on miscellaneous revenues and contributions and fund
balances to cover the service costs.

Business-Type Funds Program Revenues and Expenses

25
20
g 15 I
=
E O Expenses
10
BProgram Revenue
5
] — | -
Water Stormwater Golf Course Transportation
and Parking
Park City Municipal Corporation Costs of Business-Type Activities
Total Cost of Services Net Cost of Services
2022 2021 2022 2021
Water Fund § 21214590 § 24,406,117 $ 215143 § 425,475
Stormwater Fund 1,198,846 1,054,170 556,785 829,618
Golf Course Fund 1,645,691 1,641,690 277,061 280,558
Transportation and Parking Fund 16,483,340 18,208,111 (2,502,381) (1,394,791)
Total § 40,542,467 § 45,310,088 $ (1,453,392) § 140,860

The City’s business-type activities increased net position by $12.2 million. Key elements of this
increase were as follows:

Revenue Highlights:

*

Charges for services for business-type activities were $30,996,557, representing 58.0 percent
of total business-type revenue, an increase of 2.0 million from prior fiscal year. A significant
portion of the increase is related the Transportation and Parking Fund. Parking revenues
increased approximately $1.0 million due the end of the moratorium on parking fees initiated
during the pandemic. Additionally, regional transit revenues bounced back from the low of the
previous year with increased ridership and decreased restrictions. The Water Fund saw a slight
decrease in charges for services in the current fiscal year of $0.9 million. This decrease was a
direct result of conservation efforts the City implemented to combat the extreme drought that
the west is experiencing.
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Operating and capital grants and contributions were $8,092,518 representing 15.2 percent of
total business-type revenue, a decrease of approximately $8.4 million from prior fiscal year.
The decrease is primarily due to a decrease in intergovernmental funds received by the
Transportation department. During the height of the pandemic, the funding was significant
and that level of funding was not repeated in the current fiscal year.

Combined general sales and use tax and resort tax revenue were $14,888,043, representing
27.8 percent of total business-type revenue, an increase of approximately $6.4 million from
prior fiscal year. The increase is attributable to a change in how Summit County distributes the
Additional Mass Transit Tax. In previous years, the County held onto the money and now
those funds are passed directly to the City on a monthly basis.

Expense Highlights:

Salaries and benefits for business-type activities were $12,037,382 representing 34.6 percent
of total business-type operating expenses, a decrease of approximately $0.5 million from prior
fiscal year. The most significant portion of the decrease is due to a decrease in transit services.
During the current fiscal year, Summit County took over the regional routes that the City had
historically covered. Due to this change in service area, the transit department reduced staff
through natural attrition without replacing vacant positions.

Supplies, maintenance and service expense were $13,723,949 representing 39.4 percent of total
business-type operating expenses, a decrease of $6.0 million from prior fiscal year. Water Fund
expenses for supplies, maintenance and services decreased by $5.8 million from prior fiscal
year. The decrease is due to a decrease in noncapitalizable expenses related to a regional water
agreement. The City entered into an agreement to pay for sizable operating and maintenance
costs with a regional partner that were not repeated in the current fiscal year. The change in
the remaining funds is consistent with the prior fiscal year.
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FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CITY’S FUNDS

Governmental Funds: The focus of the City’s governmental funds is to provide information on
near-term inflows, outflows and balances of resources available for appropriation. Such
information is useful in assessing the City’s financing requirements. GASB Statement No. 54,
Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions, establishes criteria for
classifying fund balances into specifically defined classifications and clarifies definitions for
governmental funds. GASB Statement No. 54 requires that the fund balances be classified into
categories based upon the type of restrictions imposed on the use of funds. The City classified fund
balances into the following five categories: nonspendable, restricted, committed, assigned and
unassigned. In particular, unassigned fund balance is a useful measure of the City’s net resources
available for spending at the end of the fiscal year. More detailed information about GASB
Statement No. 54 is presented in Note A, Section 5, starting on page 47.

As of June 30, 2022, the aggregate fund balance of the City’s governmental funds was
$137,766,409, an increase of $18.2 million in comparison with the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021.
As of June 30, 2022, $14,145,271 or 10.3 percent of this amount is in unassigned fund balance.
Unassigned fund balance category is available for appropriation by the City Council at their
discretion.

Nonspendable fund balance includes amounts that cannot be spent because they are either not in
spendable form or legally or contractually required to remain intact. Nonspendable fund balance
is $525,846 in fiscal year 2022, an increase of $0.5 million from the prior fiscal year. The increase
is primarily due to and increase in prepaids and leases receivable.

Restricted fund balance has externally enforceable limitations on use and is not available for new
spending. Restricted fund balance is $33,261,187 in fiscal year 2022, consistent with the prior year
balance. Restricted capital improvement funds will be used to pay for several large dollar
construction projects in future fiscal years.

The remainder of the fund balance of $89,834,105 is committed. Of the total committed fund
balance, $84,757,785 is committed to capital projects, $2,347,208 is committed to debt service and
$2,729,112 is committed to economic development.

The General Fund is the principal operating fund of the City. A recent change to the Utah State
code establishes a 5.0 percent minimum ($2,137,322) and a 35.0 percent maximum ($14,961,251)
limit to the amount that may be accumulated as the fund balance in the General Fund. As of June
30, 2022 the unassigned fund balance of the General Fund was $14,145,271 and was $815,980
below the 35.0 percent limit. The unassigned fund balance increased by $504,423 in 2022.

As of June 30, 2022, the restricted fund balance in the Capital Improvements Fund was
$7,538,370 and the committed fund balance was $76,994,620. The restricted balance is the amount
of unspent general obligation bond proceeds, B&C road funds and impact fees that are restricted
to certain projects. This amount will decrease as bond funds are spent each year. The committed
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balance is the amount of funds budgeted for capital projects. This amount will change based on
current projects approved by City Council.

As of June 30, 2022, the restricted fund balance in the Sales Tax Revenue and Refunding Bonds
Debt Service Fund was $25,662,133 and the committed fund balance was $742,145. The fund
balances remained constant from prior fiscal year. The restricted balance is the amount held in
trust by a third party to either make bond payments or hold in reserve until the City requisitions
the funds for expenditures made on approved projects identified in the bond agreements. The
committed balance is the amount of funds budgeted for capital projects. This amount will change
based on current projects approved by City Council.

As of June 30, 2022, the restricted fund balance in the General Obligation Bonds Debt Service
Fund was $1,744 and the committed fund balance was $1,605,063. The fund balances remained
constant from prior fiscal year. The restricted balance is the amount held in trust by a third party
to make bond payments. The committed balance is the amount of funds budgeted for capital
projects. This amount will change based on current projects approved by City Council.

General Fund Components of Fund Balance

June 30, 2022 and 2021
100
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80
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g 60
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E 40
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) Unassigned Committed Restricted Nonspendable
OFY 2022 14,145,271 89,834,105 33,261,187 525,846
BFY 2021 13,640,848 72,600,998 33,287,521 55,487
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Proprietary Funds: The City’s proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in
the government-wide financial statements, but in more detail.

Net position of the City’s enterprise funds totaled $150,072,040 at June 30, 2022, as compared to
$138,407,381 at the end of fiscal year 2021. Net position at the end of fiscal year 2022 and 2021

for each of these funds were:

Park City Municipal Corporation Proprietary Funds

Net Position Change
2022 2021
Water $ 70,695382 $§ 71,004,877 $ (309,495)
Stormwater 10,287,856 9,729,686 558,170
Golf Course 3,614,635 3,191,640 422,995
Transportation and Parking 65,474,167 54,481,178 10,992,989
Total $ 150,072,040 $§ 138,407,381 $ 11,664,659

The increase in net position from the prior fiscal year was $11.7 million as compared to an increase
of $8.4 million in fiscal year 2021. The Transportation and Parking Fund was the primary reason
for the increase. The Fund received approximately $6.4 million more in transit taxes due to a
change in how Summit County distributes the Additional Mass Transit Tax. In previous years, the
County held onto the money and now those funds are passed directly to the City on a monthly
basis. Ending the moratorium on parking fees halfway through the previous fiscal year resulted in
an additional $1.0 million increase.

Water Fund net investment in capital assets increased by $32.1 million, and unrestricted net
position decreased by $32.4 million resulting in a slight decrease in net position from prior year.
The increase in net investment in capital assets was due to the acquisition of capital assets related
to ongoing water treatment plant construction offset by the repayment of related debt and
depreciation expense.

Stormwater Fund net investment in capital assets remained constant from prior fiscal year, and
unrestricted net position increased by $0.6 million. The increase was attributable to an increase in

revenues due to the Stormwater Fund stopping the subsidy placed on fees during the pandemic.

Golf Course Fund net investment in capital assets and unrestricted net position remained constant
from prior fiscal year.
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GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS

Park City budgets for full-time regular positions at the maximum wage each position could earn
for a full 40 hours per week for 52 weeks. However, due to vacant positions and some employees
being paid below the maximum allowed for a position, at any given time during the year, the City
spends approximately 7.0 percent less than is budgeted for personnel. This is referred to as the
vacancy factor. The majority of the adjustments in the budget this fiscal year were due to the
vacancy factor.

Differences between the original budget and the final amended budget for expenditures of
$1,594,172 (net increase) can be briefly summarized as follows:

o The $0.9 million increase in appropriations for general government and the $0.5 million
increase in appropriations for public safety was, in part, to adjust for increased salaries and
benefits. The remaining is due to a budget adjustment in the vacancy factor as mentioned
above. All other appropriation budget changes were minimal and related to normal
fluctuations in operations and internal service charges.

Total actual expenditures came in $2,064,283 below the final budget. All departments remained
within their legal spending authority. The differences between actual and the final budget can be
briefly summarized as follows:

o The final budget was $1.6 million more than the actual expenditures in general government
which can be attributed to higher than expected revenues from sales and resort taxes.

o The final budget was comparable to actual expenditures in public safety.

o The final budget was $0.4 million more than actual expenditures in public works. The
variance is attributable, in large part to budgeted salaries and benefits exceeding actual
expenditures.

o The final budget was comparable to actual expenditures in library and recreation.

Actual revenues of $42,746,442 were $1.1 million more than the budgeted revenues of
$41,597,048.
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CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Capital Assets: The City’s investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type
activities totaled $567,454,425 (net of $251,928,697 accumulated depreciation) at June 30, 2022,
as compared to $538,018,131 (net of $241,462,859 accumulated depreciation) at June 30, 2021.
This investment in capital assets includes land and water rights, buildings, improvements other
than buildings, vehicles and equipment, art, intangibles, infrastructure, right to use assets, and
construction in progress.

Major capital asset additions during the year ended June 30, 2022 included:

Governmental Activities:
e $1.5 million for Fleet replacement vehicles and equipment
e $0.5 million for the Rossie Hill Drive and Park Ave Reconstruction projects

Business-type Activities:
e $37.9 million for 3 Kings Water Treatment Plant

Park City Municipal Corporation Capital Assets (net of depreciation/amortization)

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021

Land and water rights $243,725,614  $243,725,614 $ 22,337,188  § 22,337,188 $266,062,802  $266,062,802
Construction in progress 6,973,608 5,473,653 98,559,100 60,243,372 105,532,708 65,717,025
Art 828,717 808,389 117,850 117,850 946,567 926,239
Right to use asset - - 3,380,984 3,380,984 3,380,984 3,380,984
Buildings 49,999,600 49,999,600 40,191,478 40,084,558 90,191,078 90,084,158
Improvements other than buildings 48,640,882 48,067,486 121,771,729 121,590,828 170,412,611 169,658,314
Vehicles and equipment 18,437,352 16,350,552 37,689,484 39,741,642 56,126,836 56,092,194
Infrastructure 117,721,822 118,551,560 - - 117,721,822 118,551,560
Intangibles 8,921,259 8,921,259 86,455 86,455 9,007,714 9,007,714
Accumulated depreciation (157,453,074)  (152,760,771) (94,475,623) (88,702,088) (251,928,6097)  (241,462,859)

Total Assets $337,795,780  $339,137,342 $229,658,645  $198,880,789 $567,454425  $538,018,131

Additional information on the City’s capital assets can be found in Note E-Capital Assets on pages
57-58 of this report.

Long-term Debt: At June 30, 2022, the City had $300,061,969 in long-term debt, an increase of
19.5 percent from fiscal year 2021. Of this amount, $75,916,839 is considered to be general
obligation debt and backed by the full faith and credit of the City. Debt that is secured solely by
specific revenue sources is $221,249,374. Additionally, as discussed in Note F-Long-term
Obligations on page 66, the City has a contract payable for $2,895,756.

22



PARK CITY MUNICIPAL CORPORATION, UTAH
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED), Continued
June 30, 2022

The City’s general obligation bonds, including the recent 2021 Series Bond, were assigned a rating
by Moody’s of Aaa, and confirmed at AA+ by Standard and Poor’s and AA+ by Fitch. Standard
and Poor’s has assigned a rating of AA- to the most recent Series 2015, 2017 and 2019 Sales Tax
Revenue Bonds. The City’s 2013, 2014, 2020 and 2021 Water Revenue Bonds are rated Aa2 by
Moody’s and AA by Standard and Poor’s. The City’s long-term debt for the fiscal years 2022 and
2021 were as follows:

Park City Municipal Corporation Outstanding Debt

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
General obligation bonds  $ 75,916,839  $§ 82,962,508  $ - 3 - § 75916839 $ 82,962,508
Revenue bonds 62,913,028 67,946,810 158,336,346 97,009,196 221,249,374 164,956,006
Contract payable - 2,895,756 3,039,674 2,895,756 3,039,674
Total debt $ 138,829,867  $ 150,909,318 $ 161,232,102  $ 100,048,370 $ 300,061,969  $ 250,958,188

The State of Utah mandates a general obligation debt limit of 4.0 percent of total assessed value
of $11,701,232,000. The current limitation for the City is $468,049,280 which is significantly in
excess of the City’s outstanding general obligation debt. The City’s net debt subject to this
limitation was $75,916,839 or 0.6 percent of total assessed value, leaving the amount available for
future indebtedness at $392,132,441. See Schedule 17 on page 123 of this report.

More detailed information about the City’s long-term liabilities is presented in Note F-Long-term
Obligations on pages 59-67 of this report.

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR’S BUDGET

e As of June 2022, the unemployment rate for Summit County (of which Park City is the
largest city) was 1.7 percent compared with the State unemployment rate of 2.0 percent, and
a national rate of 3.6 percent. This compares with a rate of 2.4 percent for Summit County
in June 2021. (Sources: Utah Dept. of Workforce Services and Bureau of Labor Statistics)

e The fiscal year 2022 City budget does not include a property tax increase. The City Council
recently adopted the certified tax rate for the General Fund. In accordance with Utah
Statutes, the certified tax rate is intended to generate the same amount of property tax
revenue as was received the prior fiscal year plus revenue for “new growth” occurring in the
City. All other revenue sources have been estimated on a conservative basis using a multi-
year trend analysis and assuming significant changes in the local economy due to ongoing
COVID-19 impacts. The City’s approach to budgeting includes preparation of a five-year
capital plan. The long-term nature of the City’s financial planning system allows decision
makers to better understand the true effect of policy decisions. One of the most powerful
aspects of the multi-year financial planning is its capability to recognize trends over time
and begin at an early point to consider the necessary steps to alter the long-term forecasted
position of the City.
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e The rates and fees for most services remained comparable for fiscal year 2022 compared
with the prior fiscal year. The most significant changes in rates were in the Water and
Stormwater Funds. In the Water Fund the water base and irrigation base rates were increased
3.0 percent. The energy surcharge remained flat at $0.55 per 1,000 gallons from prior fiscal
year. In the Stormwater Fund the Equivalent Surface Unit (ESU) charge increased 3.0
percent. The City anticipates rate increases each year over the next several years in order to
provide adequate working capital necessary to maintain the water and storm water systems.

Contacting City Management

This financial report is designed to give its readers a general overview of the City’s finances.
Questions regarding any information contained in this report or requests for additional financial
information should be addressed to Park City Municipal Corporation, Finance and Accounting
Department at P.O. Box 1480, Park City, Utah 84060-1480.
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Park City Municipal Corporation
Statement of Net Position
June 30, 2022

Primary Government

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash, cash equivalents and investments $ 104,675,838 $ 45,000,576 149,676,414
Restricted cash and cash equivalents, fiscal agent 25,909,090 36,993,114 62,902,204
Restricted cash, cash equivalents and investments, other 9,438,370 - 9,438,370
Taxes receivable 30,403,358 1,107,215 31,510,573
Accounts receivable 462,202 7,096,891 7,559,093
Notes receivable 247,910 - 247,910
Inventories 616,975 845,551 1,462,526
Prepaids 281,485 1,132,614 1,414,099
Lease receivable 96,201 - 96,201
Internal balances (489,258) 489,258 -
Total current assets 171,642,171 92,665,219 264,307,390
Noncurrent assets:
Notes receivable 4,477 - 4,477
Prepaids - 518,629 518,629
Lease receivable 10,704,579 - 10,704,579
Land and water rights 243,725,614 22,337,188 266,062,802
Construction in progress 6,973,608 98,559,100 105,532,708
Art 828,717 117,850 946,567
Right to use asset - 3,169,673 3,169,673
Buildings 29,915,261 29,997,280 59,912,541
Improvements other than buildings 22,305,217 60,923,107 83,228,324
Vehicles and equipment 6,228,730 14,545,343 20,774,073
Infrastructure 19,287,123 - 19,287,123
Intangibles 8,531,510 9,104 8,540,614
Net pension asset 6,348,774 2,327,821 8,676,595
Total noncurrent assets 354,853,610 232,505,095 587,358,705
Total assets 526,495,781 325,170,314 851,666,095
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred outflows of resources related to pensions 3,008,825 1,305,236 4,314,061
Total assets and deferred outflows of resources 529,504,606 326,475,550 855,980,156
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable 2,709,662 6,281,822 8,991,484
Accrued liabilities 6,724,410 4,393,097 11,117,507
Contract payable - 146,573 146,573
Compensated absences 754,291 279,173 1,033,464
General obligation bonds 6,590,000 - 6,590,000
Revenue bonds 4,735,000 4,795,000 9,530,000
Total current liabilities 21,513,363 15,895,665 37,409,028
Noncurrent liabilities:
Contract payable - 2,749,183 2,749,183
Compensated absences 188,573 65,486 254,059
General obligation bonds 69,326,839 - 69,326,839
Revenue bonds 58,178,028 153,541,346 211,719,374
Total noncurrent liabilities 127,693,440 156,356,015 284,049,455
Total liabilities 149,206,803 172,251,680 321,458,483
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Property taxes 25,384,115 - 25,384,115
Deferred gain on refunding 184,555 296,018 480,573
Deferred inflows of resources related to pensions 9,898,487 3,366,554 13,265,041
Deferred inflows of resources related to leases 10,587,831 - 10,587,831
Total deferred inflows of resources 46,054,988 3,662,572 49,717,560
Total liabilities and deferred inflows of resources 195,261,791 175,914,252 371,176,043
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 237,974,910 88,280,161 326,255,071
Restricted for:
Capital Projects 7,538,370 - 7,538,370
Other 58,940 - 58,940
Unrestricted 88,670,595 62,281,137 150,951,732
Total net position $ 334,242,815 $ 150,561,298 484,804,113

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Major Funds

General Fund - Accounts for all activities not accounted for by other funds of the City.
The General Fund accounts for the normal recurring activities of the City, (i.e., public
safety, public works, library, recreation, general government, efc.). The principal sources
of revenue for this fund are property taxes, sales and use taxes and franchise taxes.

Debt Service - Sales Tax Revenue and Refunding Bonds Fund - Accounts for the
accumulation of money for the repayment of the 2014B, 2015, 2017 and 2019 Sales Tax
Revenue and Refunding Bonds.

Debt Service - Park City General Obligation Bonds Fund - Accounts for the
accumulation of money for the repayment of 2013A, 2017, 2019 and 2020 General
Obligation Bonds. The principal source of revenue is property tax.

Capital Projects - Capital Improvements Fund - Accounts for the acquisition or
construction of major capital projects not accounted for in the proprietary funds. The
Capital Improvements Fund is used to account for capital projects of the City's general
government.
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Park City Municipal Corporation
Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet - Governmental Funds
to the Statement of Net Position
June 30, 2022

Fund balances of governmental funds

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net position are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported

in the funds.

Other long-term assets are not available to pay for current period expenditures and, therefore, are not reported in

the funds:

Taxes receivable

Interest receivable

Deferred outflows of resources related to pensions
Net pension asset

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of certain activities, such as insurance to
individual funds. The assets and liabilities of certain internal service funds are included in governmental

activities in the statement of net position.
Certain items not accounted for as unavailable under accrual accounting.

Pollution remediation liability not reported in the funds.

Noncurrent liabilities, including bonds payable and net pension obligations, are not due and payable in the
current period and, therefore, are not reported in the funds. Noncurrent liabilities at year-end consist of:

Compensated absences
Revenue bonds

General obligation bonds
Deferred bond premiums
Accrued interest on the bonds

Deferred inflows of resources related to pensions are applicable to future periods and, therefore, are not reported

in the funds:
Deferred gain on debt refunding
Deferred inflows of resources related to pensions

Net position of governmental activities

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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1,178,310
26,934

2,909,483

6,020,659

(889,482)
(57,550,000)
(67,585,000)
(13,694,867)

(1,200,951)

(184,555)

(9,511,640

$

$

137,766,409

337,795,780

10,135,386

2,379,348
252,387

(3,470,000)

(140,920,300)

(9,696,195)

334,242,815
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Park City Municipal Corporation

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in
Fund Balances - Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities

For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

Net change in fund balances - total government funds
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the statement of activities, the cost of
those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives as depreciation expense:

Capital outlay

Depreciation expense

In the statement of activities, only the gain or (loss) on the sale of capital assets is reported; whereas in the
governmental funds, proceeds from disposal or sale of assets increase financial resources.

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current financial resources are not reported as
revenues in the governmental funds:

Taxes receivable

Interest receivable

Unavailable revenue

Bond proceeds provide current financial resources to governmental funds, but issuing debt increases long-term
liabilities in the statement of net position. Premiums and discounts associated with the issuance of debt are
reported as other financing sources (uses) in the governmental funds, but in the statement of activities they are
deferred and amortized throughout the period during which the related debt is outstanding. Repayment of bond
principal is an expenditure in the governmental funds, but the repayment reduces liabilities in the statement of
net position:

Principal repayments of long-term debt

Amortization of bond premiums and discounts

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of current financial resources and,
therefore, are not reported as expenditures in governmental funds.

Governmental funds report pension contributions as expenditures. However, in the statement of activities, the
cost of pension benefits earned net of employee contributions is reported as pension expense:

Pension contributions
Actuarial calculated pension expense

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of certain activities, such as insurance and
fleet management, to individual funds. Internal service fund net gain of $848,607 less amount allocated to
business-type activities of $489,258 and reversal of prior year allocation of $7,540.

Change in net position of govenmental activities

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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4,816,944

(5,996,719)

167,677
12,432
(5,774)

10,820,000
1,356,388

711,298
2,880,034

$ 18,181,555

(1,179,775)

(161,787)

174,335

12,176,388

(1,943,084)

3,591,332

351,809
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Park City Municipal Corporation

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual

REVENUES
Taxes and special assessments
Licenses and permits
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Fines and forfeitures
Investment income
Rental and other
Miscellaneous

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
General government
Public safety
Public works
Library and recreation
Total expenditures
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Sale of capital assets
Transfers in
Transfers out
Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balances
Fund balances - beginning
Fund balances - ending

General Fund

For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

Budgeted Amounts Variance With Final
Original Final Actual Budget
28,987,610 $ 33,541,995 $ 33,100,980 $ (441,015)
4,163,017 4,163,017 4,670,531 507,514
155,304 662,854 644,560 (18,294)
2,987,426 2,987,426 3,652,733 665,307
3,113 3,113 28,843 25,730
103,495 103,495 146,438 42,943
76,219 76,219 383,563 307,344
58,929 58,929 118,794 59,865
36,535,113 41,597,048 42,746,442 1,149,394
21,524,296 22,384,463 20,762,811 1,621,652
7,160,876 7,641,608 7,527,330 114,278
6,660,690 6,770,715 6,342,372 428,343
4,779,299 4,928,547 5,028,537 (99,990)
40,131,161 41,725,333 39,661,050 2,064,283
(3,596,048) (128,285) 3,085,392 3,213,677
2,473 2,473 - (2,473)
2,950,291 2,950,291 2,950,291 -
(1,610,600) (5,060,901) (5,060,901) -
1,342,164 (2,108,137) (2,110,610) (2,473)
(2,253,884) (2,236,422) 974,782 3,211,204
13,755,291 13,755,275 13,755,275 -
11,501,407 $ 11,518,853 $ 14,730,057 $ 3,211,204

The notes to the financial statements are an intregral part of this statement.
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PROPRIETARY FUNDS

Major Funds

Water Fund - Accounts for the operations of the City's water utility.
Stormwater Fund - Accounts for the operations of the City’s storm water utility.
Golf Course Fund - Accounts for the operations of the City's golf course.

Transportation and Parking Fund - Accounts for the operations of the City's public
transportation (bus and trolley) system and paid parking system.
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ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash, cash equivalents and investments
Restricted cash, cash equivalents and investments,
fiscal agent
Accounts receivable
Taxes receivable
Inventories
Prepaids
Total current assets
Noncurrent assets:
Prepaids
Land and water rights
Construction in progress
Art
Right to use asset
Buildings
Improvements other than buildings
Vehicles and equipment
Intangible
Accumulated depreciation and amortization
Net pension asset
Total noncurrent assets
Total assets

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred outflows of resources related to pensions
Total assets and deferred outflows of resources

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Revenue bonds
Compensated absences
Contract payable
Total current liabilities
Noncurrent liabilities:
Accrued liabilities
Revenue bonds
Compensated absences
Contract payable
Total noncurrent liabilities
Total liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred inflows of resources related to pensions
Deferred inflows of resources related to debt

Total deferred inflows of resources

Total liabilities and deferred inflows of resources

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets
Unrestricted

Total net position

Park City Municipal Corporation
Statement of Net Position

Proprietary Funds
June 30, 2022

Governmental
Business-type Activities Activities
Transportation
Golf Course and Parking Total Enterprise Internal Service
Water Fund Stormwater Fund Fund Fund Funds Funds
§ 13,116,397 §$ 2,098,544  $ 1,533,074 § 28,252,561 § 45,000,576 $ 3,513,662
36,993,114 - - - 36,993,114 -
1,567,407 165,230 153 5,364,101 7,096,891 70,189
- - - 1,107,215 1,107,215 -
612,579 - 131,550 101,422 845,551 585,575
485,511 - - 647,103 1,132,614 -
52,775,008 2,263,774 1,664,777 35,472,402 92,175,961 4,169,426
- - - 518,629 518,629 -
17,785,588 - 828,451 3,723,149 22,337,188 -
97,618,196 105,440 - 835,464 98,559,100 -
8,636 - - 109,214 117,850 -
3,380,984 - - - 3,380,984 -
17,211,592 320,962 1,671,486 20,987,438 40,191,478 -
94,912,828 15,813,651 1,728,630 9,316,620 121,771,729 -
13,681,973 443,326 1,811,251 21,752,934 37,689,484 47,450
27,810 - - 58,645 86,455 -
(56,108,327) (8,504,696) (3,890,545) (25,972,055) (94,475,623) (47,450)
976,471 266,926 103,590 980,834 2,327,821 328,115
189,495,751 8,445,609 2,252,863 32,310,872 232,505,095 328,115
242,270,759 10,709,383 3,917,640 67,783,274 324,681,056 4,497,541
441,613 111,979 53,718 697,926 1,305,236 99,342
242,712,372 10,821,362 3,971,358 68,481,200 325,986,292 4,596,883
4,968,064 14,133 120,853 1,178,772 6,281,822 267,847
4,019,707 116,996 58,061 198,333 4,393,097 20,201
4,795,000 - - - 4,795,000 -
88,924 19,255 23,373 147,621 279,173 24,492
146,573 - - - 146,573 -
14,018,268 150,384 202,287 1,524,726 15,895,665 312,540
- - - - - 1,000,000
153,541,346 - - - 153,541,346 -
20,859 4,517 5,482 34,628 65,486 28,890
2,749,183 - - - 2,749,183 -
156,311,388 4,517 5,482 34,628 156,356,015 1,028,890
170,329,656 154,901 207,769 1,559,354 172,251,680 1,341,430
1,391,316 378,605 148,954 1,447,679 3,366,554 386,847
296,018 - - - 296,018 -
1,687,334 378,605 148,954 1,447,679 3,662,572 386,847
172,016,990 533,506 356,723 3,007,033 175,914,252 1,728,277
47,373,030 8,080,110 2,149,273 30,677,748 88,280,161 -
23,322,352 2,207,746 1,465,362 34,796,419 61,791,879 2,868,606
$§ 70695382 § 10,287,856 § 3,614,635 $§ 65474167 $§ 150,072,040 § 2,868,606

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Park City Municipal Corporation
Reconciliation of the Statement of Net Position - Proprietary Funds
To the Statement of Net Position
June 30, 2022

Net Position of enterprise funds $ 150,072,040

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net position are different because:
Certain internal service fund assets and liabilities included with business-type activities. 489,258

Net position of business-type activities $ 150,561,298

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

36



Park City Municipal Corporation
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position

Proprietary Funds
June 30, 2022
Governmental
Business-type Activities Activities
Transportation
Golf Course and Parking Total Enterprise Internal Service
Water Fund Stormwater Fund Fund Fund Funds Funds

OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for services $ 20,169,220 $ 1,755,631 $ 1,922,752 § 7,148954 $ 30,996,557 § 4,684,200
Miscellaneous - - 47215 73,255 120,470 -
Total operating revenues 20,169,220 1,755,631 1,969,967 7,222,209 31,117,027 4,684,200

OPERATING EXPENSES
Salaries and benefits 3,155,686 678,360 808,090 7,395,246 12,037,382 781,553
Supplies, maintenance and services 8,261,570 180,701 502,412 4,779,266 13,723,949 2,101,302
Energy and utilities 731,088 64,964 52,135 953,851 1,802,038 952,738
Depreciation and amortization 4,202,880 175,107 201,800 2,676,889 7,256,676 -
Total operating expenses 16,351,224 1,099,132 1,564,437 15,805,252 34,820,045 3,835,593
Operating income (loss) 3,817,996 656,499 405,530 (8,583,043) (3,703,018) 848,607

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)

Taxes and special assessments - - - 14,888,043 14,888,043 -
Operating grants and contributions - - - 5,661,227 5,661,227 -
Investment income 230,095 9,871 6,458 127,721 374,145 -
Gain (loss) on sale of capital assets - - 100,747 (1,153,556) (1,052,809) -
Interest expense (4,008,929) - - - (4,008,929) -
Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) (3,778,834) 9,871 107,205 19,523,435 15,861,677 -
Income before contributions and transfers 39,162 666,370 512,735 10,940,392 12,158,659 848,607
Capital contributions 1,260,513 - - 1,170,778 2,431,291 -
Transfers in - - 25,000 - 25,000 -
Transfers out (1,609,170) (108,200) (114,740) (1,118,181) (2,950,291) -
Change in net position (309,495) 558,170 422,995 10,992,989 11,664,659 848,607
Total net position - beginning 71,004,877 9,729,686 3,191,640 54,481,178 138,407,381 2,019,999
Total net position - ending $ 70695382 $§ 10,287,856 $ 3,614,635 $§  65474,167 § 150,072,040 $ 2,868,606

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Park City Municipal Corporation
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position -
Proprietary Funds to the Statement of Activities
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

Net changes in net position - total enterprise funds

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net position are different because:
Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of certain activities, such as insurance and
fleet management, to individual funds. Internal service fund net gain of $848,607 less amount allocated to

governmental activities of $359,350 and reversal of prior year allocation of $7,540.

Changes in net position of business-type activities

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Park City Municipal Corporation
Statement of Cash Flows
Proprietary Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

Governmental
Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds Activities
Transportation
Stormwater Golf Course and Parking Total Enterprise  Internal Service
Water Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds Funds
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash receipts from customers $ 19,946,601 $ 1,748,387 $§ 1971297 § 7,228,193 § 30,894,478 $§ 5,012,306
Payments to employees (3,635,052) (775,086) (842,445) (8,012,012) (13,264,595) (986,386)
Payments to suppliers (9,046,666) (151,254) (571,645) (5,225,599) (14,995,164) (3,611,624)
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 7,264,883 822,047 557,207 (6,009,418) 2,634,719 414,296
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING
ACTIVITIES
Transfers from other funds - - 25,000 - 25,000 -
Transfers to other funds (894,170) (108,200) (114,740) (1,118,181) (2,235,291) -
Transit and resort sales tax - - - 14,881,850 14,881,850 -
Operating grants - - - 8,096,381 8,096,381 -
Net cash provided (used) by noncapital financing activities (894,170) (108,200) (89,740) 21,860,050 20,767,940 -
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Impact fees, contributions and grants 1,260,513 - - 1,534,186 2,794,699 -
Acquisition and construction of capital assets (38,333,018) (32,653) (349,950) (510,472) (39,226,093) -
Principal paid on capital debt and interfund loan (10,088,918) - - - (10,088,918) -
Interest paid on capital debt and interfund loan (4,757,976) - - - (4,757,976) -
Proceeds from sales of capital assets - - 138,750 - 138,750 -
Issuance of debt 72,187,311 - - - 72,187,311 -
Net cash provided (used) by capital and related financing
activities 20,267,912 (32,653) (211,200) 1,023,714 21,047,773 -
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest received by investing activities 228,839 9,682 6,334 124,949 369,804 -
Net cash provided by investing activities 228,839 9,682 6,334 124,949 369,804 -
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 26,867,464 690,876 262,601 16,999,295 44,820,236 414,296
Balances - beginning of year 23,242,047 1,407,668 1,270,473 11,253,266 37,173,454 3,099,366
Balances - end of the year $ 50,109,511 § 2,098,544 $ 1,533,074 $ 28,252,561 $ 81,993,690 $ 3,513,662

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash provided
(used) by operating activities:

Operating Income (Loss) $ 381799 $ 656,499 § 405,530 $ (8,583,043) $ (3,703,018) $ 848,607
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net cash
provided (used) by operating activities:
Depreciation 4,202,880 175,107 201,800 2,676,889 7,256,676 -
Non-cash water interfund transfer to general fund (715,000) - - - (715,000) -
Pension related (505,284) (102,947) (61,921) (632,962) (1,303,114) (207,474)
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable 478,434 (7,244) 1,330 128,900 601,420 (13,242)
Inventory (34,847) - (4,904) 10,329 (29,422) (365,264)
Accounts and other payables (5,214) 94,411 (12,194) 374,273 451,276 149,028
Accrued liabilities 24,519 5,669 23,999 29,218 83,405 3,573
Compensated absences 1,399 552 3,567 (13,022) (7,504) (932)
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities $ 7264883 § 822,047 $ 557,207 § (6,009418) § 2,634719 § 414,296

NONCASH INVESTING, CAPITAL AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Included in investment income is an increase of $80,251 in fair value for the year ended June 30, 2021.

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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FIDUCIARY FUND

Custodial Fund - Used to hold deposits and performance bonds from individuals,
organizations and other governments.
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Park City Municipal Corporation
Statement of Fiduciary Net Position
Fiduciary Fund
June 30, 2022

ASSETS
Cash, cash equivalents and investments
Total assets

NET POSITION
Restricted for:

Individuals, organizations, and other governments
Total net position

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Custodial Funds
$ 3,048,750
3,048,750
3,048,750
$ 3,048,750




Park City Municipal Corporation
Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position
Fiduciary Fund
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

Custodial Funds
ADDITIONS
Contributions from individuals, organizations, and other governments $ 397,532
Total additions 397,532
DEDUCTIONS
Refunds to individuals, organizations, and other governments 1,110,988
Total deductions 1,110,988
Net decrease in fiduciary net position (713,456)
Net Position -- beginning of the year 3,762,206
Net Position -- end of the year $ 3,048,750

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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PARK CITY MUNICIPAL CORPORATION, UTAH
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2022

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A summary of the significant accounting policies consistently applied in the preparation of the
accompanying financial statements follows.

1. General Information

The Park City Municipal Corporation (the City) is a municipal corporation governed by an elected
mayor and five-member Council elected at large with staggered terms. The City was chartered March
15, 1884, under the provisions of the Utah Territorial Government. The Mayor is the administrative
authority by statute; however, that responsibility has been delegated to the City Manager by City
Ordinance. Therefore, the City operates under a Council-Manager form of government. The City
provides the following services as authorized in its charter: public safety (police), highways and
streets, cultural and recreational, library, public improvements, planning and zoning, public
transportation, public utilities (water and stormwater), golf and general administrative services.

2. Reporting Entity

These financial statements include the City and its component units. The City has considered all
potential component units for which it is financially accountable. The criteria to be considered in
determining financial accountability have been set forth in the Governmental Accounting Standards
Board’s (GASB) Statement No. 61. These criteria include (1) substantively the same governing body,
(2) the primary government and the component unit have a financial benefit or burden relationship, or
(3) management (below the level of the elected officials) of the primary government have operational
responsibility for the activities of the component unit.

Blended component units, although legally separate entities are so intertwined with the City that they
are, in substance, the same as the City. They have the same governing board and provide services
almost entirely to the City. They are reported as funds of the City. These are organizations for which
the City is financially accountable, and the relationship with the City is significant enough that
exclusions would possibly lead to misleading or incomplete financial statements.

Included in this report are the following blended component units:

The Park City Redevelopment Agency (RDA) was legally created by City ordinance pursuant to
the Utah Limited Purpose Local Government Entities-Community Development and Renewal
Agencies Act. The City Council is designated as the governing body of the RDA. The City has
accountability for all fiscal and operating activities of the RDA. The RDA currently has two special
revenue funds and two capital projects funds.

The Park City Municipal Building Authority (MBA) governing board is comprised of the same
individuals as the City Council and was created to provide a mechanism for financing City
facilities. The MBA acquires and/or builds facilities by borrowing money secured by a lease
agreement between the City and the Authority. The MBA currently has a capital projects fund. The
bond issuance authorizations are approved by the City Council and the legal liability for those
bonds remains with the City.

The Park City Housing Authority (HA) governing board is comprised of the same individuals as

the City Council and was created to accumulate funds for construction of affordable housing within
the City. The City has accountability for all fiscal and operating activities of the HA.
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PARK CITY MUNICIPAL CORPORATION, UTAH
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continued
JUNE 30, 2022

NOTE A — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Continued
The Park City Water Service District (WSD) governing board is comprised of the same individuals
as the City Council and was created to furnish municipal water service within the boundaries of the

District. The City has accountability for all fiscal and operating activities of the WSD.

3. Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net position and the statement of
activities) report information on all of the non-fiduciary activities of the City. Governmental activities,
which normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from
business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for support. Certain
eliminations have been made as prescribed by Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB)
Statement No. 34 for interfund activities. All internal balances in the statement of net position have
been eliminated except those representing balances between the governmental activities and the
business-type activities, which are presented as internal balances and eliminated in the total primary
government column. In the statement of activities, internal service fund transactions have been
eliminated except interfund services provided and used by business-type activities, which are not
eliminated.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function
or segment are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with
a specific function or segment. Program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants who
purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or
segment and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital
requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not properly included among
program revenues are reported instead as general revenues. Separate financial statements are provided
for governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds, even though the latter are excluded
from the government-wide financial statements. Major individual governmental funds and major
individual enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements.

4. Measurement Focus. Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement
focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund and fiduciary fund financial
statements. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred,
regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year
for which they are levied. Amounts received or recognized as a receivable at fiscal yearend are
included in the financial statements as taxes receivable and deferred inflows of resources. Grants and
similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider
have been met.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as
they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are
collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period.
For this purpose, the City considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days of
the end of the current fiscal period. Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred,
as under accrual accounting. However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to
compensated absences and claims and judgments, are recorded only when payment is due.
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PARK CITY MUNICIPAL CORPORATION, UTAH
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continued
JUNE 30, 2022

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Continued

Property taxes, franchise taxes, licenses, and interest associated with the current fiscal period are all
considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal
period. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied. Only the
portion of special assessments receivable due within the current fiscal period is considered to be
susceptible to accrual as revenue of the current period. All other revenue items are considered to be
measurable and available only when cash is received by the government.

The City reports the following major governmental funds:

The General Fund is the City’s primary operating fund. It is used to account for all financial
resources of the City not accounted for by a separate, specialized fund.

The Sales Tax Revenue and Refunding Bonds Debt Service Fund and the Park City General
Obligation Bonds Debt Service Fund are used to account for the accumulation of resources for the
payment of sales tax revenue bonded debt and general obligation debt.
The Capital Improvements Fund is used to account for financial resources to be used for the
acquisition or construction of major capital facilities (other than those financed by proprietary
funds, the Redevelopment Agencies or Municipal Building Authority).
The City reports the following major enterprise funds:
The Water Fund operates the water distribution system for residents of the City.
The Stormwater Fund operates the storm drain system for residents of the City.

The Golf Course Fund accounts for the operations of the City’s golf course.

The Transportation and Parking Fund accounts for the operations of the City’s public
transportation (bus and trolley) system and paid parking system.

Additionally, the City reports the following fund types:

Special Revenue Funds are used to account for specific revenue sources that are restricted to
expenditures for specific purposes. The City currently has the Lower Park Avenue
Redevelopment Agency and the Main Street Redevelopment Agency special revenue funds.
These funds account for redevelopment activities that are supported by property tax increment.

Capital Project Funds are used to account for the acquisition or construction of capital projects.
The City currently has the Lower Park Avenue Redevelopment Agency, the Main Street
Redevelopment Agency, the Municipal Building Authority, and the Equipment Replacement
capital project funds.

Internal Service Funds are used to account for the central financing of goods or services provided
to various departments of the City or other governments on a cost-reimbursement basis. The City
currently has two internal service funds. The Fleet Services Fund provides vehicle storage, repair
and maintenance. The Self-Insurance Fund was established to allow the City to supplement its
regular insurance coverage as further explained in Note K — Risk Management.
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PARK CITY MUNICIPAL CORPORATION, UTAH
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continued
JUNE 30, 2022

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Continued

Custodial Funds are used to account for the assets held by the City as a fiduciary activity.
Custodial funds use the economic resources measurement focus. The City currently has one
custodial fund. The Park City Custodial Fund is used to hold deposits and performance bonds.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items. Operating
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods
in connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues
of the enterprise funds and of the internal service funds are charges to customers for sales and services.
Operating expenses for enterprise funds and internal service funds include the cost of sales and
services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not
meeting this definition are reported as non-operating revenues and expenses.

5. Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources and Net Position/Fund Balance

Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments - Cash and investment management in the City is
administered by the City Treasurer in accordance with the Utah Money Management Act, Section 51-
7 of the Utah Code (see Note B — Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments). The City complies with
GASB 72, Fair Value Measurement and Application. The statement requires certain investments to
be reported at fair value and the change in fair value to be recognized as an increase or decrease to
investment assets and investment income. The City’s investment in the State Treasurer’s Pool has a
fair value approximately equal to the value of the pool shares. This pool is administered by the State
of Utah and is regulated by the Money Management Council under provisions of the Utah State Money
Management Act.

Capital Assets - Capital assets, which include property, plant, and equipment, infrastructure assets
(e.g., roads, bridges, sidewalks, and similar items) and intangible assets, are reported in the applicable
governmental or business-type activities columns in the government-wide financial statements.
Capital assets, other than infrastructure assets, are defined by the government as assets with an initial,
individual cost of more than $5,000 (amount not rounded) and an estimated useful life in excess of
two years. The government reports infrastructure assets on a network and subsystem basis.
Accordingly, the amounts spent for the construction or acquisition of infrastructure assets are
capitalized and reported in the government-wide financial statements regardless of their amount. In
the case of the initial capitalization of general infrastructure assets (i.e., those reported by
governmental activities) the government included all assets with acquisition dates as far back as June
30, 1980. Most of the City’s infrastructure assets were valued at historical cost (when available) or
estimated historical cost through back trending (i.e., estimating the current replacement cost of the
infrastructure to be capitalized and using an appropriate price-level index to deflate the cost to the
acquisition year or estimated acquisition year). As the City constructs or acquires additional capital
assets each period, including infrastructure assets, they are capitalized and reported at historical cost.

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially

extend assets lives are not capitalized. Donated capital assets, donated works of art and similar items
are recorded at acquisition value at the date of donation.
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PARK CITY MUNICIPAL CORPORATION, UTAH
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continued
JUNE 30, 2022

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Continued

Art represents a collection of the City and is therefore not depreciated. Property, plant, equipment and
intangible assets of the primary government are depreciated or amortized using the straight-line
method over the following estimated useful lives:

Assets Years
Buildings and improvements 20-75
Public domain infrastructure 20-30
System infrastructure 20-30
Vehicles, equipment and intangibles 3-25

Inventories and prepaid items - Inventories of supplies for the proprietary fund types consist
principally of items used in repairing and maintaining the water distribution system and transportation
equipment. Supplies inventories are valued at cost using the weighted average method. Inventory held
for retail sale in the Golf Course Fund is valued at lower-of-cost or market using the first-in, first-out
(FIFO) method. Inventories of governmental funds are recorded as expenditures when consumed
rather than when purchased.

Noncurrent Obligations - In the government-wide financial statements, and proprietary fund types in
the fund financial statements, noncurrent debt and other long-term obligations are reported as
liabilities in the applicable governmental activities, business-type activities, or proprietary fund type
statement of net position. Bond premiums, discounts and gains and losses on bond refunding, are
deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the effective interest method. Bonds payable
are reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount. Gains and losses on bond refunding are
reported as deferred inflows and outflows. Bond issuance costs are expensed in the period in which
they are incurred. The unamortized bond premiums/discounts at June 30, 2022 for governmental
activities were $13,694,867 and $14,701,346 for business-type activities and proprietary funds,
respectively. In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and
discounts during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported as other financing
sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other financing sources while discounts
on debt issuances are reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from
the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as current expenditures.

Pensions - For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and
deferred inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the
fiduciary net position of the Utah Retirement Systems Pension Plan (URS) and additions to/deductions
from URS's fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by
URS. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized
when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value.

Compensated Absences - Accumulated unpaid vacation is accrued based on the years of service of
each employee. Vacation is accumulated on a monthly basis and is fully vested when earned. The
maximum amount of accumulated accrued vacation hours is determined by the length of service of
each employee according to the following schedule:

0 to 5 years 192 hours
5 to 10 years 240 hours
10 plus years 288 hours
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PARK CITY MUNICIPAL CORPORATION, UTAH
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continued
JUNE 30, 2022

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Continued

Accumulated vacation cannot exceed these limits at the end of any calendar year and any vacation in
excess of this amount is forfeited. At retirement, death, or termination in good standing, all unpaid
vacation that has been accrued, up to the above limits, is paid. All vacation pay is accrued when
incurred in the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements. A liability for these
amounts is reported in governmental funds only if they have matured, for example, as a result of
employee resignations and retirements. There is no liability for unpaid accumulated sick leave since
the City does not have a policy to pay any amounts when employees separate from service.

Deferred Outflows of Resources or Deferred Inflows of Resources - In addition to assets, the
statement of financial position reports a separate section for deferred outflows of resources. This
separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of resources, represents a consumption of net
assets that applies to future periods and will not be recognized as an outflow of resources
(expense/expenditure) until then. In accordance with GASB Statement No. 68, Accounting and
Financial Reporting for Pensions, the government-wide statement of net position and the proprietary
fund statement of net position report deferred outflows of resources related to pensions.

In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position reports a separate section for deferred
inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources,
represents an acquisition of net assets that applies to future periods and will not be recognized as an
inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. The City has items which qualify for reporting in this
category. The governmental funds report unavailable revenue from property taxes, notes receivable,
and leases receivable. The government-wide statement of net position reports deferred inflows from
property taxes, pension related items, deferred gain on refunding of debt, and leases receivable.
Property taxes are deferred and recognized as an inflow of resources in the following fiscal year to
correspond with the period in which the taxes are levied. The deferred gain on refunding resulted from
the difference in the carrying value of the refunded debt and its reacquisition price. The proprietary
fund statement of net position reports items related to pensions.

Net Position Flow Assumption - Sometimes the City will fund outlays for a particular purpose from
both restricted and unrestricted resources. In order to calculate the amounts to report as restricted-net
position and unrestricted-net position in the government-wide and proprietary fund financial
statements, a flow assumption must be made about the order in which the resources are considered to
be applied. It is the City’s policy to consider restricted-net position to have been depleted before
unrestricted-net position is applied.

Fund Balance - Fund balances presented in the governmental fund financial statements represent the
difference between assets and deferred outflows of resources and liabilities and deferred inflows of
resources. GASB Statement No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type
Definitions, establishes criteria for classifying fund balances into specifically defined classifications
and clarifies definitions for governmental funds. GASB Statement No. 54 requires that the fund
balances be classified into categories based upon the type of restrictions imposed on the use of funds.
The City evaluated each of its funds at June 30, 2022, and classified fund balances into the following
five categories:

Nonspendable - Amounts that cannot be spent because they are (1) not in spendable form, such
as prepaid items, inventories and long-term receivables for which the payment of proceeds are
not restricted or committed with respect to the nature of the specific expenditures of that fund or
(2) legally or contractually required to be maintained intact.
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PARK CITY MUNICIPAL CORPORATION, UTAH
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continued
JUNE 30, 2022

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Continued

Restricted - Amounts that are restricted by external parties such as creditors or imposed by grants,
laws or regulations of other governments or imposed by law through constitutional provisions or
enabling legislation. The City has legislative restrictions on amounts collected and reported in
the City’s various governmental funds. As a result, these restrictions have been classified as
restricted for capital projects, debt service and drug and tobacco enforcement.

Committed - Amounts that can only be used for specific purposes pursuant to constraints imposed
by formal action (ordinance) of the City’s “highest level of decision-making authority”, which
the City considers to be the Park City Municipal City Council. Commitments may be changed
by the government by taking the same action that imposed the constraint initially.

Assigned - Amounts that have been allocated by action of the Park City Municipal City Council
through a resolution in which the City’s intent is to use the funds for a specific purpose, but that
do not meet the criteria to be classified as restricted or committed.

Unassigned - Amounts that constitute the residual balances that have no restrictions placed upon
them. If restrictions exceed available resources only deficit amounts are reported in the
unassigned category. The general fund is the only fund that reports a positive unassigned balance.

The City reduces restricted amounts first when expenditures are incurred for purposes for which both
restricted and unrestricted (committed, assigned or unassigned) amounts are available. The City
reduces committed amounts first, followed by assigned amounts and then unassigned amounts when
expenditures are incurred for purposes for which amounts in any of those unrestricted fund balance
classifications could be used.

The City does not have a minimum fund balance policy. Utah Code 10-6-116(4) requires that a
minimum fund balance of 5.0 percent of total revenues be maintained in the general fund.

Restricted Assets - Certain proceeds of the City’s Water Revenue and Refunding Bonds, as well as
certain resources set aside for their repayment, are classified as restricted assets on the proprietary
funds’ statement of net position because their use is limited by applicable bond covenants.

Proceeds of the City’s 2013 A and 2020 Series General Obligation Bonds in the amount of $5,635,596
are classified as restricted assets as well as impact fees of $1,485,187 and B and C road funds of
$417,587. Bond proceeds are restricted to acquiring and preserving undeveloped park and recreational
land and to acquire, construct, improve and modify pathways, roads and related improvements for use
by pedestrians and cyclists. The “reserve fund” account with a balance at June 30, 2022 of $1,744 is
used to report resources set aside to make up potential future deficiencies in the revenue bond debt
service account.

Proceeds of the City’s 2015, 2017 and 2019 Sales Tax Revenue Bonds are classified as restricted
assets on the governmental funds balance sheet because they are maintained in separate bank accounts
and their use is limited by applicable bond covenants. The “construction fund” account with a balance
at June 30, 2022 of $25,064,621 is used to report those proceeds of revenue bond issuances that are
restricted for the purpose of financing the cost associated with improvements and acquisition of open
space. The “reserve fund” account with a balance at June 30, 2022, of $742,145 is used to report
resources set aside to make up potential future deficiencies in the revenue bond debt service account.
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NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Continued

Water development fees are charged to new customers to pay for the cost of increasing the capacity
of the water system to meet the additional demand created by the connection of new customers. The
use of water development fees is legally restricted.

6. Budgets

State law requires the City Council to prepare and adopt budgets for all governmental and proprietary
funds. The City Manager submits to the Mayor and City Council a proposed operating budget for the
fiscal year commencing the following July 1. The operating budget includes proposed expenditures
and the proposed sources of revenues. Between May 1 and June 30, the City Council reviews and
adjusts the City Manager’s proposed budget. On or before June 30, a public hearing is held and the
budget is legally adopted through passage of an ordinance. Budgets are adopted below individual
department levels, but control of budget appropriations is exercised, under state law, at the department
level (General Government, Public Safety, Public Works and Library and Recreation).

After the budget is adopted, transfers of any unexpended appropriation amount between line items
within a major category are to be initiated and approved by each respective department. Transfers
between major categories and between programs within the same department and fund are to be
initiated by the respective departments and approved by the City Manager. Transfers between capital
improvement projects within the same fund are to be initiated by the individual designated as
responsible for the project and approved by the City Manager. Transfers that will result in a total
change in the appropriation for a project of more than 20.0 percent or if a project would be eliminated
by the transfer must be approved by the City Council. The City Council may reduce or increase the
budget of any fund by ordinance during the budget year. The City Council must hold a public hearing
to increase a fund’s budget before it can pass the ordinance. Utah State law prohibits the appropriation
of unassigned general fund balance until it exceeds the sum of 5.0 percent of the budgeted general
fund revenues. Until unassigned fund balance is greater than the above amount, it cannot be budgeted
but is used to provide working capital until tax revenue is received, meet emergency expenditures and
cover unanticipated deficits.

When the unassigned fund balance is greater than 35.0 percent of actual revenues, the excess must be
appropriated to capital projects determined to be in the best long-term interest of the City. During the
year, the General Fund budget was increased by $1,594,172 under the guidelines described above.
The supplemental appropriation was due to personnel expense increases.

Budgets are prepared on the modified accrual basis of accounting according to accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States (GAAP) for governmental funds. Budgets are not prepared for
the custodial fund since this fund is comprised only of deposits and performance bonds held by the
City. Encumbrance accounting is used by the City.

Each year the capital projects fund adjusted budget is comprised of new appropriations from the
current year and unexpended appropriations from the prior year, since unexpended capital projects
appropriations do not automatically lapse at yearend. Major capital project fund budgets included
$76,994,620 and non-major capital project fund budgets included $7,763,165 for a total of
$84,757,785 of prior-year unexpended capital projects appropriations. The adjusted capital projects
fund budget represents the amount available for expenditures in the current year. Future projects and
appropriations that are to come from funds available in future years are not reflected in the current
year budget.
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7. Implementation of New GASB Pronouncements

In June 2017 the GASB issued Statement No. 87, Leases. The objective of this Statement is to better
meet the information needs of financial statement users by improving accounting and financial
reporting for leases by governments. This Statement requires recognition of certain lease assets and
liabilities for leases that previously were classified as operating leases and recognized as inflows of
resources or outflows of resources based on the payment provisions of the contract. It establishes a
single model for lease accounting based on the foundational principle that leases are financings of the
right to use an underlying asset. The requirements of this Statement are effective for the reporting
periods beginning after June 15, 2021. The City adopted GASB No. 87 for the fiscal year ended June
30, 2022. Implementation of this Statement had minimal impact on the City’s financial statements.

In January 2020, the GASB issued Statement No. 92 Omnibus 202(. The objectives of this Statement
are to enhance comparability in accounting and financial reporting and to improve the consistency of
authoritative literature by addressing practice issues that have been identified during implementation
and application of certain GASB Statements. The requirements of this Statement are effective for
periods beginning after June 15, 2021. The City adopted GASB No. 92 for the fiscal year ended June
30, 2022. Implementation of this Statement had no effect on the City’s financial statements.

In March 2020, the GASB issued Statement No. 94 Public-Private and Public-Public Partnerships
and Availability Payment Arrangements. The objective of this Statement is to better meet the
information needs of financial statement users by improving the comparability of financial statements
among governments that enter into public-private and public-public partnerships (PPPs) and
availability payment arrangements (APAs) and by enhancing the understandability, reliability,
relevance, and consistency of information about PPPs and APAs. The requirements of this Statement
are effective for periods beginning after June 15, 2022. The City is currently evaluating the impact of
this Statement on the financial statements when implemented.

In May 2020, the GASB issued Statement No. 96 Subscription-Based Information Technology
Arrangements. The objective of this Statement is to better meet the information needs of financial
statement users by (a) establishing uniform accounting and financial reporting requirements for
subscription-based information technology arrangements (SBITAs); (b) improving the comparability
of financial statements among governments that have entered into SBITAs; and (c) enhancing the
understandability, reliability, relevance, and consistency of information about SBITAs. The
requirements of this Statement are effective for periods beginning after June 15, 2022. The City is
currently evaluating the impact of this Statement on the financial statements when implemented.

In June 2020, the GASB issued Statement No. 97 Certain Component Unit Criteria, and Accounting
and Financial Reporting for Internal Revenue Code Section 457 Deferred Compensation Plans. The
primary objectives of this Statement are to (a) increase consistency and comparability related to the
reporting of fiduciary component units in circumstances in which a potential component unit does not
have a governing board and the primary government performs the duties that a governing board
typically would perform; (b) mitigate costs associated with the reporting of certain defined
contribution pension plans, defined contribution other postemployment benefit (OPEB) plans, and
employee benefit plans other than pension plans or OPEB plans (other employee benefit plans) as
fiduciary component units in fiduciary fund financial statements; and (c) enhance the relevance,
consistency, and comparability of the accounting and financial reporting for Internal Revenue Code
(IRC) Section 457 deferred compensation plans (Section 457 plans) that meet the definition of a
pension plan and for benefits provided through those plans. The requirements of this Statement are
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effective for periods beginning after June 15, 2021. The City adopted GASB No. 97 for the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2022. Implementation of this Statement had no effect on the City’s financial
statements.

In April 2022, the GASB issued Statement No. 99 Omnibus 2022. The objectives of this Statement
are to enhance comparability in accounting and financial reporting and to improve the consistency of
authoritative literature by addressing (1) practice issues that have been identified during
implementation and application of certain GASB Statements and (2) accounting and financial
reporting for financial guarantees. The requirements related to leases, PPPs, and SBITAs are effective
for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2022. The requirements related to financial guarantees and
the classification and reporting of derivative instruments within the scope of Statement 53 are effective
for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2023. The City is currently evaluating the impact of this
Statement on the financial statements when implemented.

In June 2022, the GASB issued Statement No. 100 Accounting Changes and Error Corrections. The
primary objective of this Statement is to enhance accounting and financial reporting requirements for
accounting changes and error corrections to provide more understandable, reliable, relevant,
consistent, and comparable information for making decisions or assessing accountability. The
requirements of this Statement are effective for periods beginning after June 15, 2023. The City is
currently evaluating the impact of this Statement on the financial statements when implemented.

In June 2022, the GASB issued Statement No. 101 Compensated Absences. The objective of this
Statement is to better meet the information needs of financial statements users by updating the
recognition and measurement guidance for compensated absences. That objective is achieved by
aligning the recognition and measurement guidance under a unified model and by amending certain
previously required disclosures. The requirements of this Statement are effective for fiscal years
periods beginning after June 15, 2023. The City is currently evaluating the impact of this Statement
on the financial statements when implemented.

NOTE B - CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS

The City follows the practice of pooling cash and investments of all funds, except for funds required
to be held by fiscal agents under the provisions of bond indentures. Each fund type’s portion of this
pool is displayed on the basic financial statements as “cash, cash equivalents and investments”. Cash
and Cash Equivalents are generally considered short-term, highly liquid investments with a maturity
of three months or less from the purchase date. Investments with original maturities of three months
or less meet this definition. Interest income earned on pooled cash and investments is allocated on an
accounting period basis to the various funds based on the period-end cash and investment balances.
Interest income from cash and investments with fiscal agents is credited directly to the related fund.
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The following is a summary of cash, cash equivalents and investments at June 30, 2022:

Fiduciary Fund
Government-Wide Statement of Net Position Financials
Governmental Business-Type Statement of Net
Activities Activities Total Position Total
Held by city-unrestricted $ 104,675838 § 45,000,576 $ 149,676,414 § 3,048,750  § 152,725,164
Held by city-restricted 9,438,370 - 9,438,370 - 9,438,370
Total held by city $ 114,114208 § 45000576 § 159,114,784 § 3,048,750 § 162,163,534
Held by fiscal agent $ 25909090 § 36993114 § 62,902,204 § - $ 62,902,204

As of June 30, 2022, the City had the following deposits and investments, including $3,048,750 held
in a custodial capacity for others:

Held by city: Investments maturities
Investment Type Fair Value 1 year or less 1-5 years
Debt securities
Negotiable Certificates of Deposits $ 223,778  $ -5 223,778
Corporate Bonds 5,166,622 3,420,535 1,746,087

5,390,400 $ 3,420,535 $ 1.969.865

Other investments

State treasurer's investment pool 155,331,131 $ 155,331,131

Total investments 160,721,531
Deposits

Cash deposits checking-net of outstanding checks 704,554
Cash deposits money market/savings 730,326
Cash on hand 7,120
Total deposits 1,442,000
Total cash, cash equivalents and

investments held by city 162,163,531
Held by fiscal agent:
State treasurer's investment pool 62,902,204
Total cash, cash equivalents and investments $ 225,065,735

Deposits — The City follows the requirements of the Utah Money Management Act (the Act) in
handling its depository and investment transactions. The Act requires the depositing of the City’s
funds in a qualified depository. The Act defines a qualified depository as any financial institution
whose deposits are insured by an agency of the Federal Government, and which has been certified by
the State Commissioner of Financial Institutions as meeting the requirements of the Act and adhering
to the rules of the Utah Money Management Council.

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of a bank failure, the City’s deposits may
not be returned to it. The City does not have a formal deposit policy for custodial credit risk. As of
June 30, 2022, the City’s bank balance was $1,567,548 of which $1,317,548 was uninsured and
uncollateralized.
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Investments — The State of Utah Money Management Council has the responsibility to advise the
Utah State Treasurer about investment policies, promote measures and rules that will assist in
strengthening the banking and credit structure of the state, and review the rules adopted under the
authority of the State of Utah Money Management Act (Utah Code, Title 51, Chapter 7) that relate to
the deposit and investment of public funds.

The Act defines the types of securities authorized as appropriate investments for the City’s funds and
the conditions for making investment transactions. Investment transactions may be conducted only
through qualified depositories, certified dealers, or directly with issuers of the investment securities.

Statutes authorize the City to invest in negotiable or nonnegotiable deposits of qualified or permitted
depositories; repurchase and reverse repurchase agreements; commercial paper that is classified as
“first tier” by two nationally recognized statistical rating organizations; bankers’ acceptances;
obligations of the United States Treasury including bills, notes, and bonds; obligations, other than
mortgage derivative products, issued by U.S. government sponsored enterprises (U.S. Agencies) such
as the Federal Home Loan Bank System, Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation (Freddie Mac),
and Federal National Mortgage Association (Fannie Mae); bonds, notes, and other evidence of
indebtedness of political subdivisions of the State; fixed rate corporate obligations and variable rate
securities rated “A” or higher, or the equivalent of “A” or higher, by two nationally recognized
statistical rating organizations; shares or certificates in a money market mutual fund as defined in the
Act; and the Utah Public Treasurers’ Investment Fund (PTIF).

The Utah State Treasurer’s Office operates the PTIF. The PTIF is available for investment of funds
administered by any Utah public treasurer and is not registered with the Securities and Exchange
Commission as an investment company. The PTIF is authorized and regulated by the Act. The Act
established the Money Management Council which oversees the activities of the Utah State Treasurer
and the PTIF and details the types of authorized investments. Deposits in the PTIF are not insured or
otherwise guaranteed by the State of Utah, and participants share proportionally in any realized gains
or losses on investments.

Fair Value of Investments: The City measures and records its investments using fair value

measurement guidelines established by generally accepted accounting principles. These guidelines
recognize a three-tiered fair value hierarchy, as follows:

e Level I: Quoted prices for identical investments in active markets;
e Level 2: Observable inputs other than quoted market prices; and,
e Level 3: Unobservable inputs.

At June 30, 2022 the City had the following recurring fair value measurements:

Fair Value Measurements Using

June 30, 2022 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Investments by fair value level
Certificate of Deposits $ 223,778  $ 223,778 $ -3 -
Corporate Bonds 5,166,622 5,166,622 - -
Utah Public Treasurers' Investment Fund 155,331,131 - 155,331,131 -
Total $ 160,721,531 $ 5,390,400 § 155331,131 $ -
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Debt securities classified in Level 1 are valued using prices quoted in active markets for those
securities. The Utah Public Treasurers’ Investment Fund classified in Level 2 is valued by application
of the June 30, 2022 fair value factor, as calculated by the Utah State Treasurer, to the City’s average
daily balance in the Fund.

Interest Rate Risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an
investment. The City’s policy for managing its exposure to fair value loss arising from increasing
interest rates is to comply with the Act. Section 51-7-11 of the Act requires that the remaining term
to maturity of investments may not exceed the period of availability of the funds to be invested. The
Act further limits the remaining term to maturity on all investments in commercial paper, bankers’
acceptances, fixed rate negotiable deposits, and fixed rate corporate obligations to 270 days — 15
months or less. The Act further limits the remaining term to maturity on all investments in obligations
of the United States Treasury; obligations issued by U.S. Government-sponsored enterprises; and
bonds, notes, and other evidence of indebtedness of political subdivisions of the State to 5 years. In
addition, variable rate negotiable deposits and variable rate securities may not have a remaining term
to final maturity exceeding 3 years.

Credit Risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its
obligations. The City’s policy for reducing its exposure to credit risk is to comply with the Act, as

previously discussed.

At June 30, 202, the City’s investments had the following quality ratings:

Fair Quality Ratings
Value AAA AA A BBB
Primary government:
Debt securities
Corporate Bonds $ 5,166,622 $2,433,116 $ 1242,102 $ 1,241,493 § 249,911

At the time of purchase, all debt securities were rated the equivalent of “A” or higher by two nationally

recognized statistical rating organizations. At yearend, all debt securities were in compliance with the
UMMA.

Concentration of Credit Risk is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of a government’s
investment in a single issuer. The City’s policy for reducing this risk of loss is to comply with the
Rules of the Money Management Council. Rule 17 of the Money Management Council limits
investments in a single issuer of commercial paper and corporate obligations to 5.0 - 10.0 percent
depending upon the total dollar amount held in the portfolio at the time of purchase. None of the City’s
investments exceed this limit.

Custodial Credit Risk for an investment is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty,
the City will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral securities that are in the
possession of an outside party. The City does not have a formal policy for custodial credit risk. As of
June 30, 2022, the City had $5,390,400 in U.S. negotiable certificate of deposits and corporate bonds
which were held by the counterparty’s trust department or agent but not in the government’s name of
which $5,166,622 was uninsured and uncollateralized.
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Notes receivable of the governmental fund types at June 30, 2022 include an affordable housing and
an employee mortgage assistance loan with interest rates ranging from 0.0 - 5.0 percent. The following
is a schedule of future principal and interest payments required under the terms of the notes receivable
as of June 30, 2022:

Fiscal year ending Principal Interest Total

2023 $ 247910 $ 365 $ 248,275
2024 3,059 216 3,275
2025 1,418 60 1,478
Total $ 252,387 $ 641 $ 253,028

NOTE D - LEASES RECEIVABLE
Leases receivable of the governmental fund types at June 30, 2022 include six separate lease
arrangements for land and buildings ranging from 2 to 99 years. During the year ended June 30, 2022,
the City recognized lease revenue and interest revenue of $284,549 and $21,438, respectively.

NOTE E — CAPITAL ASSETS

Depreciation expense was charged to functions for the year ended June 30, 2022 as follows:

Governmental activities:

General government $ 3,428,407
Public safety 446,256
Public works 955,586
Library and recreation 1,166,470
Total governmental activities depreciation expense $ 5,996,719

Business-type activities:

Water $ 4,202,880
Stormwater 175,107
Golf course 201,800
Transportation and parking 2,676,889
Total business-type activities depreciation expense $ 7,256,676
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Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2022 was as follows:

Balance Balance
June 30, 2021 Additions Deletions June 30, 2022
Governmental activities:
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land and water rights $ 243,725,614 $ -3 - $ 243,725,614
Construction in progress 5,473,653 1,601,168 (101,213) 6,973,608
Art 808,389 20,328 - 828,717
Total capital assets, not being depreciated 250,007,656 1,621,496 (101,213) 251,527,939
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Buildings 49,999,600 - - 49,999,600
Improvements other than building 48,067,486 818,432 (245,036) 48,640,882
Vehicles and equipment 16,350,552 2,478,229 (391,429) 18,437,352
Infrastructure 118,551,560 - (829,738) 117,721,822
Intangibles 8,921,259 - - 8,921,259
Total capital assets, being depreciated 241,890,457 3,296,661 (1,466,203) 243,720,915
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings (18,789,517) (1,294,822) - (20,084,339)
Improvements other than building (25,153,154) (1,362,204) 179,693 (26,335,665)
Vehicles and equipment (11,065,137) (1,438,470) 294,985 (12,208,622)
Infrastructure (97,374,899) (1,889,538) 829,738 (98,434,699)
Intangibles (378,064) (11,685) - (389,749)
Total accumulated depreciation (152,760,771) (5,996,719) 1,304,416 (157,453,074)
Total capital assets, being depreciated, net 89,129,686 (2,700,058) (161,787) 86,267,841
Governmental activities capital assets, net $ 339,137,342 $§ (1,078,562) $ (263,000) $ 337,795,780
Business-type activities:
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land and water rights $ 22,337,188 § -3 - $  22337,188
Construction in progress 60,243,372 38,315,728 - 98,559,100
Art 117,850 - - 117,850
Total capital assets, not being depreciated 82,698,410 38,315,728 - 121,014,138
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Right to use asset 3,380,984 - - 3,380,984
Buildings 40,084,558 106,920 - 40,191,478
Improvements other than building 121,590,828 180,901 - 121,771,729
Vehicles and equipment 39,741,642 622,543 (2,674,701) 37,689,484
Intangibles 86,455 - - 86,455
Total capital assets, being depreciated 204,884,467 910,364 (2,674,701) 203,120,130
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Right to use asset (126,787) (84,524) - (211,311)
Buildings (9,292,631) (901,567) - (10,194,198)
Improvements other than building (57,734,314) (3,114,308) - (60,848,622)
Vehicles and equipment (21,473,462) (3,153,820) 1,483,141 (23,144,141)
Intangibles (74,894) (2,457) - (77,351)
Total accumulated depreciation (88,702,088) (7,256,676) 1,483,141 (94,475,623)
Total capital assets, being depreciated, net 116,182,379 (6,346,312) (1,191,560) 108,644,507
Business-type activities capital assets, net $ 198,880,789 $ 31969416 $ (1,191,560) § 229,658,645
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The following is a summary of changes in long-term obligations for the year ended June 30, 2022:

Beginning Balance Ending Balance Due Within
July 1,2021 Additions Reductions Amortization June 30, 2022 One Year
Governmental activities:
General obligation bonds:
2013A series-principal $ 3,730,000 $ - $  (480,000) $ - 8 3,250,000 $ 500,000
2013A series-premium 43,251 - - (6,318) 36,933 -
2017 series-principal 19,435,000 - (1,440,000) - 17,995,000 1,500,000
2017 series-premium 2,069,803 - - (195,264) 1,874,539 -
2019 series-principal 42,635,000 - (2,945,000) - 39,690,000 3,090,000
2019 series-premium 5,765,634 - - (457,491) 5,308,143 -
2020 series-principal 8,085,000 - (1,435,000) - 6,650,000 1,500,000
2020 series-premium 1,198,820 - - (86,596) 1,112,224 -
Total general obligation bonds 82,962,508 - (6,300,000) (745,669) 75,916,839 6,590,000
Revenue bonds (Sales tax revenue):
2014B series-principal 5,375,000 - (605,000) - 4,770,000 625,000
2014B series-premium 89,583 - - (11,241) 78,342 -
2015 refunding-principal 7,645,000 - (735,000) - 6,910,000 765,000
2015 refunding-premium 360,792 - - (40,222) 320,570 -
2017 refunding-principal 24,850,000 - (1,780,000) - 23,070,000 1,870,000
2017 refunding-premium 2,478,748 - - (225,960) 2,252,788 -
2019 refunding-principal 24,200,000 - (1,400,000) - 22,800,000 1,475,000
2019 refunding-premium 2,947,687 - - (236,359) 2,711,328 -
Total revenue bonds 67,946,810 - (4,520,000) (513,782) 62,913,028 4,735,000
Compensated absences 876,279 904,368 (837,783) - 942,864 754,291
Total governmental activities $ 151,785,597 $ 904,368 $ (11,657,783) $ (1,259451) $ 139,772,731 $ 12,079,291
Business-type activities:
Revenue bonds:
2009A wtr revenue $ 1,125,000 $ - $  (125000) $ -3 1,000,000 $ 125,000
2012 wtr revenue 1,925,000 - (1,925,000) - - -
2012 wtr revenue-premium 124,192 - - (124,192) - -
2012B wtr revenue refunding 5,525,000 - (5,525,000) - - -
2012B wtr revenue-premium 53,333 - - (53,333) - -
2013A wtr revenue refunding 1,260,000 - (245,000) - 1,015,000 245,000
2013 A wtr revenue-prem/disc. 13,077 - - (2,929) 10,148 -
2014 wtr revenue 4,115,000 - - - 4,115,000 -
2014 wtr revenue-premium 92,865 - - (18,695) 74,170 -
2020 wtr revenue refunding 73,495,000 - (2,125,000) - 71,370,000 2,250,000
2020 wtr revenue-premium 9,280,729 - - (502,440) 8,778,289 -
2021 wtr revenue refunding - 66,135,000 - - 66,135,000 2,175,000
2021 wtr revenue-premium - 6,052,311 - (213,572) 5,838,739 -
Total revenue bonds 97,009,196 72,187,311 (9,945,000) (915,161) 158,336,346 4,795,000
Compensated absences 352,164 323,058 (330,563) - 344,659 279,173
Contract payable 3,039,674 - (143,918) - 2,895,756 146,573
Total business-type activities $ 100,401,034 $ 72,510,369 $ (10,419,481) $  (915,161) $§ 161,576,761 $§ 5,220,746

Internal service funds predominantly serve the governmental funds. Accordingly, long-term liabilities
for these funds are included as part of the above totals for governmental activities. At yearend $53,382
of internal service fund compensated absences are included in the above amounts. Also, for the
governmental activities compensated absences are liquidated by the general fund. The City has
complied with all revenue bond covenants.
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Redevelopment Agency Capital Projects Funds and Bonds

The City maintains special revenue and capital project funds for the Main Street Redevelopment
Agency and the Lower Park Avenue Redevelopment Agency. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022,
the tax increment collected by the Main Street Redevelopment Agency was $301,782 and the tax
contributions from other governments were $1,010,315. The tax increment collected by the Lower
Park Avenue Redevelopment Agency was $904,478 and the tax contributions from other governments
were $3,028,036. The tax increment paid to another taxing agency by the Main Street Redevelopment
Agency and by the Lower Park Avenue Redevelopment Agency was $239,455 and $591,168,
respectively. During the fiscal year, the Lower Park Avenue Redevelopment Agency expended
$42,989 for site improvements and $6,741 for economic development. The Main Street
Redevelopment Agency expended $3,000 for site improvements, $30,000 for economic development.

General Obligation Bonds

On August 28, 2013, the City issued General Obligation Bonds Series 2013 A in the par amount of
$7,170,000, a premium of $92,774 and issuance costs of $98,614. Pursuant to a special bond election
held on November 6, 2007, the proceeds of the bonds were used to acquire, construct, improve and
modify pathways, roads and related improvements for use by pedestrians and cyclists. Repayments
are made from property tax revenues recorded in the Park City General Obligation Debt Service Fund.

On June 6, 2017, the City issued General Obligation Bonds Series 2017 in the amount of $25,000,000
plus a premium of $2,863,698 and bond issuance costs of $155,239 pursuant to a bond election held
on November 8, 2016. The proceeds of the bonds were used to acquire, improve and forever preserve
open space, park and recreational land located in Bonanza Flats. Repayments are made from property
tax revenues recorded in the Park City General Obligation Debt Service Fund.

The debt service requirements for the bonds at June 30, 2022 were as follows:

Series 2013A Series 2017
Dated August 28, 2013 Dated June 6, 2017
$7,170,000 @ 2.00% to 3.25% $25,000,000 @ 3.00% to 5.00%
Fiscal per annum paid semi- per annum paid semi-
Year Ending annually (Nov. & May) annually (Feb. & Aug.)

June 30, PRINCIPAL INTEREST PRINCIPAL INTEREST
2023 $ 500,000 $ 97,850 $ 1,500,000 $ 702,350
2024 515,000 84,100 1,560,000 627,350
2025 530,000 69,938 1,625,000 549,350
2026 550,000 54,036 1,685,000 468,100
2027 565,000 37,538 1,755,000 383,850
2028 590,000 19,175 1,825,000 296,100
2029 - - 1,900,000 241,350
2030 - - 1,975,000 184,350
2031 - - 2,055,000 125,100
2032 - - 2,115,000 63,450
Total 3,250,000 362,637 17,995,000 3,641,350

Plus unamortized
premium 36,933 - 1,874,539 -
Total $§ 3,286,933 $ 362,637 $ 19,869,539 $ 3,641,350
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General Obligation Bonds, Continued

On March 5, 2019, the City issued General Obligation Bonds Series 2019 in the par amount of
$48,290,000, a premium of $6,827,264 and issuance costs of $215,508. Pursuant to a special bond
election held on November 6, 2018, the proceeds of the bonds were used to acquire, improve and
forever preserve open space, park and recreational land located in Treasure Hill and Armstrong/Snow
Ranch Pasture. Additionally, the bonds currently refunded $4,290,000 principal of the City’s General
Obligation Bonds Series 2008, plus $67,993 interest. For government-wide reporting, the gain on
refunding is reported as a deferred inflow of resources and amortized over the life of the bond.
Repayments are made from property tax revenues and recorded in the Park City General Obligation
Debt Service Fund.

On May 6, 2020, the City issued General Obligation Bonds Series 2020 in the par amount of
$9,470,000, a premium of $1,298,465 and issuance costs of $83,373. Pursuant to a special bond
election held on November 6, 2018, the proceeds of the bonds were used to acquire, improve and
forever preserve open space, park and recreational land located in Treasure Hill and Armstrong/Snow
Ranch Pasture. The 2020 Bonds were the last block of bonds to be issued from the 2018 bond election.
Additionally, the bonds currently refunded $3,730,000 and $2,255,000 principal of the City’s General
Obligation Bonds Series 2009 and Series 2010B, respectively, plus $1,991 and 1,562 interest,
respectively. For government-wide reporting, the gain on refunding is reported as a deferred inflow
ofresources and amortized over the life of the bond. Repayments are made from property tax revenues
and recorded in the Park City General Obligation Debt Service Fund.

The debt service requirements for the bonds at June 30, 2022 were as follows:

Series 2019 Series 2020
Dated March 5, 2019 Dated May 6, 2020
$48,290,000 @ 3.00% to 5.00% $9,470,000 @ 2.125% to 5.00%
Fiscal per annum paid semiannually per annum paid semiannually
Year Ending (February and August) (May and November)

June 30, PRINCIPAL INTEREST PRINCIPAL INTEREST
2023 $ 3,090,000 $ 1,794,900 $ 1,500,000 $ 299,588
2024 3,245,000 1,640,400 1,570,000 224,587
2025 3,405,000 1,478,150 615,000 146,088
2026 2,730,000 1,307,900 240,000 115,337
2027 2,870,000 1,171,400 250,000 103,338
2028 3,015,000 1,027,900 265,000 90,837
2029 3,165,000 877,150 275,000 77,588
2030 3,320,000 718,900 290,000 63,837
2031 3,490,000 552,900 305,000 49,338
2032 3,625,000 413,300 320,000 37,137
2033 3,810,000 232,050 330,000 27,538
2034 3,925,000 117,750 340,000 17,637
2035 - - 350,000 7,445
Total 39,690,000 11,332,700 6,650,000 1,260,295

Plus unamortized
premium 5,308,143 - 1,112,224 -
Total $ 44,998,143 $ 11,332,700 $ 7,762,224 $ 1,260,295
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Sales Tax Revenue and Refunding Bonds

On September 11, 2014, the City issued Sales Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2014B in the amount of
$5,375,000 plus a premium of $166,022. The proceeds from the sale of the Series 2014B Sales Tax
Revenue Bonds were used for the purpose of financing the cost associated with improvements and
acquisition of open space.

On May 12, 2015, the City issued Sales Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2015 in the amount of
$11,600,000 plus a premium of $607,524. The proceeds from the sale of the bonds were used for the
purpose of financing the cost associated with improvements and acquisition of open space.

The debt service requirements for the bonds at June 30, 2022 were as follows:

Series 2014B Series 2015
Dated September 11, 2014 Dated May 12, 2015
$5,375,000 @ 3.00% to 3.25% $11,600,000 @ 2.00% to 4.00%
Fiscal per annum paid semiannually per annum paid semiannually
Year Ending (June and December) (June and December)

June 30, PRINCIPAL INTEREST PRINCIPAL INTEREST
2023 $ 625,000 $ 146,763 $ 765,000 $ 235,125
2024 640,000 128,013 795,000 204,525
2025 660,000 108,813 820,000 180,675
2026 680,000 89,013 845,000 156,075
2027 700,000 68,613 880,000 122,275
2028 720,000 47,612 905,000 95,875
2029 745,000 24,212 930,000 68,725
2030 - - 970,000 31,525
Total 4,770,000 613,039 6,910,000 1,094,800

Plus unamortized
premium 78,342 - 320,570 -
Total $ 4,848,342 $ 613,039 $ 7,230,570 $ 1,094,800
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Sales Tax Revenue and Refunding Bonds, Continued

On November 11, 2017, the City issued Sales Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2017 in the amount of
$31,940,000 plus a premium of $3,287,871. The proceeds from the sale of the bonds were used for
the purpose of financing the acquisition and construction of affordable housing units; land acquisition;
parking, plaza and walkway improvements; road improvements; open space acquisition; and parks
and community center improvements.

On February 21, 2019 the City issued Sales Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2019 in the amount of
$26,775,000 plus a premium of $3,495,522. The proceeds from the sale of the bonds were used for
the purpose of financing a portion of the cost of a revolving program of acquiring and constructing
affordable housing units, parking and plaza improvements, road improvements, open space
acquisition, and park, recreation and community center improvements.

The debt service requirements for the bonds at June 30, 2022 were as follows:

Series 2017 Series 2019
Dated November 11, 2017 Dated February 21, 2019
$31,940,000 @ 2.85% to 5.00% $26,775,000 @ 3.00% to 5.00%
Fiscal per annum paid semiannually per annum paid semiannually
Year Ending (June and December) (June and December)

June 30, PRINCIPAL INTEREST PRINCIPAL INTEREST
2023 $ 1,870,000 $ 900,527 $ 1,475,000 $ 941,375
2024 1,965,000 807,028 1,550,000 865,750
2025 2,060,000 708,778 1,600,000 811,000
2026 2,165,000 605,777 1,650,000 753,750
2027 2,275,000 497,528 1,750,000 668,750
2028 2,385,000 383,777 1,825,000 579,375
2029 2,480,000 288,378 1,925,000 485,625
2030 2,555,000 213,977 2,025,000 386,875
2031 2,620,000 147,548 2,125,000 293,750
2032 2,695,000 76,807 2,200,000 207,250
2033 - - 2,300,000 117,250
2034 - - 2,375,000 35,625
Total 23,070,000 4,630,125 22,800,000 6,146,375

Plus unamortized
premium 2,252,788 - 2,711,328 -
Total $ 25,322,788 $ 4,630,125 $ 25,511,328 $ 6,146,375

The Series 2014B, 2015, 2017 and 2019 Bonds are special limited obligations of the City, payable
solely from and secured solely by a pledge of revenues from (1) 100 percent of the revenues received
by the City from the local sales and use tax levied by the City pursuant to the Utah Local Sales and
Use Tax Act, Title 59, Chapter 12, Part 2, Utah Code and (2) 100 percent of the revenues received by
the City from the resort communities tax levied by the City pursuant to Title 59, Chapter 12, Part 4 of
the Utah Code. The bonds do not constitute a pledge of the ad valorem taxing power or the full faith
and credit of the City.

The Series 2017 and 2019 Bonds are additionally payable solely from and secured solely by a pledge
of revenues from 100 percent of the revenues received by the City from the municipal transient room
tax levied by the City pursuant to Title 59, Chapter 12, Part 3A, Utah Code.
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Water Revenue Bonds

On July 14, 2009, the City issued the par amount of $2,500,000 in Taxable Water Revenue Bonds
Series 2009A to finance the construction of drinking water system improvements. The bonds bear no
interest and the principal payment of $125,000 is paid annually beginning July 15, 2010 and ending
July 15, 2029. Repayments on the debt are made from the net revenues of the Water Fund. The
outstanding balance at June 30, 2022 is $1,000,000.

Water Revenue Refunding Bonds

On February 21, 2013, the City issued the par amount of $3,045,000 in Water Revenue and Refunding
Bonds Series 2013 A and B plus a premium of $37,518. The premium was deferred and amortized
over the life of the bond using the effective interest method. The bond proceeds were used to refund
$3,029,000 principal of outstanding Water Revenue Bonds Series 2006 plus interest of $63,609. The
bonds incurred bond issue costs of $74,516, which were recognized as an expense in the period
incurred. Repayments on the debt are made from the net revenues of the Water Fund.

On June 25, 2014, the City issued the par amount of $4,115,000 in Water Revenue Bonds Series 2014
plus a premium of $223,986 to finance construction of water system infrastructure. The premium was
deferred and amortized over the life of the bond on an effective interest method. The bonds incurred
bond issue costs of $93,218, which were recognized as an expense in the period incurred. Repayments
on the debt are made from net revenues of the Water Fund.

The debt service requirements for the water refunding bonds at June 30, 2022 were as follows:

Series 2013A Series 2014
Dated February 21, 2013 Dated June 25, 2014
$3,045,000 @ 2.00% $4,115,000 @ 3.25%
Fiscal per annum paid semiannually per annum paid semiannually
Year Ending (June and December) (June and December)
June 30, PRINCIPAL INTEREST PRINCIPAL INTEREST
2023 $ 245,000 $ 17,850 $ - $ 133,738
2024 250,000 12,900 - 133,738
2025 255,000 7,850 2,350,000 133,738
2026 265,000 2,650 1,765,000 57,362
Total 1,015,000 41,250 4,115,000 458,576
Plus unamortized
premiun/discount 10,148 - 74,170 -
Total $ 1,025,148 $ 41,250 $ 4,189,170 $ 458,576
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Water Revenue Refunding Bonds, Continued

On June 16, 2020, the City issued the par amount of $75,515,000 in Water Revenue Bonds Series
2020 plus a premium of $9,802,442. The premium was deferred and amortized over the life of the
bond using the effective interest method. The bond proceeds were used to refund $8,235,000 and
$4,945,000 of outstanding Water Revenue Bonds Series 2009C and 2010, respectively plus interest
of $225,484 and $99,449, respectively. New money in the amount of $66,620,000 was received to
finance construction of water system infrastructure. The bonds incurred bond issue costs of $333,785,
which were recognized as an expense in the period incurred. Repayments on the debt are made from
net revenues of the Water Fund.

On October 13, 2022, the City issued the par amount of $66,135,000 in Water Revenue Bonds Series
2021 plus a premium of $6,052,311. The premium was deferred and amortized over the life of the
bond using the effective interest method. The bond proceeds were used to refund $1,925,000 and
$5,525,000 of outstanding Water Revenue Bonds Series 2012 and 2012B, respectively plus interest
of $21,063 and $62,156, respectively. New money in the amount of $65,000,000 was received to
finance construction of water system infrastructure. The bonds incurred bond issue costs of $320,994,
which were recognized as an expense in the period incurred. Repayments on the debt are made from
net revenues of the Water Fund.

The debt service requirements for these bonds at June 30, 2022 were as follows:

Series 2020 Series 2021
Dated June 16, 2020 Dated October 13, 2022
$75,515,000 @ 2.125% to 5.00% $66,135,000 @ 2.00% to 5.00%
Fiscal per annum paid semiannually per annum paid semiannually
Year Ending (June and December) (June and December)

June 30, PRINCIPAL INTEREST PRINCIPAL INTEREST
2023 $ 2,250,000 $ 2,316,094 $ 2,175,000 $ 2,130,506
2024 2,325,000 2,201,719 2,325,000 2,018,007
2025 175,000 2,139,218 2,300,000 1,902,381
2026 - 2,134,844 3,280,000 1,762,882
2027 1,945,000 2,086,219 3,645,000 1,589,756
2028 2,000,000 1,987,594 3,875,000 1,401,757
2029 4,250,000 1,831,344 1,930,000 1,256,631
2030 4,475,000 1,613,219 2,020,000 1,157,882
2031 4,700,000 1,383,844 2,255,000 1,051,006
2032 4,875,000 1,193,219 2,385,000 935,006
2033 5,025,000 1,044,719 2,495,000 825,481
2034 5,175,000 891,719 2,575,000 749,831
2035 5,350,000 733,844 2,610,000 697,981
2036 5,500,000 571,094 2,675,000 645,131
2037 5,650,000 432,094 2,715,000 591,231
2038 5,775,000 314,234 2,765,000 536,431
2039 5,875,000 190,453 2,845,000 480,331
2040 6,025,000 64,014 2,880,000 421,281
2041 - - 9,095,000 294,047
2042 - - 9,290,000 98,706
Total 71,370,000 23,129,485 66,135,000 20,546,265

Plus unamortized
premium 8,778,289 - 5,838,739 -
Total $ 80,148,289 $ 23,129,485 $ 71,973,739 $ 20,546,265
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Other Debt

The City entered into an agreement with Weber Basin Water Conservancy District for the right to
share in the existing capacity in the East Canyon Water Treatment Plan and Highway 40 System. In
return, the City agreed to make an annual payment of $200,000 per year beginning January 1, 2020
through January 1, 2039. The contract payable has an effective interest rate of 1.8 percent per
annum.

The debt service requirements for the contracts payable at June 30, 2022 were as follows:

Fiscal Year Ending
June 30, PRINCIPAL INTEREST
2023 $ 146,573 $ 53,427
2024 149,278 50,722
2025 152,032 47,968
2026 154,837 45,163
2027 157,693 42,307
2028 160,603 39,397
2029 163,566 36,434
2030 166,584 33,416
2031 169,657 30,343
2032 172,788 27,212
2033 175,975 24,024
2034 179,222 20,778
2035 182,529 17,471
2036 185,897 14,104
2037 189,326 10,674
2038 192,819 7,181
2039 196,377 3,623
Total $ 2,895,756 $ 504,244

66



PARK CITY MUNICIPAL CORPORATION, UTAH
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continued
JUNE 30, 2022

NOTE F — LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS, Continued

Annual Debt Service
The annual debt service requirements for all long-term debt outstanding as of June 30, 2022 by activity
are as follows:

Fiscal Governmental A ctivities Business-Type Activites
Year Ending General Obligation Revenue Revenue Contract
June 30, Bonds Bonds Bonds Payable
Principal
2023 $ 6,590,000 $ 4,735,000 $ 4,795,000 $ 146,573
2024 6,890,000 4,950,000 5,025,000 149,278
2025 6,175,000 5,140,000 5,205,000 152,032
2026-2030 27,265,000 28,410,000 30,075,000 803,283
2031-2035 20,665,000 14,315,000 37,445,000 880,171
2036-2040 - - 42,705,000 764,419
2040-2042 - - 18,385,000 -
Total 67,585,000 57,550,000 143,635,000 2,895,756
Plus unamortized
premiunvdiscount 8,331,839 5,363,028 14,701,346 -
Total $ 75,916,839 $ 62,913,028 $ 158,336,346 $ 2,895,756
Interest
2023 $ 2,894,688 $ 2,223,791 $ 4,598,188 $ 53,427
2024 2,576,438 2,005,316 4,366,363 50,722
2025 2,243,526 1,809,266 4,183,188 47,968
2026-2030 7,238,686 5,567,738 16,882,137 196,717
2031-2035 1,643,644 878,228 9,506,620 119,828
2036-2040 - - 4,246,297 35,582
2040-2042 - - 392,783 -
Total $ 16,596,982 $ 12,484,339 $ 44,175,576 $ 504,244
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General Information about the Pension Plan
Plan description: Eligible plan participants are provided with pensions through the Utah Retirement
Systems (Systems). The Systems are comprised of the following pension trust funds:

Defined Benefit Plans

e Public Employees Noncontributory Retirement System (Noncontributory System) is a
multiple-employer, cost-sharing, public employee retirement system;

e Public Employees Contributory Retirement System (Contributory System) is a multiple-
employer, cost-sharing, public employee retirement system;

e Public Safety Retirement System (Public Safety System) is a multiple-employer, cost-sharing,
public employee retirement system;

e Tier 2 Public Employees Contributory Retirement System (Tier 2 Public Employees System)
is a multiple-employer, cost-sharing, public employee retirement system;

e Tier 2 Public Safety and Firefighter Contributory Retirement System (Tier 2 Public Safety and
Firefighters System) is a multiple-employer, cost-sharing, public employee retirement system.

The Tier 2 Public Employees System became effective July 1,2011. All eligible employees beginning
on or after July 1, 2011, who have no previous service credit with any of the Systems, are members
of the Tier 2 Retirement System.

The Systems are established and governed by the respective sections of Title 49 of the Utah Code
Annotated 1953, as amended. The Systems’ defined benefit plans are amended statutorily by the State
Legislature. The Utah State Retirement Office Act in Title 49 provides for the administration of the
Systems under the direction of the Utah State Retirement Board (Board), whose members are
appointed by the Governor. The Systems are fiduciary funds defined as pension (and other employee
benefit) trust funds. The Systems are a component unit of the State of Utah. Title 49 of the Utah Code
grants the authority to establish and amend the benefit terms.

The Systems issue a publicly available financial report that can be obtained by writing Utah
Retirement Systems, 560 E. 200 S., Salt Lake City, Utah 84102 or visiting the website:
www.urs.org/general/publications.
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Benefits provided: The Systems provide retirement, disability, and death benefits. Retirement benefits are
as follows:

Years of service
required and/or
Final average age eligible for Benefit percent
System salary benefit per year of service COLA**
30 years any age
25 years any age* 2.00% per year all

Iglosrig?;ltrlbutory Highest 3 years 20 years age 60* years Up to 4.00%
M 10 years age 62*
4 years age 65
30 years any age 1.25% per year to
. . 20 years age 60* June 1975;2.00% o
Contributory System Highest 5 years 10 years age 62* per year July 1975 Up to 4.00%
4 years age 65 to present
0,
20 years any age t20.52(())A1 é);rs-y;a(;ollllf Up to 2.50% or
Public Safety System Highest 3 years 10 years age 60 years, =70 4.00% depending
per year over 20
4 years age 65 upon employer
years
35 years any age
Tier 2 Public . 20 years age 60* 1.50% per year all o
Employees System Highest 5 years 10 years age 62* years Up t0 2.50%
4 years age 65
. . 25 years any age 1.50% per year to
Tier 2 Public Safety * . o
and Firefighter Highest 5 years 20 years age 60 June 2020; 2.00% Up to 2.50%

10 years age 62* per year July 2020

System 4 years age 65 to present

* Actuarial reductions are applied.

**All post-retirement cost-of-living adjustments are non-compounding and are based on the original benefit
except for Judges, which is a compounding benefit. The cost-of-living adjustments are also limited to the actual
Consumer Price Index (CPI) increase for the year, although unused CPI increases not met may be carried
forward to subsequent years.

Contribution Rate Summary

As a condition of participation in the Systems, employers and/or employees are required to contribute
certain percentages of salary and wages as authorized by statute and specified by the Systems’ Board.
Contributions are actuarially determined as an amount that, when combined with employee
contributions (where applicable) is expected to finance the costs of benefits earned by employees
during the year, with an additional amount to finance any unfunded actuarial accrued liability.
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Contribution rates as of June 30, 2022 are as follows:

Employee
Contributory System
11 Local Government Div - Tier 1 6.00
111 Local Government Div - Tier 2* N/A
Noncontributory System
15 Local Government Div - Tier 1 N/A
Public Safety System
Contributory
122 Tier 2 DB Hybrid Public Safety* 2.27
Noncontributory
43  Other Div A with 2.50% COLA N/A
Tier 2 Defined Contribution Only*
211 Local Government N/A
222  Public Safety N/A

Employer

14.46
16.07

18.47

25.83

34.04

6.69
11.83

Employer 401(k)

N/A
0.62

N/A

N/A

N/A

10.00
14.00

*Tier 2 rates include a statutory required contribution to finance the unfunded actuarial accrued liability of the Tier 1

plans.

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022, the employer and employee contributions to the Systems were as

follows:

System
Noncontributory System
Contributory System
Public Safety System
Tier 2 Public Employees Systems
Tier 2 Public Safety and Firefighter
Tier 2 DC Only System
Tier 2 DC Public Safety and Firefighter System

Total Contributions

Contributions reported are the Systems’ Board approved required contributions by the System.

Employer
Contributions

1,257,885
30,760
811,796
1,890,094
65,258
162,084
9,094
4,226,971

$

Employee

Contributions

N/A

N/A
N/A

Contributions in the Tier 2 Systems are used to finance the unfunded liabilities in the Tier 1 Systems.
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Combined Pension Assets, Liabilities, Expense, Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources

Related to Pensions
At June 30, 2022, the City reported a net pension asset of $8,676,595 and a net pension liability of $0.

(Measurement Date): December 31, 2021

Net Pension Net Pension Proportionate Proportionate Share Change
Asset Liability Share December 31, 2020 (Decrease)

Noncontributory System $ 6,206,510 $ - 1.0837078 % 1.0590082 %  0.0246996 %
Contributory System 1,105,633 - 1.5272379 3.2448058 (1.7175679)
Public Safety System 1,116,896 - 1.3752460 1.3794893 (0.0042433)
Tier 2 Public Employees System 242,688 - 0.5734098 0.6133599 (0.0399501)
Tier 2 Public Safety and Firefighter 4,868 - 0.0963238 0.1177901 (0.0214663)

$ 8,676,595 $

The net pension asset and liability were measured as of December 31, 2020, and the total pension
liability used to calculate the net pension asset and liability was determined by an actuarial valuation
as of January 1, 2020 and rolled-forward using generally accepted actuarial procedures. The
proportion of the net pension asset and liability is equal to the ratio of the employer’s actual
contributions to the Systems during the plan year over the total of all employer contributions to the
Systems during the plan year.

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022, the City recognized pension expense of $(877,220). The City
reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the
following sources:

Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources
Differences between expected and actual experience $ 867,200 $ 32,069
Changes in assumptions 1,010,072 54,838
Net difference between projected and actual
earnings on pension plan investments - 12,895,341
Changes in proportion and differences between contrib-
tions and proportionate share of contributions 196,455 282,793
Contributions subsequent to the measurement date 2,240,334 -

$ 4,314,061 § 13,265,041

$2,240,336 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions results from contributions
made by the City prior to fiscal yearend, but subsequent to the measurement date of December 31,

2021.
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These contributions will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the upcoming
fiscal year. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Net Deferred Outflows
Year ended December 31, (Inflows) of Resources
2022 $ (2,423,562)
2023 (3,843,741)
2024 (3,095,186)
2025 (2,098,089)
2026 48,204
Thereafter 221,063

Noncontributory System Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022, the City recognized pension expense of $(1,133,150). The
City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions
from the following sources:

Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources
Differences between expected and actual experience $ 650,065 $ -
Changes in assumptions 582,504 40,062
Net difference between projected and actual
earnings on pension plan investments - 8,356,233
Changes in proportion and differences between contrib-
tions and proportionate share of contributions 60,318 276,923
Contributions subsequent to the measurement date 651,445 -

$ 1,944,332 $ 8,673,218

$651,447 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions results from contributions
made by the City prior to fiscal yearend, but subsequent to the measurement date of December 31,
2021.

These contributions will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the upcoming
fiscal year. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Net Deferred Outflows
Year ended December 31, (Inflows) of Resources
2022 $ (1,571,039)
2023 (2,401,076)
2024 (2,019,796)
2025 (1,388,418)
2026 -
Thereafter -
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Contributory System Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022, the City recognized pension expense of $(572,566). The City
reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the
following sources:

Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources
Differences between expected and actual experience $ - $ -

Changes in assumptions - -
Net difference between projected and actual

earnings on pension plan investments - 905,648
Changes in proportion and differences between contrib-
tions and proportionate share of contributions

Contributions subsequent to the measurement date 16,221 -
$ 16,221 $ 905,648

$16,221 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions results from contributions
made by the City prior to fiscal yearend, but subsequent to the measurement date of December 31,
2021.

These contributions will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the upcoming
fiscal year. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Net Deferred Outflows
Year ended December 31, (Inflows) of Resources
2022 $ (218,608)
2023 (316,399)
2024 (223,185)
2025 (147,456)
2026 -
Thereafter -
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Public Safety System Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022, the City recognized pension expense of $(40,602). The City
reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the
following sources:

Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources
Differences between expected and actual experience $ 95,060 $ -
Changes in assumptions 195,816 11,617
Net difference between projected and actual
earnings on pension plan investments - 3,018,927
Changes in proportion and differences between contrib-
tions and proportionate share of contributions 985 4,194
Contributions subsequent to the measurement date 433,874 -
$ 725,735 $ 3,034,738

$433,874 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions results from contributions
made by the City prior to fiscal yearend, but subsequent to the measurement date of December 31,
2021.

These contributions will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the upcoming
fiscal year. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of

resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Net Deferred Outflows

Year ended December 31, (Inflows) of Resources
2022 $ (518,690)
2023 (978,599)
2024 (745,077)
2025 (500,510)
2026 -
Thereafter -
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Tier 2 Public Emplovees System Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows and Inflows of

Resources
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022, the City recognized pension expense of $842,784. The City

reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the
following sources:

Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources
Differences between expected and actual experience $ 117,903 $ 31,269
Changes in assumptions 226,289 2,294
Net difference between projected and actual
earnings on pension plan investments - 599,652
Changes in proportion and differences between contrib-
tions and proportionate share of contributions 124,392 -
Contributions subsequent to the measurement date 1,098,916 -

$ 1,567,500 $ 633,215

$1,098,916 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions results from contributions
made by the City prior to fiscal yearend, but subsequent to the measurement date of December 31,

2021.

These contributions will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the upcoming year.
Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to

pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Net Deferred Outflows
Year ended December 31, (Inflows) of Resources
2022 $ (112,598)
2023 (144,371)
2024 (104,709)
2025 (60,257)
2026 46,930
Thereafter 210,374
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PARK CITY MUNICIPAL CORPORATION, UTAH
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NOTE G — RETIREMENT PLANS, Continued

Tier 2 Public Safety and Firefichter Pension Expense, and Deferred Qutflows and Inflows of

Resources

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022, the City recognized pension expense of $26,313. The City
reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the
following sources:

Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources
Differences between expected and actual experience $ 4,172 $ 800
Changes in assumptions 5,463 865
Net difference between projected and actual
earnings on pension plan investments - 14,881
Changes in proportion and differences between contrib-
tions and proportionate share of contributions 10,760 1,676
Contributions subsequent to the measurement date 39,878 -
$ 60,273 $ 18,222

$39,878 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions results from contributions
made by the City prior to fiscal yearend, but subsequent to the measurement date of December 31,
2021.

These contributions will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the upcoming
fiscal year. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Net Deferred Outflows
Year ended December 31, (Inflows) of Resources
2022 $ (2,627)
2023 (3,296)
2024 (2,419)
2025 (1,448)
2026 1,274
Thereafter 10,689

Actuarial Assumptions

The total pension liability in the December 31, 2021, actuarial valuation was determined using the
following actuarial assumption, applied to all periods included in the measurement:

Inflation 2.50 percent
Salary increases 3.25 - 9.25 percent, average, including inflation

Investment rate of return  6.85 percent, net of pension plan investment expense, including inflation
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NOTE G — RETIREMENT PLANS, Continued

Mortality rates were adopted from an actuarial experience study dated January 1, 2020. The retired
mortality tables are developed using URS retiree experience and are based upon gender, occupation,
and age as appropriate with projected improvement using 80.0% of the ultimate rates from the MP-
2019 improvement assumption using a base year of 2020. The mortality assumption for active
members is the PUB-2010 Employees Mortality Table for public employees, teachers, and public
safety members, respectively.

The actuarial assumptions used in the January 1, 2021 valuation were based on the results of an
actuarial experience study for the five year period ending December 31, 2019.

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-
block method in which best estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns,
net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class and is
applied consistently to each defined benefit pension plan. These ranges are combined to produce the
long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target
asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. The target allocation and best estimates
of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class are summarized in the following table:

Expected Return Arithmetic Basis

Real Return Arithmetic Long-Term Expected Portfolio

Asset Class Target Asset Allocation Basis Real Rate of Return
Equity securities 37.000 % 6.58 % 243 %
Debt securities 20.000 (0.28) (0.06)
Real assets 15.000 5.77 0.87
Private equity 12.000 9.85 1.18
Absolute return 16.000 291 0.47
Cash and cash equivalents - (1.01) -
Totals 100.00 % 489 %
Inflation 2.50 %
Expected arithmetic nominal return 739 %

The 6.85 percent assumed investment rate of return is comprised of an inflation rate of 2.50 percent,
a real return of 4.35 percent that is net of investment expense.

Discount rate: The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 6.85 percent. The
projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that employee contributions will
be made at the current contribution rate and that contributions from all participating employers will
be made at contractually required rates that are actuarially determined and certified by the Systems’
Board. Based on those assumptions, the pension plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be
available to make all projected future benefit payments of current active and inactive employees.
Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods
of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability. The discount rate does not use
the Municipal Bond Index Rate. The discount rate was reduced from 6.95 percent to 6.85 percent from
the prior measurement date.
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NOTE G — RETIREMENT PLANS, Continued

Sensitivity of the proportionate share of the net pension asset and liability to changes in the discount
rate: The following presents the proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated using the
discount rate of 6.85 percent, as well as what the proportionate share of the net pension liability would
be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1 percentage point lower (5.85 percent) or 1
percentage point higher (7.85 percent) than the current rate:

1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase

System or 5.85% of 6.85% or 7.85%
Noncontributory System $ 3,337,428 $ (6,206,510) $ (14,169,067)
Contributory System (441,119) (1,105,633) (1,668,806)
Public Safety System 2,754,632 (1,116,896) (4,260,845)
Tier 2 Public Employees System 1,445,991 (242,688) (1,539,243)
Tier 2 Public Safety and Firefighter System 39,057 (4,868) (39,739)
Total $ 7,135,989 $ (8,676,595 § (21,677,700)

Pension plan fiduciary net position: Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net
position is available in the separately issued Systems’ financial report.

Defined Contribution Savings Plans
The Defined Contribution Savings Plans are administered by the Systems’ Board and are generally

supplemental plans to the basic retirement benefits of the Systems, but may also be used as a primary
retirement plan. These plans are voluntary tax-advantaged retirement savings programs authorized
under sections 401(k), 457(b) and 408 of the Internal Revenue code. Detailed information regarding
plan provisions is available in the separately issued Systems’ financial report.

The City participates in the following Defined Contribution Savings Plans with the Systems:
e  401(k) Plan
e Roth IRA Plan

Employee and employer contributions to the Systems Defined Contribution Savings Plans for fiscal
year ended June 30, 2022 were as follows:

2022 2021 2022
401(k) Plan
Employer Contributions $ 379,310 $ 362,410 $ 338,323
Employee Contributions 8,804 - -
Roth IRA Plan
Employer Contributions N/A N/A N/A
Employee Contributions 15,190 12,285 13,595
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NOTE H - DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLANS

Section 401(a) defined contribution money purchase plan

The City sponsors a defined contribution plan under Internal Revenue Code Section 401(a) for all full-
time City employees not covered by the Public Safety Retirement System for employers with Social
Security coverage.

MissionSquare Retirement (MissionSquare) administers this plan. The City's total payroll in the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2022 was $29,189,158. Of that amount, $4,800,625 was eligible to participate in
this plan. The City participated at a rate of 0.50 percent, under City resolution for the year ended June
30, 2022 for employees covered by the State Contributory System retirement plan, 0.50 percent for
employees covered by the State Noncontributory System retirement plan, and 18.47 percent under
State Statue for a limited number of employees that are exempt from the State plan. During the year
ended June 30, 2022 contributions totaling $47,638 or 0.99 percent of covered payroll were made by
the City. Employer contributions are fully vested in one year. All contributions were made by the due
dates. The 401(a) defined contribution monies are not available to the City or its general creditors.
Therefore, no assets or liabilities of the 401(a) defined contribution plan are reflected in the City’s
financial statements.

Section 457 deferred compensation plan

The City offers its employees a deferred compensation plan created in accordance with Internal
Revenue Code Section 457. The plan, available to all full-time City employees, permits them to defer
a portion of their salary until future years. Employees are eligible to voluntarily participate from the
date of employment and are vested immediately upon participating. The City's total payroll in the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2022 was $29,189,158 and the City's covered payroll eligible for this plan
totaled $21,198,048. The City participates in employer benefits of $46.15 per pay period for those
employees who have chosen single health insurance coverage and match the employees’ voluntary
contribution amount at fifty cents on the dollar to a maximum contribution of $900. Contributions
totaling $327,812 or 1.55 percent of covered payroll were made by the City and voluntary
contributions totaling $834,669 or 3.94 percent of covered payroll were made by employees. All
contributions were made by the due dates.

All amounts of compensation deferred under the plan, all property and rights purchased with those
amounts, and all income attributable to those amounts, property, or rights are held in trust for the
exclusive benefit of participants and their beneficiaries, except that expenses and taxes may be paid
from the Trust. Participants' rights under the plan are equal to those of general creditors of the City in
an amount equal to the fair value of the deferred account for each participant. The deferred
compensation is not available to employees until termination, retirement, death, or unforeseeable
emergency.

Investments are managed by the plan's administrator under one of seven investment options, or a
combination thereof. The choice of the investment option(s) is made by the participants. All of the
assets and income of the 457 Plan are held in investment fund trusts by MissionSquare for the
exclusive benefit of the participants or their beneficiaries rather than as assets of the employer. As
MissionSquare is the fiduciary of these assets, the City is no longer required to report the assets.

Loans or notes between the City and the defined contribution plans
There are no securities, loans or notes of the City included in the plans’ assets.
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NOTE I - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
There are several pending lawsuits in which the City is involved. The City Attorney estimates the
potential claims against the City resulting from such litigation not covered by insurance would not

materially affect the financial position of the City.

Commitments for major construction and capital improvements projects at June 30, 2022 are as
follows:

Capital Projects Funds $ 6,241,781
Enterprise Funds $ 26,579,440
NOTE J - INTERGOVERNMENTAL REVENUES

Intergovernmental revenues were received by governmental fund types for the year ended June 30,
2022. They consist of the following:

State of Utah Class "C" road allotments $ 596,409
State contributions 190,183
County contributions 2,359,735
Federal contributions 545,895
Fire District 419,927
School District 2,902,855

Total $ 7,015,004

NOTE K — RISK MANAGEMENT

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft or, damage to, and destruction of
assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. During fiscal year 1989, the
City established a Self-Insurance Fund (an internal service fund) to account for and finance its
uninsured risk of loss. Under this program, the Self-Insurance Fund provides coverage for up to a
maximum of $250,000 per occurrence for general liability, automobile and errors and omissions. The
City purchases commercial insurance for claims in excess of coverage provided by the Self-Insurance
Fund and for all other risks of loss. Settled claims have not exceeded this commercial coverage in any
of the past three fiscal years. Liabilities are recorded for any claim or judgment when information
available prior to issuance of the financial statements indicates it is probable that an asset has been
impaired or a liability has been incurred at the date of the financial statements and the amount of the
loss can be reasonably estimated.

Unpaid claims as of June 30, 2020 $ 321475
Incurred claims 113,152
Claim payments (124,396)
Unpaid claims as of June 30, 2021 310,231
Incurred claims 92,031
Claim payments (101,122)

Unpaid claims as of June 30, 2022

$ 301,140
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NOTE L - INTERFUND TRANSFERS

Fund Financial Statements

Transfers were made to and from several funds during the course of the year ended June 30, 2022. An
interfund transfer is a legally authorized transfer between funds in which one fund is responsible for
the initial receipt of funds and another fund is responsible for the actual disbursement. The General
Fund transferred $3,450,301 to the Capital Improvement Fund and $1,585,600 to the Equipment
Replacement Capital Projects Fund for future capital projects and replacement of rolling stock and
computer equipment, respectively. The Redevelopment Agency funds for Main Street and Lower Park
transferred $3,792,532 to the Special Revenue funds for capital expenditures. Several funds
transferred a total of $6,962,216 to the Sales Tax Revenue Bond Debt Service Fund to support
principal and interest payments on debt. The General Fund transferred $25,000 to the Golf Course
Fund for administrative costs. Transfers to the General Fund were comprised of: $1,609,170 from the
Water Fund, $108,200 from the Stormwater Fund, $1,118,181 from the Transportation and Parking
Fund and $114,740 from the Golf Course Fund for administrative expenses for the year ended June

30, 2022.
Transfers into:
Business-
Type
Governmental A ctivities Activities

Major Funds

Sales Tax
Capital Revenue &
General Improvemen Refunding-  Nonmajor  Golf Course

Fund t Fund DSF Funds Fund Total
Transfers out from:
Governmental activities
Major funds:
General fund $ - $3450301 $ - $ 1,585,600 $ 25000 $ 5,060,901
Capital improvement fund - - 4,174,626 - - 4,174,626
Sales tax rev & refund - DSF - - - - - -
General obligation - DSF - - - - - -
Nonmajor funds:
Other funds - - 2,787,590 3,792,532 - 6,580,122
Business-type activities
Water fund 1,609,170 - - - - 1,609,170
Stormwater fund 108,200 - - - - 108,200
Transportation and
parking fund 1,118,181 - - - - 1,118,181
Golfcourse fund 114,740 - - - - 114,740
Total $ 2950291 § 3450301 $ 6962216 $ 5378132 § 25000 $ 18,765,940

Government-Wide Financial Statements
Per GASB Statement No. 34, all interfund transfers within governmental activities and business-type
activities are eliminated.
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NOTE M - TAXES

Before June 15 of each year, the City sets the property tax rate for various municipal purposes. If the
City intends to increase property tax revenues above the tax rate of the previous year, state law requires
the City to provide public notice to property owners and hold public hearings. All property taxes levied
by the City are assessed and collected by Summit and Wasatch Counties. Property taxes are levied on
January 1 on real property values assessed as of the same date. Taxes are due November 30 and
delinquent taxes are subject to a penalty. Unless the delinquent taxes and penalties are paid before
January 15 of the following year, a lien is attached to the property and the amount of taxes and
penalties bear interest from January 1 until paid.

If after five years, delinquent taxes have not been paid, the County sells the property at a tax sale. Tax
collections are remitted to the City from the County on a monthly basis.

Sales and resort taxes are collected by the State Tax Commission and remitted to the City monthly.
Franchise taxes are collected by the telephone, natural gas, electric utilities, cable television and sewer
companies and remitted to the City periodically.

NOTE N - UNAVAILABLE REVENUE
Fund Financial Statements

At June 30, 2022, the following unavailable revenues were recorded in the fund financial statements
as deferred inflows of resources because the funds were not available to finance expenditures of the

current period.
Capital
Debt Service - Projects -
Park City Capital Other
General Improvement ~ Governmental
General Obligation Fund Funds Total

Miscellaneous loans/ receivable $ -3 - § 252387 § - § 252,387
Leases receivable 10,583,591 - 4,240 - 10,587,831
Property tax levied- not yet collected 10,674,703 9,484,688 - 5,224,724 25,384,115

$ 21,258,294 § 9,484,688 § 256,627 § 5224724 § 36,224,333

NOTE O - CONDUIT DEBT

On May 13, 2021, the City issued $15,670,000 of 2021 Tax-Exempt Industrial Revenue Refunding
Bonds on behalf of the United States Ski and Snowboard Association (USSA), a nonprofit
corporation. The bonds refunded $15,455,766 of the 2015 Industrial Revenue Refunding Bonds issued
on May 29, 2015, on behalf of USSA. The bonds bear interest at a 2.75 percent rate and mature May
1,2036. The bonds were used to partially finance the construction of The USSA Center of Excellence,
an athletic training and office facility located in Park City. The bonds are secured by a pledge of
revenues under the Bond Indenture. Neither the City’s General Fund nor the full faith and credit of
the City are pledged for the payment of principal or interest on the bonds. Since the bonds do not
constitute a debt of the City, they are not reported in the accompanying financial statements. The
principal balance of outstanding bonds was $15,293,389 at June 30, 2022.
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NOTE P - POLLUTION REMEDIATION

GAAP addresses accounting and financial reporting standards for pollution (including contamination)
remediation obligations, which are obligations to address the current or potential detrimental effects
of existing pollution by participating in pollution remediation activities such as site assessments and
cleanups. GASB 49 identifies the obligating events, which require the City to estimate the components
of expected pollution remediation outlays and determine whether outlays for those components should
be accrued as a liability or, if appropriate, capitalized when goods and services are acquired.

The United States Environmental Protection Agency (USEPA) and Utah Department of
Environmental Quality have been investigating and evaluating mine sites within the Park City area
since the early 1980’s. In 1988, pursuant to approval of USEPA, Park City Municipal Corporation
enacted the Landscaping and Maintenance of Soil Cover Ordinance for lots within the City limits. In
general, the landscaping and soil maintenance cover requirements mandated a 6-inch clean topsoil cap
in order to contain the underlying mine related material. The general objective of these measures was
to isolate potentially contaminated material from the surface and minimize direct contact. On April
30, 2004, the City implemented an Environmental Management System (EMS) to further strengthen
the Soils Ordinance Program on a long-term basis. The EMS Soils Ordinance Boundary contains
pollution remediation obligations of Park City Municipal Corporation pursuant to this local ordinance,
which is an obligating event pursuant to GASB 49. Park City has evaluated its property holdings and
found that there exists remediation obligations. The estimated cost to remediate these properties is
$2,250,000. In addition, Park City, is responsible for assessing environmental damages through an
NRDA assessment. The estimated cost for the assessment and potential damages is $1,720,000. The
total estimate of $3,470,000 is measured at current value using the expected cash flow technique,
which measures the liability as the sum of probability-weighted amounts in a range of possible
estimated amounts. This technique uses all expectations about possible cash flows. The pollution
remediation obligation is an estimate subject to changes resulting from price increases or reductions,
technology, or changes in applicable laws and regulations.
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Schedule of Required Supplementary Information

Schedule of the Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability
Park City Municipal Corporation, Utah

Utah Retirement Systems

Last 10 Calendar Years '

As of

calendar year  Proportion of the

Proportionate
share of the net

Proportionate
share of the net
pension liability

(asset) as a

Plan fiduciary
net position as a

ended net pension pension Covered percentage of its percentage of its
December 31, liability (asset) liability (asset) payroll covered payroll covered payroll
Noncontributory System 2014 1.1057757 % $ 4,801,538 $ 8,969,083 53.50 % 90.20 %
2015 1.1629907 6,580,767 8,900,339 73.94 87.80
2016 1.1028763 7,081,816 8,404,365 84.26 87.30
2017 1.1793561 5,167,113 8,457,558 61.09 91.90
2018 1.2132077 8,933,726 8,284,921 107.83 87.00
2019 1.1954718 4,505,576 7,721,132 58.35 93.70
2020 1.0590082 543,211 6,406,630 8.48 99.20
2021 1.0837078 (6,206,510) 6,475,027 (95.85) 108.70
Contributory System 2014 1.7202131 496,184 921,380 53.90 94.00
2015 2.1367876 1,501,851 910,458 164.96 85.70
2016 3.5528544 1,165,731 852,469 136.75 92.90
2017 4.2822288 348,463 868,933 40.10 98.20
2018 4.4140715 1,791,243 826,181 216.81 91.20
2019 4.3953469 288,055 787,616 36.57 98.60
2020 3.2448058 (581,540) 535,246 (108.65) (103.90)
2021 1.5272379 (1,105,633) 224,323 (492.87) 115.90
Public Safety System 2014 1.0325635 1,298,534 1,628,847 79.70 90.50
2015 1.1316373 2,027,047 1,850,090 109.56 87.10
2016 1.3348476 2,708,774 2,154,360 125.73 86.50
2017 1.4076471 2,208,117 2,326,902 94.90 90.20
2018 1.3792220 3,548,166 2,335,379 151.93 84.70
2019 1.3778642 2,212,323 2,376,678 93.08 90.90
2020 1.3794893 1,145,309 2,435,306 47.03 95.50
2021 1.3752460 (1,116,896) 2,453,207 (45.53) 104.20
Tier 2 Public Employees System 2014 0.4811751 (14,582) 2,361,287 (0.60) 103.50
2015 0.6083725 (1,328) 3,930,779 (0.03) 100.20
2016 0.5779839 64,474 4,739,934 1.36 95.10
2017 0.6412973 56,541 6,278,394 0.90 97.40
2018 0.6795699 291,045 7,931,286 3.67 90.80
2019 0.6951133 156,336 9,661,859 1.62 96.50
2020 0.6133599 88,218 9,810,802 0.90 98.30
2021 0.5734098 (242,688) 10,647,053 (2.28) 103.80
Tier 2 Public Safety and Firefighter System 2014 0.5580685 (8,256) 230,513 (3.60) 120.50
2015 0.4334431 (6,333) 258,047 (2.45) 110.70
2016 0.4276917 (3,713) 353,369 (1.05) 103.60
2017 0.2907906 (3,365) 307,120 (1.10) 103.00
2018 0.1535009 3,846 205,685 1.87 95.60
2019 0.1264583 11,895 208,446 5.71 89.60
2020 0.1177901 10,565 236,532 4.47 93.10
2021 0.0963238 (4,868) 230,346 -2.11 102.80

! Table represents data available since implementation of GASB Statement 68 and will increase to ten years over time.
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Schedule of Required Supplementary Information
Schedule of Contributions

Park City Municipal Corporation, Utah

Utah Retirement Systems

Last 10 Fiscal Years '

Contributions in

relation to the Contributions

As of fiscal Actuarial contractually Contribution as a percentage

year ended determined required deficiency Covered of covered
June 30, contributions contribution (excess) payroll payroll 2

Noncontributory System 2014 $ 1,463,515 $ 1,463,515 $ - $ 8,593,869 17.03 %
2015 1,593,052 1,593,052 - 8,676,643 18.36
2016 1,583,281 1,583,281 - 8,630,571 1835
2017 1,559,571 1,559,571 - 8,480,620 1839
2018 1,553,648 1,553,648 - 8,429,027 1843
2019 1,486,998 1,486,998 - 8,084,781 18.39
2020 1,279,250 1,279,250 - 6,988,178 1831
2021 1,154,993 1,154,993 - 6,259,429 1845
2022 1,257,885 1,257,885 - 6,835,882 18.4
Contributory System 2014 118,386 118,386 - 891,460 1328
2015 124,015 124,015 - 857,642 14.46
2016 126,506 126,506 - 874,871 14.46
2017 128,811 128,811 - 890,811 1446
2018 121,856 121,856 - 842,711 14.46
2019 118,253 118,253 - 817,793 14.46
2020 98,228 98,228 - 679,310 1446
2021 50,519 50,519 - 349,369 1446
2022 30,760 30,760 - 212,723 14.46
Public Safety System 2014 444,956 444,956 - 1,579,083 28.18
2015 487,710 487,710 - 1,613,195 3023
2016 602,057 602,057 - 2,018,519 29.83
2017 703,564 703,564 - 2,326,004 30.25
2018 696,730 696,730 - 2,306,955 30.20
2019 703,630 703,630 - 2,321,728 3031
2020 741,934 741,934 - 2,438,344 3043
2021 738,239 738,239 - 2,427,488 3041
2022 811,796 811,796 - 2,590,802 3133
Tier 2 Public Employees Systemz 2014 274,597 274,597 - 1,962,810 13.99
2015 447,904 447,904 - 2,998,019 14.94
2016 652,227 652,227 - 4,374,424 1491
2017 830,304 830,304 - 5,568,772 1491
2018 1,051,865 1,051,865 - 6,961,378 15.11
2019 1,391,549 1,391,549 - 8,954,624 15.54
2020 1,568,428 1,568,428 - 10,015,507 15.66
2021 1,570,537 1,570,537 - 9,940,099 15.80
2022 1,890,094 1,890,094 - 11,761,625 16.07
Tier 2 Public Safety and Firefighter System3 2014 43,142 43,142 - 206,915 20.85
2015 46,309 46,309 - 205,361 2255
2016 75876 75,876 - 337,225 2250
2017 79,353 79,353 - 352,678 2250
2018 54,182 54,182 - 240,064 2257
2019 47,136 47,136 - 204,142 23.09
2020 53,529 53,529 - 231425 23.13
2021 57,846 57,846 - 223,947 25.83
2022 65,258 65,258 - 252,643 25.83
Tier 2 Public Employees DC Only System3 2014 2,308 2,308 - 41,356 558
2015 14,096 14,096 - 209,757 6.72
2016 23,903 23,903 - 357,294 6.69
2017 36,006 36,006 - 538,211 6.69
2018 63,003 63,003 - 941,754 6.69
2019 85,220 85,220 - 1,273,841 6.69
2020 108,323 108,323 - 1,619,186 6.69
2021 134,577 134,577 - 2,011,611 6.69
2022 162,084 162,087 - 2,422,779 6.69
Tier 2 Public Safety and Firefighter DC Only System3 2014 - - - - -
2015 3,007 3,007 - 25417 11.83
2016 6,153 6,153 - 52,009 11.83
2017 6,895 6,895 - 58,283 11.83
2018 7,618 7618 - 64,392 11.83
2019 8,158 8,158 - 68,956 11.83
2020 9,069 9,069 - 76,665 11.83
2021 7,531 7,531 - 63,660 11.83
2022 9,094 9,094 - 76,869 11.83

! Table represents data available since implementation of GASB Statement 68 and will increase to ten years over time.
? Contributions as a percentage of covered payroll may be different than the Board certified rate due to rounding or other administrative issues.

? Contributions in Tier 2 include an amortization rate to help fund the unfunded liabilities in the Tier 1 systems. Tier 2 systems were created effective July 1, 2011.
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Park City Municipal Corporation, Utah
Notes to Required Supplementary Information
For the year ended June 30, 2022

Note 1. Changes in Assumptions

The investment return assumption was decreased by 0.10 percent to 6.85 percent for
use in the January 2021 actuarial valuation. This assumption change was based on
analysis performed by the actuary and adopted by the Utah State Retirement Board. In
aggregate, this assumption change resulted in a $509.0 million increase in the Total
Pension Liability, which is about 1.3% of the Total Pension Liability as of December
31, 2020 for all systems combined. The demographic assumptions were reviewed and
updated in the January 1, 2020 actuarial valuation and are currently scheduled to be
reviewed in the year 2023.
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NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL
FUNDS

Lower Park Avenue Redevelopment Agency and Main Street Redevelopment Agency
Special Revenue Funds - Special revenue funds are used to account for specific revenue
sources that are restricted, committed or assigned to expenditures for particular purposes.
These special revenue funds account for the agencies’ redevelopment activities which are
supported by property tax increment revenue.

Lower Park Avenue Redevelopment Agency Capital Projects Fund - Accounts for the
acquisition or construction of capital projects in the Lower Park Avenue Redevelopment
area.

Main Street Redevelopment Agency Capital Projects Fund - Accounts for capital
projects in the Main Street Redevelopment area.

Municipal Building Authority Capital Projects Fund - The Municipal Building
Authority 1s a legally separate organization that is a mechanism for financing needed City
facilities. The Authority acquires and/or builds facilities by borrowing money secured by
a lease agreement between the City and the Authority.

Equipment Replacement Capital Improvements Fund - Accounts for the accumulation

of resources for the future replacement of fixed assets such as computers, vehicles and
heavy equipment.
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Park City Municipal Corporation

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual

Capital Improvements Fund
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

Budgeted Amounts
Variance with Final
Original Final Actual Budget
REVENUES
Taxes and special assessments $ 10,966,320 $ 13,894,448 $ 17,703,739 $ 3,809,291
Intergovernmental 4,342,354 5,476,152 2,332,093 (3,144,059)
Investment income 705,341 705,341 344,088 (361,253)
Impact fees 407,471 407,471 285,385 (122,086)
Rental and other 2,510 2,510 4,936 2,426
Miscellaneous 556,637 556,637 999,452 442 815
Total revenues 16,980,633 21,042,559 21,669,693 627,134
EXPENDITURES
Capital outlay:
Land and building acquisition 274,845 32,773,091 469,463 32,303,628
Street and storm drain improvements 1,807,100 6,419,898 840,067 5,579,831
Building renovation and construction 8,657,709 78,300,096 502,648 77,797,448
Improvements other than building 3,619,726 26,458,788 1,943,249 24,515,539
City parks and cemetery improvements 1,000,249 2,141,638 960,992 1,180,646
Equipment 772,000 2,701,216 419,868 2,281,348
Total expenditures 16,131,629 148,794,727 5,136,287 143,658,440
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures 849,004 (127,752,168) 16,533,406 144,285,574
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Debt issuance 9,000,000 32,086,554 - (32,086,554)
Sale of capital assets 14,000,000 46,831,444 433 (46,831,011)
Transfers in - 3,450,301 3,450,301 -
Transfers out (4,174,626) (4,174,626) (4,174,626) -
Total other financing sources (uses) 18,825,374 78,193,673 (723,892) (78,917,565)
Net change in fund balances 19,674,378 (49,558,495) 15,809,514 65,368,009
Fund balances - beginning 68,723,479 68,723,476 68,723,476 -
Fund balances - ending $ 88,397,857 $ 19,164,981 $ 84,532,990 $ 65,368,009
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Park City Municipal Corporation

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual

Sales Tax Revenue and Refunding Bonds Debt Service Fund

For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

Budgeted Amounts
Variance with Final
Original Final Actual Budget
REVENUES
Investment income $ -3 -8 120,999 $ 120,999
EXPENDITURES
Debt service:
Interest 2,452,216 2,452,216 2,442916 9,300
Principal retirement 4,520,000 4,520,000 4,520,000 -
Total expenditures 6,972,216 6,972,216 6,962,916 9,300
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures (6,972,216) (6,972,216) (6,841,917) 130,299
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in 6,962,216 6,962,216 6,962,216 -
Net change in fund balances (10,000) (10,000) 120,299 130,299
Fund balances - beginning 26,283,980 26,283,979 26,283,979 -
Fund balances - ending $ 26,273,980  § 26,273,979 $ 26,404,278 $ 130,299
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Park City Municipal Corporation
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
Park City General Obligation Bonds Debt Service Fund
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

Budgeted Amounts
Variance with Final
Original Final Actual Budget
REVENUES
Taxes and special assessments $ 9,549,054 $ 9,549,054 $ 9,509,688 $ (39,366)
Investment income - - 1,854 1,854
Total revenues 9,549,054 9,549,054 9,511,542 (37,512)
EXPENDITURES
Debt service:
Interest 3,209,688 3,209,688 3,201,188 8,500
Principal retirement 6,300,000 6,300,000 6,300,000 -
Total expenditures 9,509,688 9,509,688 9,501,188 8,500
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures 39,366 39,366 10,354 (29,012)
Net change in fund balances 39,366 39,366 10,354 (29,012)
Fund balances - beginning 1,596,455 1,596,453 1,596,453 -
Fund balances - ending $ 1,635,821 $ 1,635,819 $ 1,606,807 $ (29,012)
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Park City Municipal Corporation
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual

Lower Park Avenue Redevelopment Special Revenue Fund

For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

REVENUES
Taxes and special assessments
Intergovernmental
Investment income
Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Economic development
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Transfers out

Net change in fund balances
Fund balances - beginning
Fund balances - ending

Budgeted Amounts
Variance with Final
Original Final Actual Budget

1,052,000 $ 1,052,000 § 904,478  § (147,522)
3,200,000 3,200,000 3,028,036 (171,964)

- - 7,663 7,663
4,252,000 4,252,000 3,940,177 (311,823)

692,300 682,300 646,919 35,381
3,559,700 3,569,700 3,293,258 (276,442)

(3,092,532) (3,092,532) (3,092,532) -
467,168 477,168 200,726 (276,442)

1,064,536 1,064,535 1,064,535 -
1,531,704  § 1,541,703  § 1,265261  $ (276,442)
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Park City Municipal Corporation
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
Main Street Redevelopment Special Revenue Fund

For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

REVENUES
Taxes and special assessments
Intergovernmental
Investment income
Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Economic development
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Transfers out

Net change in fund balances
Fund balances - beginning
Fund balances - ending

Budgeted Amounts
Variance with Final
Original Final Actual Budget

332,053 § 332,053 $ 301,782 § (30,271)
944,266 944,266 1,010,315 66,049

- - 7,535 7,535
1,276,319 1,276,319 1,319,632 43,313
455,000 455,000 289,455 165,545
821,319 821,319 1,030,177 208,858
(700,000) (700,000) (700,000) -
121,319 121,319 330,177 208,858
1,133,672 1,133,674 1,133,674 -
1,254,991 $ 1,254,993  $ 1,463,851 $ 208,858
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Park City Municipal Corporation

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual

Lower Park Avenue Redevelopment Capital Projects Fund
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

REVENUES

Investment income

EXPENDITURES
Capital outlay:

Land and building acquisition

Street and storm drain improvements

Building renovation and construction

Improvements other than building

City parks and cemetery improvements

Total expenditures
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in
Transfers out

Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balances
Fund balances - beginning
Fund balances - ending

Budgeted Amounts
Variance with Final
Original Final Actual Budget
$ - 8 - 8 13,7499  $ 13,749
- 25,886 - 25,886
- 39,845 8,570 31,275
- 1,235,853 - 1,235,853
155,000 562,311 28,660 533,651
100,000 742,248 5,759 736,489
255,000 2,606,143 42,989 2,563,154
(255,000) (2,606,143) (29,240) 2,576,903
3,092,532 3,092,532 3,092,532 -
(2,787,590) (2,787,590) (2,787,590) -
304,942 304,942 304,942 -
49,942 (2,301,201) 275,702 2,576,903
3,014,149 3,014,148 3,014,148 -
$ 3,064,091 $ 712,947 § 3,289,850  $ 2,576,903
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Park City Municipal Corporation
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
Main Street Redevelopment Capital Projects Fund
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

Budgeted Amounts
Variance with Final
Original Final Actual Budget
REVENUES
Investment income $ -8 - $ 7,417 $ 7,417
EXPENDITURES
Capital outlay:
Street and storm drain improvements 30,000 112,000 - 112,000
Improvements other than building - 304,253 3,000 301,253
Equipment - 11,718 - 11,718
Total expenditures 30,000 427,971 3,000 424971
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures (30,000) (427,971) 4,417 432,388
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in 700,000 700,000 700,000 -
Net change in fund balances 670,000 272,029 704,417 432,388
Fund balances - beginning 894,106 894,106 894,106 -
Fund balances - ending $ 1,564,106 $ 1,166,135 $ 1,598,523 $ 432,388
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Park City Municipal Corporation
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
Municipal Building Authority Capital Projects Fund
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

Budgeted Amounts
Variance with
Original Final Actual Final Budget

REVENUES
Investment income $ -3 -8 2,123 2,123

Net change in fund balances - - 2,123 2,123
Fund balances - beginning 452,716 452,716 452,716 -
Fund balances - ending $ 452,716 $ 452,716 $ 454,839 2,123
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Park City Municipal Corporation
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
Equipment Replacement Capital Improvements Fund
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

Budgeted Amounts
Variance with Final
Original Final Actual Budget
EXPENDITURES
Capital outlay:
Equipment $ 1,585,600 $ 3,921,944 $ 1,840,784 $ 2,081,160
Deficiency of revenues over expenditures (1,585,600) (3,921,944) (1,840,784) (2,081,160)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Sale of capital assets - - 8,645 8,645
Transfers in 1,585,600 1,585,600 1,585,600 -
Total other financing sources (uses) 1,585,600 1,585,600 1,594,245 8,645
Net change in fund balances - (2,336,344) (246,539) 2,089,805
Fund balances - beginning 2,666,494 2,666,492 2,666,492 -
Fund balances - ending $ 2,666,494 $ 330,148 $ 2,419,953 $ 2,089,805
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INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

The Internal Service Funds are used to account for the financing and operations of services
provided to various City departments and other governments, on a cost-reimbursement
basis. Included are:

Fleet Services Fund: Fleet Services Fund accounts for the cost of storage, repair and
maintenance of City-owned vehicles.

Self-Insurance Fund: Self-Insurance Fund accounts for the establishment of a self-
insurance program.
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Park City Municipal Corporation

Combining Statement of Net Position
Internal Service Funds
June 30,2022

ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash, cash equivalents and investments
Accounts receivable
Inventories
Total current assets
Noncurrent assets:
Vehicles and equipment
Accumulated depreciation and amortization
Net pension asset
Total noncurrent assets
Total assets

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred outflows of resources related to pensions
Total assets and deferred outflows of resources

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Compensated absences
Total current liabilities
Noncurrent liabilities:
Accrued liabilities
Compensated absences
Total noncurrent liabilities
Total liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred inflows of resources related to pensions
Total liabilities and deferred inflows of resources

NET POSITION

Unrestricted
Total net position

Total Nonmajor
Internal service

Fleet Services Fund Self- Insurance Fund funds
$ 1,039,117 $ 2,474,545 3,513,662
55,532 14,657 70,189
585,575 - 585,575
1,680,224 2,489,202 4,169,426
47,450 - 47,450
(47,450) - (47,450)
328,115 - 328,115
328,115 - 328,115
2,008,339 2,489,202 4,497,541
99,342 - 99,342
2,107,681 2,489,202 4,596,883
75,819 192,028 267,847
20,201 - 20,201
24,492 - 24,492
120,512 192,028 312,540
- 1,000,000 1,000,000
28,890 - 28,890
28,890 1,000,000 1,028,890
149,402 1,192,028 1,341,430
386,847 - 386,847
536,249 1,192,028 1,728,277
1,571,432 1,297,174 2,868,606
$ 1,571,432 $ 1,297,174 2,868,606
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Park City Municipal Corporation
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position

Internal Service Funds

For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for services
Total operating revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES
Salaries and benefits
Supplies, maintenance and services
Energy and utilities
Total operating expenses
Operating income (loss)

Income (loss) before contributions and transfers
Change in net position

Total net position - beginning
Total net position - ending

Total Enterprise
Fleet Services Fund Self- Insurance Fund Funds
$ 2,750,750 $ 1,933,450 $ 4,684,200
2,750,750 1,933,450 4,684,200
781,553 - 781,553
493,015 1,608,287 2,101,302
952,738 - 952,738
2,227,306 1,608,287 3,835,593
523,444 325,163 848,607
523,444 325,163 848,607
523,444 325,163 848,607
1,047,988 972,011 2,019,999
$ 1,571,432 $ 1,297,174 $ 2,868,606
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Park City Municipal Corporation
Statement of Cash Flows
Internal Service Funds

June 30, 2022

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash receipts from customers
Payments to employees
Payments to suppliers
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Balances - beginning of year
Balances - end of the year

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash provided (used) by
operating activities:
Operating Income

Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net cash provided (used) by

operating activities:
Pension related
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable
Inventory
Accounts and other payables
Accrued liabilities
Compensated absences
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities

104

Fleet Services Fund Self- Insurance Fund Total
$ 3,087,122 $ 1,925,184 $ 5,012,306
(986,386) - (986,386)
(2,142,300) (1,469,324) (3,611,624)
(41,564) 455,860 414,296
(41,564) 455,860 414,296
1,080,681 2,018,685 3,099,366
$ 1,039,117 $ 2,474,545 $ 3,513,662
$ 523,444 $ 325,163 $ 848,607
(207,474) - (207,474)
4,977) (8,268) (13,245)
(365,264) - (365,264)
10,066 138,965 149,031
3,573 - 3,573
(932) - (932)
$ (41,564) $ 455,860 $ 414,296




STATISTICAL SECTION
(Unaudited)

This part of the City's comprehensive annual financial report presents detailed information as a context for understanding
what the information in the financial statements and note disclosures says about the City's overall financial health.

Contents Page

Financial Trends - These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how the City's
financial performance and well-being have changed over time.

Net Position by Component 106
Changes in Net Position 107
Fund Balances of Governmental Funds 109
Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds 110

Revenue Capacity - These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the City's most
significant local revenue source, property tax, in addition to other types of tax revenues.

General Government Tax Revenues by Source 111
Assessed Value of Taxable Property Excluding Fee-In-Lieu 112
Assessed Value of Taxable Property Including Fee-In-Licu 113
Taxable Retail Sales by Category 114
Direct and Overlapping Property Tax Rates 115
Direct and Overlapping Sales Tax Rates 116
Principal Property Taxpayers 117
City Tax Revenue Collected by County 118
Property Tax Levies and Collections 119

Debt Capacity - These schedules present information to help the reader assess the affordability of the
City's current levels of outstanding debt and the City's ability to issue additional debt in the future.

Ratios of Outstanding Debt by Type 120
Ratios of General Bonded Debt Outstanding 121
Direct and Overlapping Governmental Activities Debt 122
Legal Debt Margin Information 123
Pledged-Revenue Coverage 124
Water Fund Refunding and Revenue Bonds 125

Demographic and Economic Information - These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators
to help the reader understand the environment within which the City's financial activities take place.
Demographic and Economic Statistics 126
Principal Employers 127
Operating Information - These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader
understand how the information in the City's financial report relates to the services the City provides and
the activities it performs.

Full-time Equivalent City Government Employees by Function 128
Population Statistics 129
Transient Room Capacity as a Percentage of Population 130
Historical Pledged Taxes 131
Operating Indicators by Function 132
Capital Asset Statistics by Function 133
Five-Year Financial Summaries 134

Sources: Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from the comprehensive
annual financial reports for the relevant year.

105



901

'SJOSSE JOU PAIILYSAIUN JO 0 s309(o1d [erdes pue 091AI0S 1GOP I0J PIOLNSII SJOSSE JOU 0) PAIRAI JqIP WI)-SU0] PAISSe[oy (7)
‘parersay (1)
1SAION

ETT'P08'Y8Y $ _€88° ISt Ivp $ _v10TTI'60p $ _888°€5T'98¢ $ _¥8L'68SH9€E $ _S9L°TES6EE $ _S8t'6€LE0E $ _LT6°ST8'LST § _Tyl'sLe'TLe $ _1L9'PPSLIT $  uonsod jou jusuwruoAog Arewid [ej01,

TEL'TS6°0ST 19T°9L€061 810°9TS°89 9TS'691°L9 66LTF9°€9 ¥80°LTF 6S L69°LIL'E9 1L66L6°6S 69S611°LS 8€0°012°99 pajomsaIuN

OTEL6SL 66L°6T9°L ¥9L°S10°6 SLS'EST'L 9181999 YIT8LED SLT'T9€9 0EL°S9T'L LETET69 780°60L PaLISOY

TLOSST'9TE  $§ €T8SHY'EPT  $ TETO8STEE  $ LBLOEYTIE  $ 691°S8TH6T  $  LOVLTL'ELT  $ €I9°019°€ET  § 9TT08€'0TC  §  9€ETH6'80T  §  1SS°6T9'00C  $ s1osse [e31ded ur JudunsoAUl JON
JUAWIUIA0S ArewLig

86T°T9S0ST $ _1¥8°66€'8€1 $ _6£LT96°6T1 $ _LLT'L6V'8TI S _b8'898°CTl $ _SEV'OVSLIT $ _999°0SL°T6 $ _000°082°06 $ _T1L°08SV8 $ 9vI'9LLTS § tonrsod jou sonianoe adky-ssoursnq [e10L,

LET'I8TT9 LLTOET ETT 6L8°860°CT €STY66'V T (@ 890°C09°8T (@ 98€'905°9T @ 19L°LLS LT @ 911°1T'6T @ 66€169°ST @ 996°LE0 VT ) pajLysaru

- - - - @ - @ - @ - @ - @ - @ - @ PAOLNSY

191°082°88 $ 9S€9T'ST $ 098°€98°LTT $ PTO€0SETT $  9SL9STYOT $  6v0'cr0°16 $  S06°TLIVY $  ¥88'v90°19 $  TIE688'8S $  081°8ELLS $ slosse [e)ideo ur juaunSoAUI JON
soniAnoe od4)-ssoursng

SISTYT'PEE $ _Ty0'TS0°c0g $ _SLT6SI'6LT $ _T19°9SL°LST $ _096°0€L°THT § _oeg'esoe1ee $ _618'886°T1C $ _LTO'SKS'LOT $ _1er'y6e88l $ _STS'89L'SST $ onisod 19U SAIATOE [BJUSWUIDACS [BJ0],

S6S0L9°88 V86'6£T°L9 6€T°LTY IS ELT'SLTTS @ 1€L'0V0°SY @ 869°0T6°CE @ 9€6'681°9¢ @ §s8'v9L'0E @ 0L1'8TY1E @ zLoTLT'Ty ) pajornsarun
0TEL6S L 66L°6T9°L YIL'ST0'6 SLSEST'L @ 9181999 @ $17'8LE9 @ SLT'T9E%9 @ 0€L'S9¥'L @ L£T'E16'9 (@ 780°60L ) PparoLnsay

0I6°VL6'LET  $ 6STTSITT $ TLEIIL'ETT S €9L°LTE861 S €I¥'8T0°061 S 8Iv¥89T8I $  80LLEV'69T $  TresIgiest $  ¥T0°€S00s1 $  T1LEL8STYI $ sjosse [erdeo Ut juaunsoAUr JoN
SONIATIOR [BJUSUIULIOAOD)

[4{1Y4 1202 07027 (1) 6102 8107 (1) L102 (1) 9107 ST0T (1) 10T €107

T8I X [8ISI]

(Supunodde Jo siseq [enIdIE)

Sa8d X [BISI] Ud I, )se]

juduoduwo)) Aq uonisod 3dON

yeyn ‘uoperodio) redomuny A1) yied
T 2mPpaYpg



LOT

(S8E°LIOTY) (1€9°L0L9¢) _ $ (reg's6Tey)  $ (160°9v0°8¢)  $ (929°186'87)  § (887°60€c0)  $  (Ls9rLeLe) $ LTeLrLn) s (er1ee8D)  $ (S8TELE0E) §
(z6E°€SH' D) 098°0%1 ($L9°561°9) (S$9°601) T 1Ph) TSSI8ETI (PTe'LLY €) Y88 0YIl (LT8'eLe) (€15°80€0)
(€66°€95°6E)  $ (16v'8¥89¢)  § 091°001°LE)  $ 9er'9e6°'Le)  $ (zss'ovs8e)  § Or8069%¢) $  (ceepe8ce) $  (091°02980)  §  (009°L$$'8T)  $  (TLLPI08T)  §
866'7S8°0S $ £77'801°8S $ 9€9°02T° 1S $ 6ELCEL'LY $ TSY PP 0S $ £15°0L6'6Y $  8L0S0S'8T $  €9¥'T80FE $  T0L°LLS0E $  PESSSOST $
SLO'680°6€ 876°0SH'St 19T 16TLE 8T0°66°8¢€ S6L°TH6'7E 10T20°Th £86'66L°TT 0SS°LTE'ST SLY'STI'ET 055°969°61
16T 1EHT TPESEsS 68C°98C°C 1867TS°9 789°6£4°C €€9TI9YI 9T'956°1 861981t TLSESEE 188°€LET
LTTT199°S P8I4S9°01 L60°98S°S - £80°L0€T P98°€18°C - 066°C09°1 PLI'6Y9'T -

PS6‘8PI‘L @D 1Sy £T01T8 196°€IT°T1 L80°68L°6 91€°LTT'S 686'L6V't TSL'SST'Y 800°568°¢ €88°LL6'E
ISLTTET 8¥TTT6'1 128°T€T1 €8T IEI°] 095°€0T°1 P6L'EST 6€8°6€1°1 788°S01°1 8¥T950°1 €EITOIT
T€9°SSLT TEV08Y'1 LIS'LEY'T PPOTLS T LILLLTT (8)  61+°6L6 - - - -
02Z691°0C TETLITIT PIH8ES 81 65190981 919'YT6'LL SLILETLI 6TL'S0TST 8TLILI Y1 ELYILICT £59°THT Tl
€26'SILTL S6TLSITI SLEGTOE] T1LY8L'8 LS9TIFST TIE9P6'L S60°S0L°S €167SL'8 9TTTISY L ¥86'8S€E'S
$09°S97°T 0SELYST LIT°9€9Y 996°809°1 $88°870°6 ¥STTSIT 0S9'T€E 6€T6LY'T 188°6L8°1 YTEELO'T
8HOTIL 8E6'SIE°E 1349243 ThSS61 SLOTIT 991°L81 POL'SPI 998°1Z1 LP1°591 TSE0SE
I8L9YLT £P8SHET 9PS 18] 9€8°€0T°1 981°95€°1 16¥°€ST'T TEI'S6T'1 T9€01T°1 PE6°60€°T 16L°L8T°1
8LLIST - L80ETT 1L1°6T1 LTT681 L16LT 19L°00T 0T8vTT T20°061 06€£°9YC

8697 790°9 - 01 088°C $89°6 966°€ - 001 €1eTl
T10°988°S $ W0ITHY 'y $ TE0'F00°L $ 981°LY9'S $ YISHILY $ 66L899°€ $  Ts8peLe $  9T9BILY $  THI'LO6E $  PIT88ET $
€8E°TLST6 $ YLY'SI86 $ 0LY'91S 16 $ 0€8°6LL S8 $ 8T1°98€°6L $ 108°6LT°TL $§  SEL9L8'SY $  6ELT9ST9 $  8TI60S°6S $  6I88THSS $
LIV TYS OF 880°01€°SH SE6'98Y'Eh £89°850°6¢ 616°78€°S¢E 6v9°Tv9°6T LOELLTIT 999°981°%C T0E66V°€T £90°500°7T
0PE€8P°9L (L1) 1118081 SS6°S8Y'ET 064125°TC SIS ser’6l 601°8Y8°€C1 SHST08TI 11T708°01 786'8LE 01 9€9'809°6
169°SY9°T 069°1¥9°1 6SS8LS T 121°881°1 9T8TIL] 9€0°9¥S°1 109°THS°T 0€€TISTT 867 171 8LV ST 1
9P8‘861°1 0LT'¥S0°1 SP69LT'T LESOLY 8€1°126 (8)  T0TTII'l - - - -
06SP1T°1T 1) LIT'90%'vT 9LV SYI‘LL SETBLS N 0P PIEEl T0€980°¢1 1917€6°C1 STIOLS'TT TTYBLYTL 676°086°01
9I6°6ZETS 98L°50S° 6 SES6TOTS LYTITL9Y 60T°€00° TSILEY'TH 8TH665°6€ €LO'SLELE 978°600°9€ 9SL7EThEE
£87°S96°€ L60°589°t 6T 1706 165°85S°E 6S1°LEST 6£6'99¢€°1 CEPISHT T56'S8T'1 101°T8S°1 88E°88S°T
0EP'S61°9 800°LTS'S PPS9ss's PP8°6TL'S 68F°9TL'S 8LI'EPS'S €T8ILY'S 8E€819Y T16'80%Y STY6IY
£S8'80T°L L8T'S199 90F¥6L°9 1L8°6T6°9 Y91°60T°L STI'E9T'L L19°880°L £YTL96'9 £76°€S0°L 190°5TT'L
EES'616°L SLYPIT'L 9P 8EYL L6L'LYL'9 6£9°9€L°9 POI'YST9 096'S0L‘S L61°0LT'S 8¥S°€T0°S $$8°500°S
LIS0+0°9T $ 616°€95°ST $ 0€8°861°CC $ PP0OSSLET $ 8SLE6LTT $ 9PL606°1T $  S9S9LY6T $  epeeeTior $  TEILELT $  STHOI¥SI $
20T 1207 0207 (1) 6102 8107 (1) L10T (1) 9102 S10T (1) v10T €107

Ted X [edSI

asuadxa jou Juswruionos Arewrnd [ejo],
sanianoe odA1-ssaursng
SOIJIATJOR [RJUSUIUIIAOD)
anuaAdL/(3suadxa) JaN

sanuoAar wesfod juowruionos Arewrnd [ejo,
sanuaaar wesfoid sanianoe adA)-ssaursng [e10 ],
suonnqyuod pue syueid eyde)
suonnqryuod pue syueis SunerodQ
Sursyred pue uonjenrodsuer ]
LR
I0JEMULIO)S
1008 A\
SOITAIRS 10] SaSIet)
:sanianoe odA-ssoursng
sonuaAdl weSord SaNIATOR [B)USWIIACS [210],
suonnqyuod pue syueld eyde)
suonnqryuod pue syueis SunerodQ
oI BAIdAI puk AIeIqI
syIom d1qng
Kyayes orqng
JUSWILIOAOS [BIOUAD)
SOOTAIRS 10] SaSIeY)
ISONTATOR [BJUSWILIOAOD)
sanuaAdy weiforg

sasuadxo juowruronoS Arewrnid [ejo],
sosuadxa saniAnoe adA)-sseursnq [e10,
Sunsyred pue uorjeytodsuer]
LR
I0}EMULIO)S
1008 A\
:santanoe odA-ssoursng
sosuadXa SOTIATIOR [B)USWILIIAOS [210,
1qop uLId)-Suo| uo Jsaruy
oI BaIdAI puk AIeIqI]
syIom a1[qng
Kyayes orqng
JUSWIUIOAOS [BIOUAD)
ISONTATOR [BJUSWILIOAOD)
sasuadxyg

(Sunyunodde jo siseq [enadde)

SIBIX [BISI] U, ISE]

uonIsog JaN ul saguey)

yey) ‘uoyerodao) redwmnpy H1) yieg
7 3Mpayas



801

‘suonnqrLuuod pue syueid ojqeziendes ur sesearour 0) anp uonisod Jou sanTAnoe adA)-ssoursnq ur asea1ou] (87)
'$09J Sunjred uo wniIoeIOW € PUE 6 -QIAQD O} NP SIUSAS Jolewr ur uononpal e 03 anp sasuadxo pue onuoadr Sunyred pue uoneyrodsuer], ur 9sea1oo( (L1)
'spoafo1d uononnsuod Juand 03 paje[ar sasuadxo djqezieyides-uou o) anp sosuadxo 10je A\ UT 25LAIOU] (9T )

'sosuadxo UT SOSEAIOUT PUE SOITAIIS 10J SOTIRYD UI SISBATOAP 0} anp sTuonisod jou sanianoe adA)-ssoursnq ur osearda( ($1)

‘SuONNQIIUOd pue S)ueId ojqezifeirded ur SOSLAIOUT 0 NP UONISOd JoU SAIIATOR [EJUSWIUIIAOS UT 258aI0oU] (41)
‘SuonNQLUOd pue sjueId ojqezije)ides ur sasea1oap 0y anp st uonisod Jou santAnoe odA)-ssaursnq ur 9sea10a( (£71)
*SONUOAQI XE) UT SOSBAIOUT PUE SUONNQLIU0D pue sjueIs a[qezijeyrdes ur sosea1our 03 anp st uonisod 10U SONIATIOR [BJUSWUIIAOS UT 9SBAIOU] (7])

'L 10T Teak Te0sIJ JO JudwaIe)sal paImnbar ‘yuoumsnlpe josse [eyide)) - §1(0g 180K [2oSTI (1)
‘suonnqIyuod pue syueid gjqezieides ur sasearour o) onp st uonisod jou saniAnoe odA1-ssoursng ur asearouy (01)
“Kepino [eides pasearour 01 anp s1 uonIsod 10U SONIATIOR [RJUSUIUIIA0S UT aseAI09(] (6)

'L10T 194 [OSI) UT POppE SeM punj I9jemuIols (8)

'910¢ Teak [0S JO JuaWA)e) ST parnbar quaumsnlpe jasse [erde)) - £ 107 189K [2oSTI (L)
‘suonnqyuod pue syueld [eydes pue Suneiodo ur sosearosp pue uonerodsuen pue 1jem Ul sasuadxo paseaour 0} anp st uonisod jou sonianoe odA)-ssoursng ur osea109( (9)
'SuonNQIIUOd pue syueId [eyrdes ur sasedI00p PUE JUSWUUIIAOT [BIOUAT UT sosuadxo pasearour 03 anp ST UonIsod jou SAIIATIOR [RJUSUIUIDAOS UT a5BaI09(] (§)

'89 gSVD Jo uonejuswa[duil ot 103 {]()7 TedK [eIST JO JUSWIIL)SAI 03 danp st uonisod jou Juswruioaos Arewid [ejo) ur osea1ouy ({)

"1 0g T894 [OSJ JO JUSWINRISAT paInbal ‘suorsua 10§ Sunioday [eroueur] pue Sununoddy ‘g9 gSy o payuswaduy - ¢1(7 1eak [east] ()
"Pa199][00 XE) J10SII UT SISBAIOUT 0] anp SI uo1isod 10U SANIANIL [LJUSWILIIA0T Ul 9seaIou] ()

‘paresay (1)
‘S9JON
0ETTSEEY 698°67€C€  $ 971°'898'Cc  $ vOI'r99°1C  $ 610°LS0°ST  $ 08T°€6L'SE 85S°€I6ST  $ () _S8L0S8WT  § 1LY'0€Y'S $ 0111569 $ JuowuIoA03 Arewiid [0
- - - - - (11) (£€6'607) - - () (120°L69°1) - uonsod jou sonIAnoe 2dA)-ssoursng o1 Jusunsnipy
LSYI9TTI (1) TOI°LEY'S (ST T9¥°S9¥'1 £5H°8€9°S (€1) 68€°60€'S 1) 20L'800°9T (9) 999°0L¥'T 68T°669°S 98S°10SY €68°6L1°C sanIAnoE 9dA)-ssoursng
- - - - - (1) LTOTPIL (L) L8S99¢°L - (€) (€8L°1LT'S) - uonisod 10U SANIALIOE [EJUAUUISAO0F 0} Judunsnipy
ELLO6T'TE L9L'T68'€ET  $ (P1) ¥99°TOVIT  $ 15962091 § (T 0€9°LvL'6l  $(6)  vSKTSST $(S) $0€9L0°L 96v°1S1°6 $(2D) 689°L68'L $ LSTILLY S SONANOR [BJUIWIA0D)
uonisod JaN ur dguey)
S19°69€'8 00S°L£0°69 $ 096'€91°99 S61°01L'6S  $ S69°8€0°FS  § YLYOLTTS $ 8798165t 190°0€€'ey  § 0L0EE Ty S6EYTELE § JuowuIeA08 Arewriid [l
6V8FI9°€EL THT96T'8 9EI°199°L 801°8¥L'S €1S°0SL'S 0ST°LTY°€El 066'Lt6't SOY'8SSY €I¥'SL8Y 99¢'88HY sonianoe adA)-ssoursng [elo L
(000°s1L) (000°51L) (000°51L) (000°51L) (000°51L) €19%ES°L (000°512) (000°51L) - - SIQJsuel],
(608°2S0°1) 6LETE 8696 (1z1'91L) - - - - - - s1osse [endes Jo ofes uo ssoj/uren
0LF0TT PISIL SSETIS 866891 120°SLY 61795t €09°8SY L18°90$ SYLL6Y $98°€Th STIOOUE[[OISIN
SPI‘bLE S06°85€ 8LLEVT 006°18$ LT9°TLE ¥T6°T0Y 68T°LTE 60L°L9€ $E6°85E LET'961 STUILIED SIUSUISIAU]
£70°888F L Pry'8EH8 S0E°095°L 1€€°8T1°9 S9ELIY'S POIEET'S 860°LL8Y 6L8°86EY €€1°610 ¥97'898°¢ Xe) 95N pUE SI[ES [e1OUID)
'SANIAIOE m&unwmmﬁ:m:m
99LFSL0L 8STI¥L09 ¥78°705°8S L80°T96°ES T81°88T'8Y PTEESLE 8€9°0L6°0F 9S9TLLLE 68T SSH9¢ 670°9€8°T€ SOTIATIO [EJUOWILIOAOS [2)O L
000°STL 000°STL 000°STL 000°STL 000°STL (€19%€5°L) 000°STL 000°STL - - SIQJSUBI],
16779 (¥81°98L) 669 168°L - - ¥8L'8TE T - - - s1osse [endes Jo ofes uo ssoJ/uren
08€7T9°E 89T0LI'Y £80°8€6'C 8LI€96°C POS9LLT 096958t 0€L°T6Y 987408 0STH65°T 665°€0T'1 SNIOOUE[[ISIN
798°1S9 THL°6EL PP8° 40T 880°L6C°T 9$8°TTI‘l 807°T8S 885 Ve SELTIT 060°8+€ L59°8ST SBUIUIED JUOUNSOAU]
PSSPE6HT 09t400°81 ¥80°09t°91 000°T¥L°91 LILT6Y YT L9T'€STT 0L8PST'TT 070'990°01 88LIST'6 9€9'€86'S Xe) 11050y
h0°9TS‘E 1E€K°€ST'E 6SLT9T'E 188°0€T°E LYS'LYTE T6EP61°E 078'$81°¢ LOT190°€ 9IL'8ST'E LOY'LEO'E XE} OSIYOUEL,]
0ITFET6 901°19T°L 0rS°68€9 01L°€0t'9 1€€S16'S L89°0T9°S 760081°S Y06 TEL'Y PES'LYE Y ULY'L8TY XE} 95N PUE SIS [21OUD)
889°605°6 182°905°6 ¥8E18T'6 PLEIE0'9 Y8I°TEL9 8S1°0CTY £SYETLE T6S'ITE'S YILT80'S ELYLLSY 901AI3S 1qOP 10J PAIAJ] ‘Xe) Apodord
6€L'96'ST SSTLLELL  § 9E9'SHY LT § S96'667'ST $ €69°98971  § s9TosSEYL  § 66T'SSLYT 768608C1  $ L6TTLLTT $ $8¢€°L8¢'cl ¢ sosodnd [e1oudF Joj patad] ‘xe) Aadoig
Soxe],
SANTAIIOR [BJUSWIULIIAOD)
T0DISOJ JON UI SISuLY)) JIYIQ PUE SANUIAIY [RIIUID)
7207 1207 0207 (1) 6107 8107 (1 L10T (1) 9102 S10T (D ¥10T €107

Ted X [eISI

(Sunyunodde jo siseq [enadde)

SIBIX [BISI] U, ISE]

uonIsog JaN ul sasuey)

yey) ‘uoyerodao) [edpmny H1) yied
panunuo) ‘g AMpayds



601

"POMO][ 99UB[BQ PUNJ [BIOUSS WNWIXBW PISLIIOUL 9 -9-0 9poD yein (g)
"610C Teak [e0STJ JO Judwoale)sal parrnbar quaunsn(pe josse [eyde)) - 070z 1894 12081 (7)

7SE9E0ETT $ 6L5°6T78°S0T $ PSP T8I'L6  $ LESVSH'P8 $ 688°6E1°SS § €80°8LL'BE $ S6TLSO'SY $ 9€0°L86F $ 9S9°99L°0¥ $ 155°099°¢E
TIT'6TLT 60T°861°C £60°TTET LOT'LIST SEE 168 T 009°S8L 8SL91S - - -
688°EYL 01L°TTTT 96t 6T T 0£0°621°C 0L°968°1 LLO'SLL'T L9L9181 Y1S°9€T°T 106°LSS‘1 €€9°08%°1
S8LLSL'VS 6L0°081°89 (?) 990°91°8S SECISY LY 968°SL8°8¢ 062°599°8C 881°618°t¢ 0tLT88°6T 896°0t€°CE ISLOLY 1€
SLS‘T0TT L9TTOL 185061 LL6°TS9 00611 918°¢ 96%°C L£0'88 756 L18
166°T09°T€  $ r1c9zsce ¢ 8ITLL'EE $ 88T669°TE $ 88TWOSTI § 00C°SHS'L $ 980°TLS'L $§ SPL'OLLTI § S€8998°9 $§ 0SE80L
LSOOEL'YT  $ (£) SLT'SSLET  $ COV'6S6'L  $ 90LVPE6  $ 06£ST6L  $ I1S6°9SSL  $ ¥I1E€8T89  $ H6£€88°9  § SIILIL9 $ €06°T9S°S
0v6'8S 0v6°8S 0¥6°8S 0t6°8S 1LS°LS ¥L9°6S 098t 10T'LY 09 9LLLY
ILTSHIPT 8¥8°0Y9°Cl LLSTISL 61°S0L8 €ETOEL’L LLTL6Y'L YLY'6LL9 €61°9¢8°9 91L°0L99 LTISIS'S
196°TIT - - - - - - - - -
00%°1€ 989°LT 89t°0F 92T°0€ 61L°0S - - - - -
- - LOTYC 19L°SS L9898 - - - - -
S8H 18T $ 108°LT $ 110%C $ 09€v6Y $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -

20T 1202 0702 (1) 6102 8107 (1) L10T (1) 9102 S102 (1) $10T €102

Ie3 X [edSI

pareisay (1)
1SQJON

SpUNJ [BIUSWUIOAOST 1010 [[& [e)0 ]
JuowdO[oAdP JIWOU0IT
Spunj 991A19s 1go(1
spuny syoofoxd reyde)

‘pepIuo )

Spunj 991A19s 1go(1
spunj s3o0foxd rende)

pougissy
901A10$ 3G90
s100(oad rende)

.10} PAJOLNSOY

punj [erouas [elo ],

JUSWISIIOFUD 0908qO} Pue SnI( - PAIOLNSIY

pausisseu)
Soseo]
K10juoAU]
UeO[ punjIoju|
spredord
J[qepuadsuoN
punj [e1ouan)

(Sununodde Jo siseq [en.1dde payipour)
SIBI X [BISL] UDT, JSe]

Spunyj [E)JUIWILIIAOL) JO SIdue[eg pung
ye)( ‘uopeaodio) fedruniy A1) yied

€ dnpayodg



0TI

%I'LT %S°6C %6°LT %S'TT (1) %t (1) %6°ST (1) %691 (1) %¢'8¢ (1) %061 (1) %681
SSSISISI L66'THY 71 PIETHETI YOTYEL'8T  $  SPTOELOT § (SLST0SSS)  §  6LIST $ 95998’y $  0TE09T8 $  6¥S°TIS
69€1€6'T TTS819°Y 111°859°01 TEI'€09°€8 L¥8'EEC EY T€1°009°C€ 800°L86'C TEL'LI90E 8€6°0€1°01 985°9€T' 1

(6V9°ST8'ST) (9€S91T°€T) (08T°188°LT) (12S™981°¢L) (€SP TTLTH) (L98°+98°€€) (€0 +EL6) (ITTLI9°LT) (867°89°6) (01L7TISE)
016°0L 8T €8€916°G1 LT0°185°0T G81°GE8°SL SEOVLT vy PI¥'LET9E $6€°G96°T1 SPL'RTL61 6€1°8L6°01 OILTEL'Y
8L0°6 SLY'BI6T 66L VeV 789°1+¢C $6L°€SSS L88°€9€°T 879°SSL 118°€T ¥SS9p1 98S°LT
- - - - - - - - 000°SLET -

- - 96L°16 659°T8% - - - 1¥8°€L9 69L°0S -

- - 699°90T°1 LTI0¥8°6 1L8°L8T°E 869°€98°C - VS ELL YLLTO -

- - (000°s¥T°L) (000°5L9%) - - - - (000°0€6°1) -

- - 000°0LY'S 000°06C° % - - - 000°011°01 000°0€6°1 -

- - 000°000'% 000°SLL°0L 000°0%6°1€ 000°000°ST - 000°SL6°91 000°0LI°L -
98T‘LYT'ST SLY'PT8'6 €0T'¥89 (898°898°%S) (209°€09°92) (LOL'0ST'8€) (628°1L6'T) (9L0°182°92) (819°0L8°T) (LEOPLY)
88SF80°F9 1L6°LSL°09 656°€0€°69 189°1€0°S11 6791178 ¥LE185°68 LT6'897'81 08L°096°€L TIS'199°SH 767 €16°8€
090°€20°L 9Tr 1069 $06°LOT'LT F0S EET°0L TSL'TS0'6€ 66T TP81S 966°€S6°T1 197%19°9C LIL'ET6'ET 098°L1IS'8
- - LTO8TI LSY6TS €65°€TT 6€TSST - 6L6°€0S 1€6°¢Cl -
POLY9°S 887°0L0°9 9TE691°9 8LSSHLE 910°LT8°C STL'STI9°T 808°88L‘1 678°8TS°1 8LLOTYT €00°199°1
00002801 000°588°01 000°SLT'6 0005069 0005798 0000587 ZORINS £€5980°81 96+°02C°S 0884997
PLEIE6 209°916 095°198 8L5°8L8 885°0L8 L69%98 89T°156 SEP'SOy - -
LES'8T0‘S L9S'LTEY 8TLELTY 096°L9EY SE8LETY 112°080% SEVPT8E 20€°S6¥°€ YOr19¢€°€ SESHII'E
TLETYE'9 TLOY69°S 866°T8L'S £TF'S€6'S €59°8%9°C 088761°S L¥98L8Y 6S6'81LY 8T8 EY9'y 856°SE8‘Y
0EELTS L 850°869°9 LTS'866°9 $82°09€°9 STSTHE9 IS¥0L6°S CEVOTES PrSES6'y TL9'V89‘ Y 91S°L89‘y
T18°T9L°0T 8SLYIT61 688°919°81 L68°SLI9T LTL'SET9T TL8'S00°ST 91EH0971 8€6°€59 €l 9L5°980°C1 THSI8E 1T
YLLIEE 6L 9H 78S 0L 791°886°69 €18°791°09 L¥0'01S°LS L990EFTS 860°L6V ST YOL'6LI LY $68°06L°¢y LST6ET'SE
SPL'90ST 810'761°C T19°S0€E°T SIS00S'T £9€°961'C 0CEIH0°S #00°9tS°1 6L1°ELS'T 0rS'TI6 1 LIEILY'T
S8€°S8T £78°98¢ £50°9SY 17029 18€°CEy 98L°80€ S9€'sTY 999°L18 LEL'L6E SET'10T

998159 I7L6€L 78 170°C 680°L6T°C 968°7TI’l 80T°T8S 885 vEY SELT9T 060°8%7€ LS9°8ST
£8°8CT 006°ST €1€°TT 801°€C LTE'SE rE8°Ty 206°9C 90T'¥1 879°1C Twese
€ELTSY'E LOT'TIE0°E 99L°L89°C 6TL'LES'T ¥0T'STT'T P6L'SITT 6€€611°C 0€TT1LOT L6T¥61°C €65°L10°C
P00°STO'L TLTHSL'S 905°€69°'8 €L8'SHEY S06%1T°9 656770 #90°88T°€ €TYIVE'S TT8'8IS°1 9LTHOF'T
I€S0LY‘Y LST'0SE'E 8YTILL'S £00°668°€ 899°06€°€ 19$79t°C YLETIV'T 988°570°€ 9LST19°C W9l
L99°0TS19 80%°001°CS 02870061 SSO°6E9'ry  $  EPETOSTY $ SOT0E89E $  TOFPOISE $ 6LEGITEE §  ¥8TISYYE § S69°66€°1€

7201 1202 0202 6102 8102 L10T 9102 S10T ¥10T €107

eI X [eISI]

‘parersay (1)
1S9ION.

soaipuadxa [eydeouou jo a3eyusorad
© SB 90IAISS 199

sooue[eq punj ur 5uLyd JON

$90In0s Surouruly IaYJ0 [BI0],
mo wuo,wm:durﬁ

ur SIoJsuel1],

sjesse [e)1ded Jo ofes

9)0U UO PIAIAI JudwAed
spuoq urpunjar uo wWnIJ
Q2UBNSSI JOP UO WNIWIL]
SIOP[OYPUOq PApUNJaI 0} JUSWARJ
pansst spuoq Surpunyay
douensst 1go

(sasn) $32.1n0s Fuueuly YO

samypuadxo (1opun) SONUAIY

sarmrpuadxo [ejo],
Kepno [ende)

)00 2oUBNSSI puog

Jsa10)U]

JuowaImal [edoutlg
901AIS 190
Juotdo[oAdp dMou0dq
uoneaIoaI pue A1eiqry
Sy1oM o1qng
Kiages orqng
JUOUIUIOAOS [eIoUar)
saamipuadxyg

SONUOAQI [RIO],
SNOQUB[[OSIUI JOYJO PUE [BIUSY
5997 J0edW]

QUIOOUT JUSTIISIAU]

SOIMIOJIO] PUB SouT]

SOOIAIOS 10J SaIey)
[BIUSUITIOAOS IoJU]

syunad pue sesuoor]
SJUAWISSASSe [eroads pue soxe],
SINUIATY

(Sununodde Jo siseq [ENIdIE payIpour)
SIBI X [BISL] U], ISe]

SpUn f [¢JUIWILIIA0L) JO SAdUE[RY pun ur sasuey)

yey) ‘voneiodio) fedwiungy A1) yied
¥ dIpaYd§



Schedule 5

Park City Municipal Corporation, Utah

General Government Tax Revenues by Source (1)
Last Ten Fiscal Years

(modified accrual basis of accounting)

Fiscal Property Sales and Franchise Resort Transient Room
Year Tax Use Tax Tax Tax (2) Tax (3) Total
2013 $ 14,601,807 $ 4,187,472 $§ 3,037,407 § 5,983,636 $ - $ 27,810,322
2014 14,361,738 4,347,534 3,158,716 9,151,787 - 31,019,775
2015 14,590,197 4,731,904 3,061,207 10,066,041 - 32,449,349
2016 14,832,024 5,180,094 3,185,820 11,154,870 - 34,352,808
2017 14,953,711 5,620,687 3,194,392 12,253,266 - 36,022,056
2018 17,107,856 5,915,331 3,147,847 12,899,048 1,592,720 40,662,802
2019 17,336,112 6,403,710 3,230,881 14,007,916 2,733,084 43,711,703
2020 21,869,486 6,389,540 3,161,759 13,767,415 2,692,669 47,880,869
2021 22,515,259 7,161,106 3,253,431 15,262,710 2,741,751 50,934,257
2022 22,619,601 9,234,210 3,526,042 20,444,391 4,490,163 60,314,407

Change:

2013-2022 54.9% 120.5% 16.1% 241.7% 64.5% 116.9%
Note:

(1) Includes general fund, capital improvement fund and debt service funds.
(2) Restated in 2022 to include the 0.50 percent Additional Resort Communities Sales and Use Tax.
(3) The 1.0 percent Municipal Transient Room Tax was implemented on January 1, 2018.

111



Schedule 6

Park City Municipal Corporation, Utah
Assessed Value of Taxable Property Excluding Fee-In-Lieu
Summit and Wasatch Counties Combined (1)
Last Ten Calendar Years
(in thousands of dollars)

Total Total

Calendar Residential Commercial Miscellaneous Assessed Market Value of Direct
Year Property Property Property Value Taxable Property Tax Rate
2012 5,821,784 $ 770,866 417,491 $ 7,010,141 $ 7,826,836 0.002197
2013 5,937,313 678,855 401,319 7,017,487 7,835,845 0.002131
2014 6,274,164 679,149 389,160 7,342,473 8,215,313 0.002067
2015 6,740,782 689,374 390,248 7,820,404 8,748,413 0.001972
2016 7,112,582 739,074 376,177 8,227,833 9,195,067 0.001884
2017 7,491,154 780,964 375,229 8,647,347 9,658,862 0.002059
2018 8,380,192 857,857 89,161 9,327,210 10,436,645 0.001934
2019 9,197,865 814,250 91,437 10,103,552 11,331,385 0.002125
2020 9,584,752 857,017 98,257 10,540,026 11,942,032 0.002076
2021 10,603,628 987,945 109,659 11,701,232 13,291,359 0.001898

Source: Utah State Tax Commission, Property Tax Division

Note:

(1) Starting in 2013 the City uses the Utah State Tax Commission as the source to obtain more accurate information,
data was updated for all years shown for comparison.
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Schedule 7

Park City Municipal Corporation, Utah

Assessed Value of Taxable Property Including Fee-In-Lieu
Summit and Wasatch Counties Combined (1)

Last Ten Calendar Years

(in thousands of dollars)

Total
Calendar Residential Commercial Miscellaneous  Fee-In-Lieu Assessed

Year Property Property Property Value Value
2012 5,821,784 770,866 417,491 13,179 7,023,320
2013 5,937,313 678,855 401,319 13,820 7,031,307
2014 6,274,164 679,149 389,160 14,560 7,357,033
2015 6,740,782 689,374 390,248 14,252 7,834,656
2016 7,112,582 739,074 376,177 14,809 8,242,642
2017 7,491,154 780,964 375,229 14,814 8,662,161
2018 8,380,192 857,857 89,161 17,484 9,344,694
2019 9,197,865 814,250 91,437 15,657 10,119,209
2020 9,584,752 857,017 98,257 16,308 10,556,334
2021 10,603,628 987,945 109,659 18,505 11,719,737

Source: Utah State Tax Commission, Property Tax Division

Notes:
(1) Starting in 2013 the City uses the Utah State Tax Commission as the source to obtain more accurate
information, data was updated for all years shown for comparison.
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Schedule 10

Park City Municipal Corporation, Utah
Direct and Overlapping Sales Tax Rates
Last Ten Calendar Years

City
Calendar Direct Summit State
Year Rate County of Utah Total
2013 2.90 (1) 0.35 4.70 7.95
2014 2.90 0.35 4.70 7.95
2015 2.90 0.35 4.70 7.95
2016 2.90 0.35 4.70 7.95
2017 3.15 (2) 0.60 (3) 4.70 8.45
2018 3.15 0.85 (4) 4.70 8.70
2019 3.15 1.05 (5) 4.85 9.05
2020 3.15 1.05 4.85 9.05
2021 3.15 1.05 4.85 9.05
2022 3.15 1.05 4.85 9.05

Source: Utah State Tax Commission

Notes:
(1) Includes 0.50 percent Additional Resort Communities Sales and Use Tax implemented in calendar
year 2013.
(2) Includes 0.25 percent Additional Mass Transit Tax implemented in calendar year 2017.
(3) Includes 0.25 percent County Option Transportation Tax implemented in calendar year 2017.
(4) Includes 0.25 percent County Transportation Infrastructure Tax implemented in calendar year 2018.
(5) Includes 0.20 percent County Option for Public Transit Tax implemented in calendar year 2019.
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Schedule 12

Park City Municipal Corporation, Utah
City Tax Revenue Collected by County
Last Ten Calendar Years

Collected Within the

Year of the Levy Total Collections to Date
Tax Year Percent Collections
End Original Adjusted of Adjusted in Subsequent Percent
12/31 Levy (1) Levy Amount (2) Levy Years Amount (2) of Net Levy
Summit County
2012 14,655,626 14,650,150 13,275,742 90.62 1,368,069 (3) 14,643,811 99.96
2013 14,236,860 14,370,289 13,637,854 94.90 720,856 14,358,710 99.92
2014 14,451,389 14,602,592 13,714,698 93.92 879,744 14,594,442 99.94
2015 14,747,175 14,862,169 14,731,910 99.12 111,730 14,843,640 99.88
2016 14,856,934 14,971,746 14,908,200 99.58 49,384 14,957,584 99.91
2017 17,140,149 17,267,351 17,264,089 99.98 - 17,264,089 99.98
2018 17,403,473 17,509,980 17,490,489 99.89 - 17,490,489 99.89
2019 20,759,599 20,870,380 20,841,647 99.86 - 20,841,647 99.86
2020 21,213,526 21,319,117 21,221,111 99.54 - 21,221,111 99.54
2021 21,555,702 21,438,330 20,269,497 94.55 - 20,269,497 94.55
Wasatch County

2012 586,238 583,467 583,467 100.00 - @ 583,467 100.00
2013 608,641 605,996 605,996 100.00 - @ 605,996 100.00
2014 611,098 611,098 611,098 100.00 - @ 611,098 100.00
2015 588,597 580,842 580,842 100.00 - @ 580,842 100.00
2016 582,082 581,989 570,597 98.04 - @ 570,597 98.04
2017 639,263 640,331 633,356 98.91 - @ 633,356 98.91
2018 626,749 624,919 608,868 97.43 - @ 608,868 97.43
2019 729,099 739,991 737,765 99.70 - @ 737,765 99.70
2020 711,496 711,748 697,471 97.99 - @ 697,471 97.99
2021 343,124 343,124 334,750 97.56 - @ 334,750 97.56

Source: Summit and Wasatch County Annual Financial Reports.

Notes:

(1) Excludes redevelopment agencies valuation.
(2) Total collection amounts do not include any fee-in-lieu payments.
(3) Increase was due to miscoding, by Summit County, of a large portion of Flagstaff Annexation, which was corrected in calendar

year 2013, and property taxes paid.
(4) Prior year collection data not available for Wasatch County.
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Schedule 13

Park City Municipal Corporation, Utah
Property Tax Levies and Collections (1)
Last Ten Calendar Years

Calendar Collected within the
Year Taxes Levied Calendar Year of the Levy Collections Total Collections to Date
Ended for the Percentage in Subsequent Percentage
December 31, Calendar Year Amount of Levy Years Amount of Levy

2012 15,233,617 13,859,209 90.98 1,368,069 (2) 15,227,278 99.96
2013 14,976,285 14,243,850 95.11 720,856 14,964,706 99.92
2014 15,213,690 14,325,796 94.16 879,744 15,205,540 99.95
2015 15,443,011 15,312,752 99.16 111,730 15,424,482 99.88
2016 15,553,735 15,478,797 99.52 49,384 15,528,181 99.84
2017 17,907,682 17,897,445 99.94 - 17,897,445 99.94
2018 18,134,899 18,099,357 99.80 - 18,099,357 99.80
2019 21,610,371 21,579,412 99.86 - 21,579,412 99.86
2020 22,030,865 21,918,582 99.49 - 21,918,582 99.49
2021 21,781,454 20,604,247 94.60 - 20,604,247 94.60

Source: Summit and Wasatch County Annual Financial Reports, and Park City Finance Department.

Notes:
(1) Includes general fund and debt service funds.
(2) Increase was due to miscoding, by Summit County, of a large portion of Flagstaff Annexation, which was corrected in
calendar year 2013, and property taxes paid.
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Schedule 15

Park City Municipal Corporation, Utah
Ratios of General Bonded Debt Outstanding
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Percentage
General of Actual

Fiscal Obligation Property Per
Year Bonds (1) Value (2) Capita (3)
2013 $ 29,701,426 038% $ 3,856
2014 33,018,370 0.42 4,194
2015 29,298,159 0.36 3,636
2016 26,009,111 0.30 3,200
2017 50,485,922 0.55 6,083
2018 45,273,366 0.47 5,404
2019 91,632,655 0.88 11,067
2020 89,738,177 0.79 10,572
2021 82,962,508 0.69 9,742
2022 75,916,839 0.57 8,742

Notes: Details regarding the City's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial statement
(1) Presented net of original issuance discounts and premiums.
(2) See Schedule 6 for property value data.
(3) See Schedule 20 for population and personal income data.
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Schedule 16

Park City Municipal Corporation, Utah

Direct and Overlapping Governmental Activities Debt (2)
As of June 30, 2022

Governmental Unit

Debt repaid with property taxes

Snyderville Basin Recreation District Tax District
Wasatch County

Wasatch County School District
Weber Basin Water Conservancy District

Other debt

Summit County
Wasatch County

Subtotal, overlapping debt
City direct debt

Total direct and overlapping

Estimated Estimated
Percentage Amount

Net Debt Applicable to Applicable to

Outstanding Park City (1) Park City
$ 22,495,000 16.54 % $ 3,720,673
4,745,000 2.78 131,911
78,781,942 2.78 2,190,138
9,300,000 14.63 1,360,590
48,206,000 44.50 21,451,670
4,700,000 2.78 130,660
28,985,642
138,829,867

s__167815.509

Sources: Assessed value data used to estimate applicable percentages provided by the Utah State Tax Commission. Debt outstanding

outstanding data provided by each governmental unit.

Notes:

(1) The percentage of overlapping debt applicable is estimated using taxable assessed property values. Applicable
percentages were estimated by determining the portion of another government unit's taxable assessed value that is within
the City's boundaries and dividing it by each unit's total taxable assessed value.
(2) Overlapping governments are those that coincide, at least in part, with the geographic boundaries of the City. This
schedule estimates the portion of the outstanding debt of those overlapping governments that is borne by the residents and
businesses of Park City. This process recognizes that, when considering the City's ability to issue and repay long- term
debt, the entire debt burden borne by the residents and businesses should be taken into account. However, this does not
imply that every taxpayer is a resident, and therefore responsible for repaying the debt, of each overlapping government.
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Schedule 18

Park City Municipal Corporation, Utah
Pledged-Revenue Coverage
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscal Year

2013
2014
2015
2016
2017
2018
2019
2020
2021
2022

Sales Tax Increment Bonds

Sales
Tax Debt Service
Increment Principal Interest Coverage
10,171,108 $§ 1,165,000 $ 401,587 6.5
13,499,321 1,200,000 359,863 8.7
14,797,945 8,350,000 383,012 1.7
16,334,964 1,810,000 782,290 6.3
17,873,953 1,550,000 705,380 7.9
18,814,379 3,680,000 1,351,082 3.7
20,411,626 3,240,000 2,110,324 3.8
20,156,955 4,625,000 2,792,440 2.7
22,423,816 4,855,000 2,576,365 3.0
29,678,601 4,520,000 2,432,215 4.3

Notes: Details regarding the City's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to
the financial statements. See Schedule 19 for information on water revenue bond

coverage.
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Schedule 19

Park City Municipal Corporation, Utah

Water Fund Refunding and Revenue Bonds
Schedule of Net Revenues to Aggregate Debt Service
As of June 30, 2022

Coverage Ratio
Actual Minimum

Net revenues (change in net position) $  (309,495)

Add
Excluded transfer to general fund 1,609,170
Depreciation and amortization 4,202,880
Bond interest expense 3,310,691 (1)

Revenues pledged to debt 8,813,246 1.52 1.20
Principal Interest Total

2009A Water Bonds-DEQ $ 125,000 $ - $ 125,000

2013 A Water Revenue 245,000 19,620 264,620

2014 Water Revenue Bonds - 115,043 115,043

2020 Water Revenue Bonds 2,125,000 1,858,895 3,983,895

2021 Water Revenue Bonds - 1,317,133 1,317,133

$ 2,495,000 $ 3,310,691 $ 5,805,691

Less water development fees and capital contributions collected in fiscal year 2022 (1,260,513)
Net revenues less development fees and capital contributions $ 7,552,733 1.30 1.00
Gross Gross
Revenues Revenue
Net (Less Development Total Available
Revenue Fees) Available Debt for Debt
Year (Loss) for Debt Service Service (1) Coverage Service Debt Coverage
2013 $ 2,256,909 $ 6,115,611 $ 4,069,154 1.50 $ 6,827,075 $ 4,069,154 1.68
2014 3,644,383 6,603,287 4,124,483 1.60 8,314,345 4,124,483 2.02
2015 5,862,508 7,781,536 4,254,867 1.83 11,530,762 4,254,867 2.71
2016 3,074,564 7,474,148 4,247,871 1.76 8,657,335 4,247,871 2.04
2017 4,972,598 9,821,604 4,245,164 231 10,912,626 4,245,164 2.57
2018 5,484,037 10,299,731 4,245,644 2.43 11,555,071 4,245,644 2.72
2019 6,190,191 10,256,385 4,399,869 2.33 12,345,168 4,399,869 2.81
2020 2,599,792 6,990,691 4,453,990 1.57 8,767,845 4,453,990 1.97
2021 45,434 3,414,339 2,910,430 1.17 7,128,699 2,910,430 245
2022 (309,495) 7,552,733 5,805,691 1.30 8,813,246 5,805,691 1.52

Notes: Details regarding the City's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial statements.
(1) Amount is less currently refunded bonds
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Schedule 20

Park City Municipal Corporation, Utah
Demographic and Economic Statistics

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Personal Per

Income Capita
Fiscal (thousands Personal Median School Unemployment
Year Population of dollars) (1) Income (1) Age Enrollment Rate (1)
2013 7,702 2,730,934 72,643 37.4 4,421 4.0
2014 7,873 2,944,020 77,468 349 4,630 3.1
2015 8,058 3,177,339 82,558 38.8 4,739 3.2
2016 8,128 3,784,040 96,766 38.5 4,763 3.4
2017 8,299 4,110,805 102,053 40.4 4,891 3.1
2018 8,378 4,380,364 108,675 40.6 4,780 2.9
2019 8,280 5,518,624 131,606 40.3 4,816 2.7
2020 8,488 6,377,651 152,310 39.3 4,757 9.8
2021 8,516 6,652,663 156,537 40.0 4,696 2.4
2022 8,684 6,652,663 (3) 156,537 (3) 41.2 4,592 1.7

Sources:

Utah Department of Workforce Services

Park City School District

Park City Chamber & Visitors Bureau
Summit County Annual Financial Reports

Notes:

(1) Applies to Summit County.

(3) Most recent data for Personal Income and Per Capita Personal Income is 2021.
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Schedule 22

Park City Municipal Corporation, Utah

Full-time Equivalent City Government Employees by Function
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscal Year

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
Function Full-time Equivalent Employees
General government
Executive 5.5 5.1 4.0 40 4.1 4.6 6.0 (5 6.0 6.0 7.5
Finance 6.8 6.7 6.7 6.7 6.7 6.6 6.2 6.7 6.3 7.0
Human resources 5.3 5.1 5.1 5.1 5.1 5.1 6.3 6.3 4.7 4.7
Budget, debt and grants 1.3 3.0 33 33 33 3.3 3.5 3.1 3.1 4.0
Planning 7.0 8.0 9.0 9.2 9.7 10.0 10.2 10.2 9.0 10.0
Building 13.0 13.0 15.0 16.0 173 17.6 19.2 20.2 19.0 19.0
Engineering 2.7 28 2.8 4.0 43 4.8 5.5 5.5 4.3 4.8
Legal 7.0 7.0 7.0 7.0 7.0 7.0 7.1 7.1 7.9 8.9
Sustainability 9.7 10.9 11.3 113 123 13.8 12.8 13.8 13.8 16.8 (8)
LT. 10.8 9.5 9.5 9.5 9.5 8.5 8.5 8.5 8.4 9.4
Other 5.1 5.0 6.0 6.0 6.0 6.0 7.5 9.9 (6) 134 (7) 11.8
Public safety
Police 339 346 34.0 340 36.5 41.1 41.3 43.6 43.6 46.5
Communication center 10.4 104 104 104 104 2.5 - - - -
Other 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5
Public works
Transit 82.9 80.8 77.2 75.6 75.7 107.8 (4) 123.8 (4) 124.6 118.6 86.3 (9)
Fleet services 8.0 8.0 9.4 9.8 9.8 9.9 10.1 9.9 10.0 10.0
Parking - 7.8 (1) 8.0 82 82 10.5 12.5 10.7 10.2 11.7
Street maintenance 17.5 174 17.3 17.0 14.8 15.3 15.3 17.2 16.8 17.8
Parks and cemetery 18.2 18.2 18.6 19.0 19.0 19.0 19.0 19.3 18.7 18.7
Other 9.6 9.0 9.0 9.0 9.0 9.0 9.0 8.5 8.5 8.5
Library and recreation
Library 114 114 114 11.9 123 13.0 13.5 13.5 13.5 13.5
Golf 54 52 6.0 6.0 7.8 7.8 8.1 8.1 8.1 8.1
Recreation 29.9 29.7 28.2 28.2 293 27.8 27.0 27.0 25.0 25.3
Tennis 79 4.0 4.7 47 4.7 5.2 2.9 2.9 2.4 3.6
Ice 9.0 84 114 113 123 11.3 11.3 11.6 10.9 10.9
Water
Water billing 1.0 1.0 - @ - - - - - - -
Water operations 219 219 23.0 244 265 27.5 29.5 29.2 29.2 32.2
Stormwater
Stormwater operations - - - - 6.1 (3) 6.6 6.6 5.9 5.9 5.9
Total 3427 3454 349.8 353.1 369.2 403.1 4242  430.8 418.8 404.4

Source: Park City Budget Department.

Notes: A full-time employee is scheduled to work 2,080 hours per year (including vacation). Full-time equivalent employment is

calculated by dividing total labor hours by 2,080.
(1) In 2014 the Parking Department was added, until that time it had been outsourced.
(2) In 2015 Water Billing was combined with Water Operations.
(3) In 2017 the Stormwater Operations Department was created.
(4) Significant increase in transit operators and total route miles.
(5) McPolin Barn FTE transferred from Recreation to Executive.
(6) In 2020 the Social Equity position was created.
(7) In 2021 the Affordable Housing positions were created.
(8) In 2022 the several Trails positions were created.
(9) Significant decrease in transit operators and total route miles due to separation with Summit County.
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Schedule 23
Park City Municipal Corporation, Utah
Population Statistics

Percent Percent
Census: Calendar Park City Change from Summit County Change from
Year Population Prior Period Population Prior Period
1960 1,366 (39.40) 5,673 (15.89)
1970 1,193 (12.66) 5,879 3.63
1980 2,823 136.63 10,198 73.46
1990 4,430 56.93 15,518 52.17
2000 6,500 46.73 29,736 91.62
2010 7,596 (4.81) 40,451 36.03
2020 8,516 0.33 42,400 0.61
2021 8,684 1.97 42,655 0.60
Age distribution of 2021 population:
Age Number Percent
Under 5 Years 239 2.75 %

5-14 895 10.31

15-24 1,279 14.73

25-34 1,338 15.41

35-44 1,062 12.23

45-54 1,188 13.68

55-64 1,470 16.93

65-74 781 8.99

75 and over 432 4.96

8,684 100.00 %

Median age: 40.0

Sources:
U.S. Census Bureau, ACS Demographic and Housing Estimates
Utah Department of Workforce Services
Park City Chamber & Visitors Bureau
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Schedule 24

Park City Municipal Corporation, Utah

Transient Room Capacity as a Percentage of Population
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Transient Park

Fiscal Room City Resort
Year Capacity Population Percentage
2013 28,275 7,702 367
2014 28,275 7,873 359
2015 28,275 8,058 351
2016 28,275 8,128 348
2017 23,119 8,299 279
2018 27,422 8,378 327
2019 27,422 (1) 8,280 331
2020 28,670 8,488 338
2021 28,670  (2) 8,516 337
2022 32,669 8,684 376

Sources:
Park City Chamber/Visitor Bureau

Note:
(1) Beginning in 2019, the City used Park City Chamber/Visitor Bureau data
for room capacity and restated all previous year's data for consistency.
(2) Park City Chamber/Visitor Bureau did not report any data for 2020.
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Schedule 28

Park City Municipal Corporation, Utah
Five-Year Financial Summaries

Last Five Fiscal Years

ASSETS

Cash, cash equivalents and investments held by city

Cash, cash equivalents and investments held by fiscal agent

Restricted cash, cash equivalents and investments, other
Receivables:
Taxes
Accounts
Notes receivable
Inventories
Prepaids
Lease receivable
Assets held for resale
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land and water rights
Construction in progress
Art
Capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation):
Right to use asset
Buildings
Improvements other than buildings
Vehicles and equipment
Infrastructure
Intangibles
Net pension assets
Total assets
Deferred outflows of resources

Deferred outflows of resources related to pensions

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Long-term debt due within one year:
Compensated absences
Contracts payable
General obligation bonds
Revenue bonds
Long-term debt due in more than one year:
Compensated absences
Contracts payable
General obligation bonds
Revenue bonds
Net pension liability
Total liabilities
Deferred inflows of resources
Property taxes
Deferred gain on refunding
Deferred inflows of resources related to pensions
Deferred inflows of resources - leases
Deferred inflows of resources - unavailable revenue

Total deferred inflows of resources

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted for:
Capital projects
Other
Unrestricted
Total net position

Fiscal Year Ended June 30

2022 2021 2020 2019(1) 2018
$ 149,676,414 $ 110483787 $  91,143.933 $ 68,768,707 $ 66,635,201
62,902,204 37,681,751 71,929,505 30,394,766 11,398,912
9,438,370 9,470,859 10,856,824 9,194,635 (2) 6,604,245
31,510,573 30,870,614 28,481,976 28,179,289 24,009,992
7,559,093 10,915,585 15,297,972 11,479,937 9,079,648
252,387 258,161 263,386 768,356 1,273,106
1,462,526 1,064,127 935,683 864,724 794,366
1,932,728 1,788,013 2,066,110 2,582,703 1,263,500
10,800,780 - R . .
- - - - 166,096
266,062,802 266,062,802 266,062,802 264,361,177 200,070,570
105,532,708 65,717,025 51,527,332 28,017,548 (2) 28,003,663
946,567 926,239 917,603 889,333 839,333
3,169,673 3,254,198 3,338,722
59,912,541 62,002,012 50,598,244 49,424,165 46,155,763
83,228,324 86,770,848 77,590,523 79,765,683 82,480,502
20,774,073 23,553,590 23,505,583 25,690,978 23,770,469
19,287,123 21,176,661 21,566,939 22,956,314 23,161,347
8,540,614 8,554,756 8,571,769 8,486,048 8,271,741
8,676,595 581,540 - - 3,365
851,666,095 741,132,568 724,654,906 631,824,363 533,981,819
4,314,061 3,200,339 3315414 7,434,656 7,335,717
8,991,484 8,760,571 6,992,699 5,966,218 5,395,183
11,117,507 7,251,284 7,210,548 4,221,062 3,174,630
1,033,464 945,902 992,375 913,654 525,320
146,573 143,918 141,311 § -
6,590,000 6,300,000 6,030,000 5,910,000 4,360,000
9,530,000 7,315,000 7,530,000 8,035,000 6,495,000
254,059 282,541 368,788 313,404 699,776
2,749,183 2,895,756 3,039,674
69,326,839 76,662,508 83,708,177 85,722,655 40,913,366
211,719,374 157,641,006 166,096,899 102,476,579 80,928,230
- 1,787,303 7,174,185 14,568,026 7,780,234
321,458,483 269,985,789 289,284,656 228,126,598 150,271,739
25,384,115 25,035,612 24,703,651 23,863,826 20,046,312
480,573 488,747 704,659 500,262 217,783
13,265,041 7,370,876 4,155,340 514,445 6,025,822
10,587,831
- - - - 166,096
49,717,560 32,895,235 29,563,650 24,878,533 26,456,013
326,255,071 243,445,823 331,580,232 311,830,787 (2) 294,285,169
7,538,370 7,570,859 8,956,824 7,194,635 6,604,245
58,940 58,940 58,940 58,940 57,571
150,951,732 190,376,261 68,526,018 67,169,526 (2) 63,642,799
$ 484,804,113 § 441451883 S 409,122,014 $ 386,253,888 $ 364,589,784

Source: Information extracted from the City's fiscal years ended June 30, 2018 through 2022 general purpose financial statements.

Notes:
(1) Restated.

(2) Fiscal year 2020 - Capital asset adjustment, required restatement of fiscal year 2019.
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Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and
Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance With
Government Auditing Standards

Members of the City Council
Park City Municipal Corporation, Utah

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the
governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and aggregate remaining fund
information of Park City Municipal Corporation (the “City”),as of and for the year ended June 30, 2022,
and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the City’s basic financial
statements, and have issued our report thereon dated February 10, 2023.

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the City's internal
control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the basic financial
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal
control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent,
or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a
material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and
corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies,
ininternal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention
by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of
this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify
any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified.

Report on Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City's basic financial statements are free
from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and
material effect on the financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be
reported under Government Auditing Standards.

BDO USA, LLP, a Delaware limited liability partnership, is the U.S. member of BDO International Limited, a UK company limited by guarantee, and forms part of the international
BDO network of independent member firms.

BDO is the brand name for the BDO network and for each of the BDO Member Firms.
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Purpose of This Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
City’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the City’s internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

BDO USA, LLF

February 10, 2023

BDO USA, LLP, a Delaware limited liability partnership, is the U.S. member of BDO International Limited, a UK company limited by guarantee, and forms part of the international
BDO network of independent member firms.

BDO is the brand name for the BDO network and for each of the BDO Member Firms.
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